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This report also contains a Statistical Section, which provides both financial and non-financial trend data about the Water 
Authority and its operations, and a Continuing Disclosure Section, which provides both financial and non-financial information in 
compliance with the Water Authority’s Continuing Disclosure requirements. 

Highlights of the Capital Improvement Program   
The major Capital Improvement Program (CIP) activities include the following:

Emergency Storage Project (ESP) – San Vicente Dam Raise and Carryover Storage. 

This project is the raising of the San Vicente Dam by 117 feet by using roller 
compacted concrete to expand San Vicente Reservoir’s storage capacity, more 
than doubling its current size. The expanded reservoir will provide an additional 
152,000 acre-feet of emergency and carryover storage for the region in the event 
the County’s imported water supply is curtailed due to an earthquake and to 
supplement the supply in times of drought.

The San Vicente Dam was completed in Summer of 2014. Now that it is 
complete, the Water Authority has begun coordinating with the City of San 
Diego, to start filling the reservoir to make emergency and carryover storage 
available to the region. Filling is based on imported water supply availability and 
completion of key components of the San Vicente suite of projects. This suite of 
projects includes not only the raising of San Vicente Dam, but also replacement of 
City facilities such as a marina and bypass pipeline that would otherwise have been 
submerged by the expanded reservoir’s new water level. In Fall 2013, construction 
of the new marina facilities began and is expected to be finished by Fall 2014. The 
design of the bypass pipeline is complete and is scheduled to commence construction 
in Fall 2014 and be complete by Winter 2015. Once the bypass pipeline is complete 
and the Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of Dams has issued a final 
certification, the reservoir may be filled to capacity based on available water.

More information about the San Vicente Dam Raise suite of projects can be found at the project web page at: 
http://www.sdcwa.org/san-vicente-dam-raise

Relining and Pipe Replacement Program. 

This project rehabilitates the Water Authority pipelines with replacement and relining of existing 
pre-stressed concrete cylinder pipe (PCCP) within the Water Authority’s Second Aqueduct. 
There are 82 miles of PCCP within the Water Authority’s Second Aqueduct. The length of 
existing PCCP pipelines rehabilitated to date totals approximately 34 miles.

In August 2013, the Water Authority awarded a construction contract to reline more than five 
miles of Pipeline 3 from just south of the Sweetwater Reservoir to Lower Otay Reservoir, located 
in Chula Vista. Construction crews conducted most of the work underground, inside the pipe. 
They established seventeen portals along the project’s length to access the pipe. Large wooden 
sound walls were temporarily placed at portals to comply with environmental regulations and ease 
noise impacts to residents. Work was completed on this project in June 2014. 

More information about the Relining and Pipe Replacement Program can be found at the project web page at: 
http://www.sdcwa.org/mission-trails-lake-murray-pipeline-relining

San Vicente Dam Raise Dedication, July 2014

Pipeline relining, Jan. 2014
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Carlsbad Desalination Project.  

The Carlsbad Desalination Project is expected to produce drinking 
water for the San Diego region from the Pacific Ocean as soon as late 
2015; providing a major new drought-proof water supply that will meet 
about seven percent of the county’s water demands in 2020. It will 
produce 50 million gallons a day and account for about one-third of 
all the water generated in San Diego County.

On November 29, 2012, the Water Authority Board voted to 
approve a Water Purchase Agreement with Poseidon Water, 
a private, investor-owned company that develops water and 
wastewater infrastructure, for the purchase of between 48,000 
acre-feet and 56,000 acre-feet of desalinated seawater per year 
from the Carlsbad project for 30 years.

The Water Purchase Agreement transfers to Poseidon and its investors 
the risks associated with design, construction, and operation of the 
Carlsbad project. Under the terms of the Water Purchase Agreement, 
the Water Authority pays for water that is produced according to pre-set 
quality and quantity standards. 

The Water Purchase Agreement documents how the water will be billed and paid for annually. The first 48,000 acre-feet of water 
purchased each year will pay for the fixed costs of the project and the variable costs of water production. The Water Authority has 
the option to purchase an additional 8,000 acre-feet per year at a lower rate that reflects only the variable costs of incremental 
water production.

The project includes both a seawater desalination plant and a ten-mile, large-diameter pipeline. The plant is currently under 
construction and is more than 50 percent complete. The pipeline is more than 60 percent complete. When the project comes online, 
it will be the largest, most technologically advanced and energy-efficient seawater desalination plant in the Western Hemisphere.

The Water Authority is also currently making a number of improvements to its pipeline distribution system and the Twin Oaks 
Valley Water Treatment Plant to integrate desalinated water. These improvements include relining of approximately five miles 
of Pipeline 3 between the new desalination pipeline connection in San Marcos and Twin Oaks Valley Water Treatment Plant 
(48 percent complete) and new pipeline and appurtenant facilities at the Twin Oaks Valley Water Treatment Plant (90 percent 
complete), where the desalinated water will be mixed with existing drinking water supplies for regional distribution. In addition, 
modifications to the Water Authority’s Pipeline 4 San Marcos Vent were completed earlier this year.

The total cost for desalinated water, including the pipeline and Water Authority improvements, is projected at $2,014 
to $2,257 per acre-foot in 2012 dollars. While more costly than current water supplies, desalination is a more reliable, 
drought-proof supply. Water Authority projections also show seawater desalination may be cost-competitive with imported 
water sources by the mid to late 2020’s. The full proposed water purchase agreement and appendices are available at: 
http://www.sdcwa.org/issue-desal

Ongoing construction at the Seawater Desalination site, Apr. 2014
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Major Initiatives

Asset Management

The focus of this program is to prioritize the rehabilitation, repair, or replacement of assets based on consequence and probability 
of failure. Projects selected will extend or renew the service life of the assets and result in reduced long-term maintenance and 
operating costs.  

Hydropower Project at San Vicente Reservoir

The Water Authority, in partnership with the City of San Diego, is assessing the potential for a major hydroelectric power project 
at San Vicente Reservoir to boost the region’s local energy supply and provide “on call” energy to facilitate energy grid reliability. 
This study includes an analysis of the project’s market potential, as well as how the project would integrate with the City’s plan for 
its Pure Water project.

The proposed pumped storage project could generate up to 500 megawatts, enough power for approximately 325,000 homes. It 
would require the construction of a small reservoir, along with other facilities, in the hills above San Vicente Reservoir. Construction 
and design likely would take at least five years and would be done in collaboration with the City of San Diego, which owns and 
operates San Vicente Reservoir.

Power would be generated upon request by a power purchaser by allowing water to flow downhill in a tunnel from the upper 
reservoir and turn turbines before entering the San Vicente Reservoir. Water would be pumped back uphill when electric rates 
are least expensive much like it is at the Water Authority’s 40-megawatt pumped storage project that connects Hodges Reservoir 
with Olivenhain Reservoir. This kind of arrangement allows the Water Authority to generate power when it’s needed most and 
generate revenues for offsetting expenses. San Vicente Pumped Storage will also allow for the storing of the significant additional 
amounts of variable, intermittent, and off-peak electrical generation from wind and solar renewable energy that will be entering 
the California power mix on an accelerated basis. The project would greatly assist investment-owned electrical utility companies 
in achieving their state-mandated renewable portfolio standard in their power supply mix.

The County Water Authority Act was amended by the state Legislature in 1999, enabling the Water Authority to enter the 
wholesale markets for electricity and gas. It also allowed the Water Authority to sell hydroelectric power generated by its water 
delivery system to any retail electric provider.

Fiscal Sustainability 

In January 2012, the Water Authority’s Board established the Fiscal Sustainability Task Force (FSTF). The FSTF’s objective 
was to further the discussion on fiscal sustainability and implement changes. The FSTF discussion was focused on key financial 
issues identified through discussions with Board and staff. The core issues are shown below: 

 Define and Measure Fiscal Sustainability

 Understand Rating Agency Metrics and Ratings

 Conduct a Comprehensive Cost of Service Study

 Identify and Evaluate Emerging Issues Impacting Fiscal Sustainability:

  Allocation of Storage Costs

  Consistent Application of  Revenue Offsets to Treatment Rate Category



 Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 9

Introductory Section, continuedComprehensive Annual Financial Report 

  Balancing Fixed Revenues with Fixed Obligations

  Peaking Impacts and Costs

  RSF Reserves 

  Stored Water Reserves

  Compliance with Cost of Service and Legal Requirements, and Proportional Equity and Fairness among Member    
         Agencies and Generations

The FSTF first established a set of “Guiding Principles” to assist in the evaluation of proposals and recommendations for 
changes to existing rates and charges or financial policies with the objective of ensuring the long-term fiscal sustainability of the 
Water Authority. The Guiding Principles were defined to aid the Board and staff when recommending new, or changes to, the Water 
Authority’s rates and charge structure or financial policies, with the objective of ensuring the long-term fiscal sustainability of the 
Water Authority. These Guiding Principles are:

 Contribute to Maintaining a AA+ or Better Credit Rating

 Adhere to Industry Cost of Service Principles

 Ensure all Beneficiaries of Services Pay a Fair Share of Costs 

 Provide Equity for all Member Agencies 

 Result in the Consistent Application of Board Rate-Setting and Other Financial Policies

 Support Intergenerational Equity

 Result in an Appropriate Level of Fixed Revenues for Fixed Obligations

 Consider our Dynamic Environment

 Maintain or Enhance our Fundamental Mission

 Fulfill all Legal Requirements

 Be Consistent in the Water Authority’s Position on Rate Setting and Fiscal Sustainability Here and at MWD

The first phase of the FSTF has been completed. In the Summer of 2014, the Administrative and Finance Committee will continue 
discussions on how to preserve and enhance fiscal sustainability. The specifics will include a focus on longer-term policy issues, 
including how to address revenue volatility, ensure equity amongst member agencies, and balance local supply development with 
the supply reliability provided by the Water Authority. 

Quantifi cation Settlement Agreement Litigation

In July 2013, Sacramento Superior Court Judge Lloyd G. Connelly entered a judgment validating the 2003 Colorado River 
Quantification Settlement Agreement (QSA) and 11 related agreements, including the Allocation Agreement, which allocates 
the water conserved by the All American and Coachella Canal Lining Projects to the Water Authority.  The trial court found the 
environmental reviews for the Imperial Irrigation District/Water Authority Water Transfer and the QSA Projects fully complied with 
CEQA and rejected all of the remaining legal challenges to the landmark accord, in line with its tentative ruling in June. The County 
of Imperial, Imperial County Air Pollution Control District, POWER/Cuatro del Mar, and a group of farmers appealed this ruling to 
the Third District Court of Appeal in August 2013. 

In May 2014, a three-judge panel from the 9th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals rejected the legal challenge to the Secretary of 
the Interior’s approval of the Colorado River Water Delivery Agreement.  The Secretary of the Interior did not violate the National 
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Environmental Policy Act or the Clean Air Act in approving the Colorado River Water Delivery Agreement.  This 
ruling strengthens a key component of water supply for the San Diego County Water Authority, which will receive 
180,000 acre-feet of water this year as result of the Colorado River water transfers. By 2021, the QSA transfers 
will supply 280,000 acre-feet annually to San Diego County, enough to meet about one-third of the region’s water 
demands.

“The QSA is a cornerstone of San Diego County’s water supply, and the final order by Judge Connelly validates 
eight years of work crafting an agreement and ten years of implementation to help sustain our region’s $191 billion 
economy for decades to come. The Water Authority is committed to meeting all of its obligations under the QSA 
so that this historic pact continues to benefit all the parties involved,” said Thomas V. Wornham, chair of the Water 
Authority’s Board of Directors.

For more information on the QSA agreement, visit: http://www.sdcwa.org/quantification-settlement-agreement

Metropolitan Water District Litigation

In April 2014, San Francisco Superior Court Judge Curtis E.A. Karnow issued a final Statement of Decision 
in Phase 1 of the Water Authority’s legal challenge to rates set by the Los Angeles-based Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California. Judge Karnow ruled that MWD’s rates for 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 violate the 
cost of service requirements of California’s Constitution, statutes, and common law. Specifically, Judge Karnow 
determined MWD’s rates violate: Proposition 26 (2013-14 rates only); the state wheeling statute; Government 
Code Section 549997(a); and, common law rules that apply to rate-making.

The Decision came in lawsuits filed in 2010 and 2012 by the Water Authority challenging rates imposed by MWD 
for 2011-2014. The Water Authority successfully argued MWD’s transportation rates are illegal because they 
improperly include unrelated expenses, thus artificially inflate the price MWD charges for transporting the Water 
Authority’s independent Colorado River water supplies through MWD’s pipelines. Numerous California statutes, 
the California Constitution, and common law require that public water agencies, such as MWD, set rates based 
on the actual costs of the services they provide. A trial date has not yet been set for Phase 2, but is expected later 
this year. Phase 2 will determine the Water Authority’s claims based on breach of contract and the calculation of 
the Water Authority’s preferential right to MWD water supplies. 

In May 2014, the Water Authority filed a third legal challenge against MWD’s rates following a decision by the 
MWD Board to adopt rates for 2015 and 2016 using the same methodology and cost allocation the Court had 
already ruled illegal. 

For detailed information on the Water Authority’s rate litigation, visit: http://www.sdcwa.org/mwdrate-challenge 
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The Future
As a wholesale water agency, the Water Authority plays an important role in coordinating drought 

response actions for San Diego County. The Water Authority’s Board declared a Drought Watch condition 
in February 2014 to encourage increased voluntary water conservation. Record-setting temperatures 
during the first half of 2014 made voluntary conservation difficult to achieve and contributed to a rapid 
drawdown in reservoir levels statewide.

The current Drought Alert condition declared in July 2014 makes Drought Watch conservation measures 
mandatory, and it adds outdoor watering restrictions such as limiting landscape irrigation to no more than 
three days per week. Local rules vary based on regulations adopted by the Water Authority’s 24 member 
agencies.

As part of its drought response efforts, the Water Authority launched “When in Drought: Save every 
day, every way,” an outreach campaign to generate public support for increased water conservation and 
thank residents for investing in water supply reliability over the past 20 years. The Water Authority also is 
coordinating regional drought education and outreach efforts with its member agencies, MWD, and the state 
Department of Water Resources to ensure the largest possible impact. The When in Drought campaign 
has included ads, public service announcements, online communications, and drought reminders provided 
by community partners in public places such as San Diego International Airport and Petco Park. 

We are continuing to execute a long-term strategy to improve the region’s water supply reliability through 
diversifying supply sources and making investments in major infrastructure projects. Such projects and 
programs help shield the region from the effects of shortages from any one source. The Colorado River 
water transfers are a prime example of these supply reliability efforts. There are more than 30 agreements 
that make up the QSA. Approved in 2003, the QSA serves as the framework for delivery of Colorado River 
water in California, including the historic water transfer agreement between the San Diego County Water 

Authority and IID.

Another example is the Carlsbad Desalination Project, the nation’s largest 
seawater desalination facility. When the facility begins producing water for 
the San Diego County region starting as early as Fall 2015, this new supply 
and its cost will be melded with the Water Authority’s other water supplies 

serving 24 member water agencies and 3.2 million people. In addition, the 
enhanced regional storage at the San Vicente Dam, which originally 

stood at 220 feet and now stands at 337 feet – the tallest dam 
raise in the United States and the tallest of its type in the 

world – ensures reliability of supplies aren’t impacted in 
the event supplies from MWD are cutback due to 

drought or other unforeseen conditions.
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Awards and Acknowledgements 
The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting to the Water Authority for its CAFR for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2013. This is the fourteenth consecutive year 
that the Water Authority has received this prestigious award. In order 
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the Water Authority had 
to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR that 
satisfies both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. 
We believe the current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of 
Achievement Program requirements and are submitting it to GFOA 
to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The GFOA also awarded a Distinguished Budget Presentation 
Award to the Water Authority’s Multi-Year Budget for Fiscal Years 
2014 and 2015.  This award recognizes the Water Authority’s 
conformance with the highest standards of governmental budgeting 
as well as compliance with nationally recognized guidelines for 
effective budget presentation. The Water Authority has received 
awards for Distinguished Budget Presentation since 1995.  

We would like to thank the Board for its continued leadership in 
excellence in financial management. Additionally, this report could 
not have been accomplished without the hard work and dedication 
of the entire Finance Department with recognition to the Accounting 
Division. Special appreciation is extended to Rod Greek, Controller; 
Yollie Cerezo and Ruwen Liu, Accounting Supervisors; Holly 
Judy and Jocelyn Matsuo, Senior Accountants; Angela Tomayko, 
Administrative Assistant; Melody Parker, Financial Analyst; and Patti 
Cirello, Investment Analyst.

Respectfully submitted,

Maureen A. Stapleton
General Manager

Lisa Marie Harris
Director of Finance/Treasurer
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San Diego County Water Authority Board of Directors

Thomas Wornham, Chair City of San Diego 
Mark Weston, Vice Chair  City of Poway 
Michael Hogan, Secretary  Santa Fe Irrigation District 

Gary Arant   Valley Center Municipal Water District

David Barnum   Ramona Municipal Water District

Brian Brady   Fallbrook Public Utility District

Gary Croucher   Otay Water District

Betty Evans   Vallecitos Water District

Ed Gallo   City of Escondido 

Frank Hilliker   Lakeside Water District

Jerry Kern   City of Oceanside

Keith Lewinger   Carlsbad Municipal Water District

John Linden   Helix Water District

Jim Madaffer   City of San Diego

Marty Miller   Vista Irrigation District

Ron Morrison   City of National City

Vincent Mudd    City of San Diego

Mark Muir   San Dieguito Water District

Jim Murtland   Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water District 

Ken Olson   City of Del Mar

W.D. “Bud” Pocklington  South Bay Irrigation District

Halla Razak   City of San Diego

Dennis Sanford   Rainbow Municipal Water District

Javier Saunders  City of San Diego

Elsa Saxod   City of San Diego

John Simpson   Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base

Fern Steiner   City of San Diego

Robert Topolovac  Olivenhain Municipal Water District

Yen Tu   City of San Diego

Deana Verbeke   Helix Water District

Ron Watkins   Yuima Municipal Water District

Mark Watton   Otay Water District

Barbara Wight   City of San Diego

Kenneth Williams  City of San Diego

Doug Wilson   Padre Dam Municipal Water District

Dave Roberts, Representative County of San Diego
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San Diego County Water Authority Organizational Structure 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of the          
San Diego County Water Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the San Diego County Water Authority, 
California, (Water Authority), as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Water Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audit Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Water Authority as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the changes in its financial position and 
its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress be presented to supplement the basic financial  
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statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Water Authority’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, other supplementary 
information, statistical section, and continuing disclosures, as listed in the table of contents, are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The other supplementary information – budgetary comparison schedule is the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the budgetary comparison schedule is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The introductory section, statistical section, and continuing disclosures have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29, 2014, 
on our consideration of the Water Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Water Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

San Diego, California 
October 29, 2014 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial 

performance of the San Diego County Water Authority (Water Authority) during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. 
Please read it in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal located in the Introductory Section, and the Water Authority’s Basic 
Financial Statements and accompanying Notes, which follow this section. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed 
in millions of dollars.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The basic financial statements report information about the Water Authority’s financial position and changes in financial position 

using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to methods used by private sector companies. They are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the finances, and also present changes in cash balances and information about both short-term 
and long-term activities. There are three required components to these statements: the MD&A, the Financial Statements, and 
the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The Statements of Net Position present information on all of the Water Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Water Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present information on how the Water Authority’s net 
position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, recognizing 
all revenues when earned and all expenses when incurred.

The Statements of Cash Flows report cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating activities, 
non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities for the fiscal year.

The Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional information essential for a full understanding of the data 
provided in the Financial Statements. The Notes are located immediately following the Financial Statements.

Other Information
The Financial Statements include the accounts of the San Diego County Water Authority Financing Corporation, a separate 

legal entity established in December 1997, and the San Diego County Water Authority Financing Agency, a Joint Powers Authority 
(JPA), established in December 2009. The accounts of these entities are blended into the Water Authority’s Financial Statements 
in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 61. See 
Note 1(a) for further information regarding these entities.
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Financial Analysis of the Water Authority

San Diego County Water Authority Condensed Statements of Net Position, in Millions ($)

Notes: 
(1) Reclassified from amounts previously reported to conform to the current year presentation.
(2) Net position at June 30, 2012 was restated by an increase of $2,912,736 to properly recognize debt issuance costs, as these costs do not meet the definition of an 
asset or a deferred outflows of resources, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 65, implemented in Fiscal Year 2013.

Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Over time, net position may serve as a useful indicator of an entity’s financial position. For the Water Authority, assets and 
deferred outflows of resources, exceeded liabilities by $1,471.6 million and $1,390.6 million as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. Of these amounts, $258.0 million and $257.9 million in unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, were available for current approved services and construction projects, and for new programs for the regions’ 
citizenry. During Fiscal Year 2014, total net position increased by $81.0 million, or 5.8 percent. The largest portion of the Water 
Authority’s net position, 68.7 percent, reflected the investment in capital assets less any related outstanding debt and deferred 
outflows of resources used to acquire those assets. 

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities by $1,390.6 million and $1,329.7 million as of June 30, 2013 
and 2012, respectively. Of these amounts, $257.9 million and $219.0 million in unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, were available for current approved services and construction projects, and for new programs for the regions’ citizenry. 
During Fiscal Year 2013, total net position increased by $60.9 million, or 4.6 percent. The largest portion of the Water Authority’s 
net position, 70.5 percent, reflected the investment in capital assets less any related outstanding debt and deferred outflows of 
resources used to acquire those assets. 

                  June 30,
2014 2013 2012

Assets:
Capital assets $       3,213.8 $         3,167.4 $          3,091.7
Other assets 737.8 729.1 832.8 (1)

   Total assets 3,951.6 3,896.5 3,924.5

Deferred outflows of resources 56.5 60.1 22.5 (1)

Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 2,059.3 2,104.8 2,154.5
Other liabilities 477.2 461.2 462.8 (1)

   Total liabilities 2,536.5 2,566.0 2,617.3

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,011.4 980.4 976.9
Restricted 202.2 152.3 133.8
Unrestricted 258.0 257.9 219.0
    Total net position $          1,471.6 $          1,390.6 $          1,329.7 (2)
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Capital Assets

San Diego County Water Authority Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization),
 in Millions ($)

Capital assets are classified into two categories: non-depreciable and depreciable capital assets. Non-depreciable capital 
assets include land, easements, mitigation banks, storage rights, and construction in progress. Depreciable capital assets include 
pipelines, facilities, equipment, computer systems software, and participation and capacity rights, net of accumulated depreciation 
and amortization. In accordance with the Water Authority’s capitalization policy, capital assets are capitalized when a project is 
substantially complete and has been issued a notice of operational acceptance.

In Fiscal Year 2012, the Water Authority changed the manner in which capital assets were categorized. For financial presentation 
purposes, the amounts reported for Fiscal Year 2012 were reclassified in affected categories. The Fiscal Year 2012 total remains 
unchanged.

Fiscal Year 2014 Compared to Fiscal Year 2013

During Fiscal Year 2014 and 2013, capital asset additions were $130.3 million and $133.1 million, respectively. Of those 
amounts, $122.1 million and $126.7 million were additions to construction in progress for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively. Included in capital asset additions were $20.6 million and $16.1 million of capitalized interest for Fiscal Years 
2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The following projects accounted for the majority of capital expenses incurred during Fiscal Year 2014:

 
 San Vicente Dam Raise  $22.4 million

 Pipeline 3 Desalination Relining  $15.7 million

 Twin Oaks Valley Water Treatment Plant Modifications  $14.8 million

 Pipeline 3 Sweetwater Reservoir to Otay  $14.5 million

 Pipeline 3 Otay Vent 1 to Lower Otay Reservoir  $14.2 million

 San Vicente Marina Facilities  $11.7 million

Material commitments under construction contracts increased to $26.9 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2014 from $21.8 million 
at the end of Fiscal Year 2013, as significant capital improvement projects continued to progress towards completion. At the end 
of Fiscal Year 2014, $13.3 million in new construction contract commitment was outstanding for Pipeline 3 Desalination Relining - 
San Marcos to Twin Oaks, and $13.7 million in commitment was outstanding for San Vicente Marina Facilities.

                  June 30,
2014 2013 2012

Capital Assets - Non-depreciable $            633.1 $           527.7 $          666.7
Capital Assets - Depreciable 2,580.7 2,639.7 2,425.0
    Total $          3,213.8 $         3,167.4 $        3,091.7
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Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to Fiscal Year 2012

During Fiscal Year 2013 and 2012, capital asset additions were $133.1 million and $161.6 million, respectively. Of those 
amounts, $126.7 million and $155.7 were additions to construction in progress for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. Included in capital asset additions were $16.1 million and $26.2 million of capitalized interest for Fiscal Years 2013 
and 2012, respectively. 

The following projects accounted for the majority of capital expenses incurred during Fiscal Year 2013: 

 
 San Vicente Dam Raise  $72.3 million

 Pipeline 4 SR-52 to Lake Murray  $25.5 million

 Lake Hodges Pumped Storage Inlet Outlet  $5.6 million

Material commitments under construction contracts decreased to $21.8 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2013 from $55.6 
million at Fiscal Year 2012 as significant capital improvement projects continued to progress towards completion. The remaining 
commitment for the San Vicente Dam Raise project was $8.1 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2013 compared to $53.3 million 
at the end of Fiscal Year 2012. At the end of Fiscal Year 2013, $13.7 million in new construction contract commitment was 
outstanding for the Twin Oaks Valley Water Treatment Plant Desalination Modifications project.

Debt Administration

San Diego County Water Authority Outstanding Short-Term Debt, in Millions ($)

Short-Term Debt
The Water Authority has a short-term Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) program and an Extendable Commercial Paper 

(ECP) program to provide financing for the capital improvement programs.

                  June 30,
2014 2013 2012

Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper Program $         310.0 $        360.0 $          360.0
Extendable Commercial Paper Program 50.0 - -
    Total $          360.0 $         360.0 $           360.0
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                  June 30,
2014 2013 2012

Revenue Bonds $       1,229.6 $       1,238.0 $           945.7
Certificates of Participation 662.6 686.2 1,069.8
    Total $        1,892.2 $        1,924.2 $         2,015.5

Fiscal Year 2014 Compared to Fiscal Year 2013

During Fiscal Year 2014, the Water Authority terminated the $110 million Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1 and the $50 million 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 6 in their entirety, and issued Commercial Paper Notes, Series 8 for $110 million and Extendable 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1 for $50 million. The total short-term debt remained unchanged at $360 million at the end of 
Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013. 

Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to Fiscal Year 2012

During Fiscal Year 2013, the Water Authority terminated the $100 million Commercial Paper Notes, Series 4 in its entirety, and 
issued Commercial Paper Notes, Series 7 for $100 million. The total short-term debt remained unchanged at $360 million at the 
end of Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012.

More detailed information on the short-term debt is presented in Note 10 of the Notes.

Long-Term Debt 

San Diego County Water Authority Outstanding Long-Term Debt, in Millions ($)

Long-term debt consists of revenue bonds and certificates of participation used to fund the capital improvement programs. The 
Water Authority continues to hold long-term senior lien credit ratings of AA+, AA+, and Aa2 from Standard and Poor’s, Fitch, and 
Moody’s, respectively. Long-term subordinate lien credit ratings are customarily rated one level below the senior lien credit ratings 
of the same issuer. Accordingly, credit ratings of long-term Water Authority subordinate lien debt are inferred to be at AA, AA, and 
Aa3, respectively.  

Fiscal Year 2014 Compared to Fiscal Year 2013

As of June 30, 2014 the Water Authority had $1.9 billion in long-term debt outstanding, a slight decrease compared to Fiscal 
Year 2013. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the total Revenue Bonds outstanding was $1,229.6 million and $1,238.0 million, 
respectively. The total Certificates of Participation outstanding as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $662.6 million and $686.2 
million, respectively.

Fiscal Year 2013 Compared to Fiscal Year 2012

As of June 30, 2013 the Water Authority had just under $2.0 billion in long-term debt outstanding, a slight decrease compared 
to Fiscal Year 2012. During Fiscal Year 2013, the Water Authority issued $299.1 million of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2013A (the 2013A Bonds) to advance refund a portion of the Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2004A 
in the amount of $344.8 million. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the total Revenue Bonds outstanding was $1,238.0 million, and 
$945.7 million, respectively. The total Certificates of Participation outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $686.2 million 
and $1,069.8 million, respectively. 

More detailed information on the long-term debt is presented in Note 11 of the Notes.  
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San Diego County Water Authority Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position,   
in Millions ($)

June 30,
2014 2013 2012

Operating revenues:
  Water sales $        593.7  $           523.5 $        443.3
  Other revenues 3.9 2.6 1.5
     Total operating revenues 597.6 526.1 444.8

Nonoperating revenues:
  Property taxes and in-lieu charges 11.1 10.8 9.9
  Infrastructure access charges 29.2 28.7 27.7
  Investment income 3.7 2.9 5.2
  Other income 10.6 1.7 4.3
  Intergovernmental 10.7 11.9 11.9
  Gain on sale/retirement of capital assets - - 0.1
     Total nonoperating revenues 65.3 56.0 59.1
     Total revenues 662.9 582.1 503.9

Operating expenses:
  Cost of sales 422.7 371.3 312.4
  Operations and maintenance 18.8 19.3 16.8
  Planning 6.8 9.0 7.2
  General and administrative 13.7 13.3 13.5
  Depreciation and amortization 56.6 52.3 51.7
     Total operating expenses 518.6 465.2 401.6

Nonoperating expenses:
  Interest expense 77.8 80.7 69.1
  Debt issuance costs 0.3 1.0 2.0
  Other expenses 10.4 10.2 5.9
  Loss on sale/retirement of capital assets - 0.3 -

     Total nonoperating expenses 88.5 92.2 77.0
     Total expenses 607.1 557.4 478.6
     Income before capital contributions 55.8 24.7 25.3

Capital contributions:
  Capacity charges 13.8 17.7 11.1
  Water standby availability charges 11.2 11.1 11.3
  Contributions in aid of capital assets 0.2 7.4 4.5
     Total capital contributions 25.2 36.2 26.9

Changes in net position 81.0 60.9 52.2
Net position at beginning of year 1,390.6 1,329.7 1,277.5

Net position at end of year $     1,471.6 $       1,390.6 $     1,329.7 
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Revenues by Source

          Total Revenues and Capital Contributions, in Millions ($)

Total revenues (operating and nonoperating) 
and capital contributions for the Fiscal Years 
2014, 2013, and 2012 were $688.1 million, 
$618.3 million, and $530.8 million, respectively. 
Operating revenues consist primarily of water 
sales. Nonoperating revenues include property 
taxes and in-lieu charges, infrastructure 
access charges (IAC), investment income, 
intergovernmental revenue, gain on sale/
retirement of capital assets, and other income. 
Capital contributions include capacity charges, 
water standby availability charges, and 
contributions in aid of capital assets. For Fiscal 

Year 2014, water sales and other operating revenues, nonoperating revenues, and capital contributions accounted for 86.8 
percent, 9.5 percent and 3.7 percent, respectively, of the total revenues and capital contributions. 

     Operating Revenues, in Millions ($)

Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 
2013

Water sales revenue is the principal source 
of revenue and totaled $593.7 million for Fiscal 
Year 2014, an increase of $70.2 million over 
Fiscal Year 2013 total of $523.5 million. The 
increase in water sales revenue was attributed 
to both the increase in water deliveries and 
water rates. In Fiscal Year 2014, total water 
deliveries increased to 522,453 acre-feet (AF) 

from 482,013 AF in Fiscal Year 2013. The 8.4 percent increase in water deliveries resulted from increased water consumption in 
the service area from the increasingly severe drought conditions. Other revenues increased by $1.3 million compared to Fiscal 
Year 2013; the result of higher Hydroelectric Revenue from Rancho Penasquitos and Lake Hodges Hydroelectric Facilities.

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Water sales revenue is the principal source of revenue and totaled $523.5 million for Fiscal Year 2013, an increase of $80.2 
million over Fiscal Year 2012 total of $443.3 million. The increase in water sales revenue was attributed to both the increase in 
water deliveries and water rates. In Fiscal Year 2013, total water deliveries increased to 482,013 AF from 442,643 AF in Fiscal 
Year 2012. The 8.9 percent increase in water deliveries resulted from increased water consumption in the service area due to 
warmer and drier weather conditions and regional economic recovery. Other revenues increased by $1.1 million compared to 
Fiscal Year 2012; the result of higher Hydroelectric Revenue from Rancho Penasquitos and Lake Hodges Hydroelectric Facilities.  
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       Nonoperating Revenues, in Millions ($)

Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Nonoperating revenues were $9.3 million higher in Fiscal 
Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013. Integrated 
Resources Water Management pass-through grant revenue 
increased by $7.6 million due to higher activity levels. In 
addition, $1.0 million was received from the Lake Hodges 
settlement.

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Nonoperating revenues were $3.1 million lower in Fiscal 
Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012. Increases in 
property taxes and in-lieu charges, and IAC were offset by 
decreases in investment income and Integrated Resources 
Water Management pass-through grant revenue.  

       Capital Contributions, in Millions ($)               Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Capital contributions decreased by $11.0 million in 
Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013.  The 
change was the result of two nonrecurring one-time 
revenue recognition events during Fiscal Year 2013: 
the one-time $5.1 million refund received from SDG&E 
for the cost of Lake Hodges Hydro facility network 
upgrades, and the $3.5 million in capacity charges 
revenue resulting from the change in year-end accrual 
procedure. 

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Capital contributions increased by $9.3 million in 
Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012. A 

one-time $5.1 million refund was received from SDG&E in September 2012 for the cost of Lake Hodges Hydro facility network 
upgrades. Increased construction permits resulting from regional economic recovery and the change in year-end accrual procedure 
contributed to the $6.6 million increase in capacity charge revenue.

During Fiscal Year 2012, capital contributions included donated land from the Olivenhain Water District totalling approximately 
$3.5 million.
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Expenses by Function

Total Expenses, in Millions ($)

Total expenses for Fiscal Years 2014, 2013, and 2012 
were $607.1 million, $557.4 million, and $478.6 million, 
respectively. Operating expenses include the cost of 
water sales, operating department/program expenses, 
and depreciation and amortization expenses. Operating 
expenses were $518.6 million, $465.2 million, and 
$401.6 million for Fiscal Years 2014, 2013, and 2012, 
respectively. Nonoperating expenses, consisting 
of interest and other expenses, were $88.5 million, 
$92.2 million, and $77.0 million for Fiscal Years 2014, 
2013, and 2012, respectively. Interest expense, net of 
capitalized interest, was $77.8 million, $80.7 million, 
and $69.1 million for Fiscal Years 2014, 2013, and 
2012, respectively.

Operating Expenses, in Millions ($)

Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Total operating expenses increased by $53.4 million in 
Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013. The 8.4 
percent increase in total water deliveries and increased 
purchase water rates in Fiscal Year 2014 resulted in a 
$51.4 million increase in the cost of water sales. Total 
operating department expenses decreased by $2.3 
million in Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013. 
The decrease was attributed to personnel related cost 
savings from vacancies throughout the year.

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Total operating expenses increased by $63.6 million in Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012. The 8.9 percent 
increase in total water deliveries and increase in purchase water rates in Fiscal Year 2013 resulted in a $58.9 million increase in 
the cost of water sales. Total operating department expenses increased by $4.1 million in Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal 
Year 2012. The increase included the cost in managing and maintaining the Lake Hodges Pumped Storage facility, and reflected 
higher activity levels in Operations & Maintenance asset management, the Colorado River Program, and the water resources 
master plan.
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         Nonoperating Expenses, in Millions ($)

Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal Year 2013

Total nonoperating expenses, consisting primarily 
of interest expense, totaled $88.5 million and $92.2 
million in Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, respectively. 
In Fiscal Year 2014, total interest expense was $77.8 
million, net of $20.6 million in capitalized interest. In 
Fiscal Year 2013, total interest expense was $80.7 
million, net of $16.1 million in capitalized interest. The 
higher interest expense in Fiscal Year 2013 reflected 
the cost of issuance and interest expense related to 
the new 2013A Bonds. Other expenses decreased by 
$0.8 million in Fiscal Year 2014 compared to Fiscal 
Year 2013.  

Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012

Total nonoperating expenses totaled $92.2 million and $77.0 million in Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012, respectively and consisted 
primarily of interest expense. In Fiscal Year 2013, total interest expense was $80.7 million, net of $16.1 million in capitalized 
interest. In Fiscal Year 2012, interest expense was $69.1 million, net of $26.2 million in capitalized interest. The higher interest 
expense in Fiscal Year 2013 reflected the cost of issuance and interest expense related to the new 2013A Bonds. Other expenses 
increased by $4.3 million in Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012. The increase was attributed to expensing the costs 
incurred for five CIP projects the Board voted to cancel.  

Currently Known Facts, Conditions, or Decisions

Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans

Effective July 1, 2014, Technical/Support, Professional/Administrative, Managerial/Supervisory, and Confidential employees  
increased the amount they pay toward the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) by one percent for a total 
contribution of eight percent. Executive and Senior Management employees also pay eight percent in total contribution toward 
CalPERS.

OPEB’s Recent Funding Changes

In September 2014, the Board of Director’s approved pre-funding a significant portion of the Water Authority’s Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) through an irrevocable trust with the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT). The 
OPEB liability is associated with the retiree health insurance coverage benefit, a monthly subsidy not to exceed $320 (retiree and 
spouse) until the age of 65.  

As of June 30, 2014, the estimated Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) for OPEB was $5.8 million based on the June 
30, 2013 actuarial report. This was based on a 4.0% discount rate used to calculate the liability on a pay-go basis. This $4.3 million 
pre-funding will reduce future annual required contribution payments for OPEB due to a substantial reduction in the amortization 
of the unfunded liability and the use of a higher discount rate consistent with the investment strategy of the plan.
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Upcoming GASB Statement No. 68 Implementation

The Water Authority will be implementing GASB Statement No. 68 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - An Amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 27 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. Statement No. 68 contains requirements for measuring pension 
liability and expense, disclosing information in the notes to the financial statements, and presenting required supplementary information 
(RSI). Implementation of Statement No. 68 allows consistency for certain plan information among all governmental agencies.

Pension liability will now be elevated to be reported on the Statement of Net Position. Assets in the plan will be valued at market 
rate, and the discount rate will be a lower blended rate.

Statement No. 68 will better align the recognition of pension expense with the period in which the related benefits are earned. 
Under the new standard, benefits earned each year, interest on the total pension liability, changes in benefit terms, projected 
earnings on plan investments, and changes in plan net position from other than investments will be factored into the calculation of 
pension expense immediately in the period in which the change occurs.

The effects on the total pension liability of (a) changes in assumptions and (b) differences between assumptions and actual 
experience are to be recognized initially as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources and then introduced 
into the expense calculation systematically and rationally over the average remaining years of employment of employees (active 
employees and inactive employees, including retirees). This period will be significantly shorter than the period of up to 30 years over 
which the Water Authority now recognizes portions of its pension expense.

The difference between the expected earnings on plan investments and actual investment earnings is to be recognized as 
deferred outflows/inflows of resources and included in expense in a systematic and rational manner over a five-year closed period 
rather than longer periods that are allowed under the current standards.

The notes to the financial statements will now include:

 Descriptions of the plan and benefits provided

 Significant assumptions employed in the measurement of the net pension liability

 Descriptions of benefit changes and changes in assumptions

 Assumptions related to the discount rate and the impact on the total pension liability of a one percentage   
        point increase and decrease in the discount rate

 Net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources for the current period, the beginning and 
        ending balances of the net pension liability, and the effects of changes during the period (such as the 
        effects of service cost, benefit changes, and actual investment earnings)

In addition, RSI will be enhanced to include for the past ten years (generally on a prospective basis):

 Beginning and ending balances of the total pension liability, the plan trust’s net position, and the net pension liability, 
        and their components

 Total pension liability, the plan’s net position, the net pension liability, a ratio of the plan’s net position to the total 
        pension liability, the covered-employee payroll, and a ratio of the net pension liability as a percentage of the covered-
        employee payroll

 Actuarially determined annual pension contribution 

 Amount of employer contribution actually made  

 Payroll of employees covered by the plan

There is also a requirement to present notes to the RSI schedules regarding factors that significantly affect the trends in the 
schedules.
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Contacting the Water Authority’s Finance Department

This financial report is designed to provide the Board of Directors, the Water Authority’s member agencies, taxpayers, 
creditors, and investors with a general overview of the Water Authority’s accountability for the financial resources 
it manages. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance 
Department at the San Diego County Water Authority, 4677 Overland Avenue, San Diego, California 92123 or via 
email at www.sdcwa.org.
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San Diego County Water Authority
Statements of Net Position 
June 30, 2014 and 2013
  2014 2013

Assets: 
 Current assets:     
  Cash and investments (Note 3)    $            1,609,258  $           26,551,885 
  Restricted cash and investments (Note 3)    337,066,803  330,474,753 
  Water receivables   115,790,820  103,562,891 
  Interest receivable    1,317,844  1,366,903 
  Taxes receivable   1,364,468  1,525,622 
  Other receivables    9,761,981   8,720,108 
  Inventories (Note 4)    27,589,904  16,082,091 
  Prepaid expenses (Note 5)    4,637,593   4,637,336 
          Total current assets   499,138,671   492,921,589 

 Noncurrent assets:     
  Cash and investments (Note 3)    200,567,595   184,467,758 
  Restricted cash and investments (Note 3)    16,715,590   31,110,211 
  Advances to other agencies   343,874  343,874 
  Retention receivable   1,021,168   252,745 
  Long-term loan receivables (Note 6)    20,000,000   20,000,000 
  Capital assets (Note 7):
     Non-depreciable   633,109,800  527,693,655 
     Depreciable   2,580,689,573   2,639,678,922 
          Total noncurrent assets   3,452,447,600   3,403,547,165 
          Total assets    3,951,586,271   3,896,468,754 

Deferred outflows of resources:     
  Deferred loss on refunding    56,480,770   60,070,329 

Liabilities:     
 Current liabilities:     
  Accounts payable and other liabilities    97,556,079   81,193,326 
  Interest payable    19,312,756   19,649,774 
  Construction deposits    315,406   293,689 
  Short-term liabilities (Note 10)    360,000,000   360,000,000 
  Current portion of long-term liabilities (Note 11)   44,267,111   41,262,443 
          Total current liabilities    521,451,352   502,399,232 
 Noncurrent liabilities:     
  Long-term liabilities (Note 11)    2,015,008,349   2,063,535,821 
          Total liabilities    2,536,459,701   2,565,935,053 

Net position:    
  Net investment in capital assets   1,011,397,033   980,446,318 
  Restricted for construction projects  201,696,008   151,728,963 
  Restricted for debt service   549,186 540,932 
  Unrestricted   257,965,113   257,887,817 
          Total net position    $     1,471,607,340  $      1,390,604,030 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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San Diego County Water Authority
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
  2014 2013
Operating revenues:     
 Water sales   $     593,695,290   $      523,455,688 
 Other revenues    3,935,305   2,578,210 
  Total operating revenues    597,630,595   526,033,898 

Operating expenses:     
 Cost of sales    422,699,658   371,258,531 
 Operations and maintenance   18,780,808   19,252,138 
 Planning   6,851,384   9,009,004 
 General and administrative   13,670,808   13,314,635 
 Depreciation and amortization   56,589,618   52,259,977 
  Total operating expenses    518,592,276   465,094,285 
        Operating income    79,038,319   60,939,613 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):     
 Property taxes and in-lieu charges   11,142,102   10,796,481 
 Infrastructure access charges   29,205,684   28,675,422 
 Investment income    3,674,934   2,936,474 
 Other income   10,570,654   1,685,361 
 Intergovernmental    10,645,707   11,861,420 
 Gain (Loss) on sale/retirement of capital assets   48,709   (275,123)
 Interest expense   (77,791,397)  (80,738,966)
 Debt issuance costs   (280,650)  (1,034,687)
 Other expenses   (10,434,146)  (10,216,954)
  Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)    (23,218,403)  (36,310,572)
        Income before capital contributions    55,819,916   24,629,041 

Capital contributions:    
 Capacity charges   13,815,194   17,709,796 
 Water standby availability charges   11,137,248   11,147,488 
 Contributions in aid of capital assets   230,952   7,409,404 
   Total capital contributions   25,183,394  36,266,688 
       Changes in net position   81,003,310  60,895,729 
Net position at beginning of year    1,390,604,030   1,329,708,301 
Net position at end of year   $   1,471,607,340   $   1,390,604,030 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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San Diego County Water Authority
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
  2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
 Receipts from customers  $       624,137,131 $           540,273,118 
 Payments to suppliers for purchases of water  (421,655,434) (362,698,968)
 Payments to suppliers for goods and services  (10,479,237) (6,170,226)
 Payments to employees for services  (39,308,857) (39,570,357)
  Net cash provided by operating activities  152,693,603 131,833,567

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
 Property taxes and in-lieu charges received  11,303,256 10,923,433 
 Intergovernmental  10,645,707 11,861,420 
  Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  21,948,963 22,784,853 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
 Acquisition and construction of capital assets  (106,076,382) (120,751,136)
 Contributions and capital related revenues received 
   from other governments  25,183,394 34,408,541
 Settlement proceeds - Lake Hodges  27,285,920 -
 Proceeds from disposition of capital assets  48,709 15,442
 Proceeds from long-term debt issuance  -  23,515 
 Proceeds from long-term debt service reserve fund release  - 438,000 
 Cost of debt issuance  (280,650)  -
 Principal paid on long-term debt  (37,347,932) (31,793,281)
 Interest paid on debt  (103,958,887) (102,126,550)
  Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (195,145,828) (219,785,469)

Cash flows from investing activities:
 Purchase of investments  (202,073,723) (211,029,996)
 Proceeds from sale of investments  187,727,401 271,986,944 
 Interest received on investments  3,857,901 3,629,846
  Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities  (10,488,421) 64,586,794 
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  (30,991,683) (580,255) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  207,278,124 207,858,379 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $       176,286,441 $           207,278,124 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end of year to the Statements of Net Position:
 Current assets:
  Cash and investments  $           1,609,258 $             26,551,885 
  Restricted cash and investments  337,066,803 330,474,753 
 Noncurrent assets:
  Cash and investments  200,567,595 184,467,758 
  Restricted cash and investments  16,715,590 31,110,211 
 Less investments not meeting the definition of cash equivalents (379,672,805) (365,326,483)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $       176,286,441  $          207,278,124 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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San Diego County Water Authority
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, (continued)
  2014 2013
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
 Operating income   $         79,038,319 $         60,939,613 
 Adjustments to reconcile operating income to 
   net cash provided by operating activities:

  Depreciation and amortization  56,589,618 52,259,977 
  Infrastructure access charges  29,205,684 28,675,422 
  Other expenses  (10,395,261) (5,074,538)
  Other income  10,570,654 1,685,361
  (Increase) in water receivables  (12,227,929) (10,892,980)
  (Increase) in other receivables  (1,041,873) (5,228,583)
  (Increase) Decrease in inventories  (11,507,813) 3,022,898 
  (Increase) Decrease in prepaid expenses  (257) 53
  Decrease in long-term loan receivables  - 688,268
  (Increase) Decrease in retention receivable  (768,423) 592,920
  Increase in accounts payable and other liabilities  12,663,916  4,902,317
  Increase (Decrease) in construction deposits  21,717 (20,809)
  Increase (Decrease) in compensated absences  204,251  (14,352)
  Increase in OPEB liability  341,000 298,000
                        Total adjustments  73,655,284  70,893,954
   Net cash provided by operating activities $       152,693,603  $       131,833,567

Noncash capital and financing activities:
 Accounts receivable write-off  $                          - $           (188,829)
 Cancellation of projects from construction in progress  (38,885) (4,953,587)
 Net book value of capital assets disposition  - (290,565)
 Amortization of discounts, premiums, and deferred loss on refundings  (5,264,472)     (4,881,040)
 Capitalized interest  (20,566,000) (16,083,000)
 Contribution of capital assets   - 1,858,147 
 Capital asset acquisitions included in accounts payable   (12,210,728) (8,511,891) 
 Debt issuance costs from issuance of refunding bonds   - (1,034,687) 
 Interest paid from release of debt service reserve fund   - (34,954,005)
 Interest paid from issuance of refunding bonds   - (5,388,003)
 Short-term debt retired from issuance of commercial paper 
      and extendable commercial paper (Note 10a, 10b and 10d)   (160,000,000) (100,000,000)
 Long-term debt retired from release of debt service reserve fund (Note 11b) -  (17,510,000)
 Long-term debt retired from issuance of refunding bonds (Note 11c)  - (344,785,000) 
 Issuance of commercial paper 
      and extendable commercial paper (Note 10e, 10f and 10g)  160,000,000 100,000,000
 Release of debt service reserve fund (Note 11b and 11c)   - 52,902,005
  Issuance of refunding bonds paid to escrow agent (Note 11k)    - 351,231,205

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies

(a) Nature of Business  

The San Diego County Water Authority (Water Authority) was organized on June 9, 1944 under the County Water Authority Act 
(Act). The Water Authority’s primary purpose is providing wholesale water to its member agencies for domestic, municipal, and 
agricultural uses. The Water Authority consists of 24 member public agencies that are each represented by at least one person on 
the Water Authority’s Board of Directors (Board). The Water Authority is a member of the Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (MWD). Historically, the Water Authority purchased all the water it required from MWD to meet the demands of the 
member agencies. The Water Authority has been in the process of diversifying its supply. Pursuant to the Quantification Settlement 
Agreement (QSA), signed on October 10, 2003, and its related contracts, the Water Authority is obtaining conserved water from 
the Imperial Irrigation District (IID) and will also receive water conserved by lining of the All-American and Coachella Canals. The 
Water Authority also adopted a Regional Water Facilities Master Plan in 2004 that calls for further supply diversification.

The MWD Act provides a preferential right for the purchase of water by each of its constituent agencies. This preferential 
right is calculated using a formula. Based on the formula, the Water Authority has a statutory preferential right to approximately 
18.11 percent of MWD’s total supply as of June 30, 2014. MWD has represented that it will provide reliable water supplies 
notwithstanding preferential rights.

The San Diego County Water Authority Financing Corporation (SDCWAFC) was incorporated on December 29, 1997. The 
SDCWAFC is a California non-profit public benefit corporation formed to assist the Water Authority as a financing entity and is 
administered by a governing board, which consists of five members as follows: the Chair of the Board of Directors of the Water 
Authority, the Chair of the Administrative and Finance Committee of the Board, the General Manager of the Water Authority, the 
Director of Finance/Treasurer of the Water Authority, and the General Counsel of the Water Authority. The Water Authority does 
not issue separate financial statements for the SDCWAFC because its activities are blended with those of the Water Authority 
for financial reporting purposes.

The San Diego County Water Authority Financing Agency (SDCWAFA) was established on December 17, 2009 to facilitate 
financing and refinancing of capital improvement projects of the Water Authority. The SDCWAFA is a Joint Powers Authority 
(JPA) with statutory authority to issue revenue bonds and was formed by an agreement between the Water Authority and the 
California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA). The CMFA itself is a JPA that was created in 2004 by various local agencies to 
facilitate tax-exempt financing. The CMFA has entered into many such JPA agreements. Under the JPA agreement, the Water 
Authority has control over all finance matters. 

The SDCWAFA’s sole purpose is to be a financing entity for the Water Authority and is administered by a governing board, which 
consists of five members as follows:  the Chair of the Board of Directors of the Water Authority, the Chair of the Administrative 
and Finance Committee of the Board, the General Manager of the Water Authority, the Director of Finance/Treasurer of the Water 
Authority, and the General Counsel of the Water Authority. The Water Authority does not issue separate financial statements for 
the SDCWAFA because its activities are blended with those of the Water Authority for financial reporting purposes. 
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1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies, (continued)

(b) Basis of Accounting

The Water Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund (proprietary fund type). A fund is an accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts established to record the financial position and changes in financial position of a specific governmental 
activity. The activities of enterprise funds closely resemble those of private-sector businesses in which the purpose is to conserve 
and add to basic resources while meeting operating expenses from current revenues. Enterprise funds account for operations that 
provide services on a continuous basis and are substantially financed by revenues derived from user charges. 

The Water Authority utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are 
recognized as they are incurred. The Water Authority financial statements apply all effective pronouncements of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and when not in conflict with, or contradictory to GASB, pronouncements of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

(c) Cash and Investments 

The Water Authority’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, investments in money 
market mutual funds, pooled funds, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition. For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are reported in both restricted and 
unrestricted cash and investments.

The Water Authority has the following legally restricted funds: Construction, Debt Service Reserve, and Pay-As-You-Go. The 
Construction Fund includes the proceeds from long-term and short-term debt and is restricted for use on capital project expenses. 
The Debt Service Reserve Fund holds the required amount for Water Authority debt issues. The Debt Service Reserve Fund is 
held for the purpose of making an issue’s annual debt service payments in the event that the Water Authority should be unable 
to make such payments. The Pay-As-You-Go Fund consists of Capacity Charges and Water Standby Availability Charges and is 
restricted per Board adopted ordinances for the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The funds are dedicated for capital project 
outlays, as well as debt service.

Investments are reported at fair value, consistent with quoted market prices, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools, except for certain guaranteed 
investment contracts that are reported at cost because they are not transferable and have terms that are not affected by changes in 
market interest rates. The State Treasurer’s Investment Pool operates in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. 

Changes in fair value that occur during the fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year.  
Investment income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale 
of investments. Note 3 of the Notes to the Financial Statements contains additional information on permissible investments per 
the Water Authority’s Investment Policy.
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1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies, (continued)

(d) Reserves    

The Water Authority established other designated funds in alignment with best practice guidance: the Rate Stabilization Fund 
(RSF), Equipment Replacement Fund, and Stored Water Fund. The RSF is established for the purpose of collecting amounts of 
operating revenues greater than expenses in years of strong net revenues. These funds are to be used to mitigate “rate shock” 
in years of weak water sales and/or to manage debt service coverage ensuring coverage remains above the legally required 
minimum. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Water Authority transferred $22,000,000 and $12,500,000 
to the RSF, respectively. 

The Equipment Replacement Fund is funded by annual draws from the Operating Fund per depreciation schedules for small 
capital equipment, such as computers, vehicles, the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system, etc., to ensure 
funding is available to replace equipment that has reached the end of its useful life. The Stored Water Fund was established to 
support the purchase of water to fill the various Water Authority reservoirs. The majority of funds will be used to fill San Vicente 
Reservoir once the Emergency and Carryover Storage project is complete.

(e) Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical 
records exist. Donated assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date received. The Water Authority capitalizes all assets 
with a historical cost of at least $5,000 and a useful life of at least three years as the Water Authority does not have any capital 
assets with less than a three year useful life. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets 
or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Non-depreciable capital assets include Land, Easements, Mitigation Bank, Storage Rights, and Construction in Progress. 
Depreciable capital assets include Pipelines and Dams, Facilities, Equipment, Computer Systems Software, and Participation and 
Capacity Rights. 

Depreciation and amortization is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 Pipelines and Dams 60 to 100 years
 Facilities 5 to 50 years
 Equipment 3 to 8 years
 Computer Systems Software 4 years
 Participation and Capacity Rights 10 to 110 years

Intangible Assets – In addition to computer systems software intangible assets, the Water Authority also participates in various 
storage and water management programs, or builds capital assets that by agreement entitle it to certain participation or capacity 
rights that are included in capital assets as intangible assets. Some projects also require payments for on-going maintenance which 
are charged to expense as incurred. Amortization is computed utilizing the straight-line method over the estimated useful life for 
capacity rights, software, and permits. Amortization of participation rights is computed over the life of the agreement.

Capitalized Interest – The Water Authority capitalizes interest based on the criteria outlined in GASB Statement No. 62, Codificaton 
of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which 
applies to taxable borrowings and tax-exempt non-project specific debt. The objective is to obtain a measure of the acquisition cost 
that more closely reflects the Water Authority’s total investment in the asset and to charge a cost that relates to the acquisition of 
a resource that will benefit future periods against revenues of the periods benefited. The amount to be capitalized is the amount of 
interest expense that would have been avoided during the asset’s acquisition period if the asset had not been acquired, whether or 
not the asset had been acquired through incurring debt. GASB Statement No. 62 requires a pooled calculation of average interest 
expense and a weighted average project allocation of interest expense with no offset for interest earnings.
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1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies, (continued) 

(f)  Compensated Absences

It is the Water Authority’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits up to a maximum of 50 
days (75 days for management). Sick leave hours accrue at the rate of one day per month. The sick leave policy in place during 
Fiscal Year 2014 restricted unused sick leave conversion to vacation at a 50 percent hourly conversion rate for employees with 
more than 1,000 hours of accrued sick leave. Employees that terminated employment prior to retirement or death were paid zero 
percent of the unused sick leave. Employees that attained the age of 50, were vested with five years of service, and terminated 
employment due to retirement, layoff, or death, were paid 100 percent of unused vacation and 100 percent of unused sick leave 
(up to 1,000 hours), and 50 percent of any amount over 1,000 hours. Employees were required to transfer 100 percent of all 
accrued but unused vacation leave and up to 1,000 hours of sick leave (50 percent of any amount over 1,000 hours) into the 
Terminal Pay Plan if they retired, or separated employment due to death, after reaching the age of 55.

All accumulated and unused vacation and sick leave pay is recorded as an expense and as compensated absences liability at 
the time the benefit is earned. At the end of each fiscal year, the Water Authority conducts an analysis of historical annual leave 
payouts. Based on this analysis, the Water Authority recognizes 66 percent of the accrued but unused leave balances at June 30 
as a current liability with the remaining 34 percent of the balance recorded as a long-term liability. 

(g) Arbitrage Rebate 

Arbitrage is the difference between the interest paid on tax-exempt bonds and the interest earned by investing the proceeds 
in higher yielding taxable securities. Federal income tax laws generally restrict the ability to earn arbitrage and such amounts 
are accumulated in order to make arbitrage rebate payments to the federal government under the Internal Revenue Code. At 
the end of each fifth year computation period, the amount to be paid to the United States Treasury is equal to 90 percent of the 
Cumulative Rebate Liability amount (reduced by applicable computation date credits and any previous rebate payments made in 
connection with previous installment computation periods) and will be due not later than 60 days after the end of each fifth year 
computation period. The long-term liability amount represents 10 percent of the Cumulative Rebate Liability amount and will be 
due not later than 60 days after the final maturity date of the debt issuance. Should the debt be retired prior to the next five year 
rebate installment date, 100 percent of the Cumulative Rebate Liability amount (reduced by applicable computation date credits 
and any previous rebate payments made in connection with previous installment computation periods) as of such retirement date 
will become due and payable within 60 days.
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1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies, (continued)

(h) Net Position 

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by any debt outstanding, net of unspent proceeds, related to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets.

Restricted for construction projects – This component of net position consists of external constraints placed on net position 
use imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, less outstanding debt associated with restricted assets.

Restricted for debt service – This component of net position consists of amounts required by bond covenants to be set aside 
in reserve to be used to pay debt service in the event pledged revenues are insufficient to cover the debt service requirements, 
less outstanding debt associated with restricted assets. 

Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net investment in 
capital assets, restricted for construction projects, or restricted for debt service.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the Water Authority’s policy to use restricted resources first 
followed by unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(i) Infrastructure Access Charges

In June 1998, the Infrastructure Access Charge (IAC) was adopted by the Board as an additional source of fixed revenue to 
provide better coverage of the Water Authority’s projected fixed expenses. The IAC is levied on each Water Authority member 
agency based on the number and size of retail water meters within the agencies and the Water Authority’s service area. The fixed 
charge levied against each member agency together with the water standby charge and property tax revenue all combine for the 
purpose of maintaining a minimum ratio of projected fixed revenue to projected fixed expenses of at least 25 percent. The IAC is 
adjusted each calendar year as part of the regular rate-setting process and was $2.68 and $2.65 per meter equivalent per month 
for the Calendar Years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(j) Property Taxes 

The Water Authority is authorized under the Act to levy taxes on all taxable property within its boundaries for the purposes of 
carrying on its operations and paying its obligations subject to certain limitations in the Act, the Revenue and Taxation Code, and 
the California Constitution. 

Property taxes are billed and collected by the County of San Diego and are remitted to the Water Authority throughout the year. 
The tax rate is based upon the San Diego County Assessor’s valuation of taxable property within the Water Authority’s service 
area. In addition, the Water Authority collects an in-lieu charge from the City of San Diego.  

 (k) In-Lieu Charges

Member agencies of the Water Authority may elect to pay in-lieu charges instead of the tax levy. Presently, only the City of San 
Diego pays the in-lieu charge directly to the Water Authority.
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1. Nature of Business and Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies, (continued)

(l) Classifi cation of Revenues

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses 
generally result from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund’s principal 
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Water Authority consist of sales of water. Nonoperating revenues consist of 
property taxes, in-lieu charges, IAC, investment income, intergovernmental, and other miscellaneous income.

(m) Capital Contributions

Capital contributions include capacity charges, water standby availability charges, and contributions in aid of capital assets that 
are reflected in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Capital contributions consist 
of contributed capital assets and special charges that are legally restricted for capital expenses by state law or by the Board action 
that established those charges. 

The Water Authority has two separate revenue sources to fund the CIP. A water standby availability charge was put into effect in 
Fiscal Year 1990 and is intended to recover some of the capital costs associated with maintaining the system. In Fiscal Year 1991, 
a capacity charge on all new or larger retail water meters installed within the boundaries of the Water Authority was implemented. 
This charge, based on meter size, is designed to recover a proportionate share of the capital costs associated with providing 
services to new connections. 

Federal, state, and private grants used for capital purposes are included in contributions in aid of capital assets. These grants 
are typically of a reimbursable nature, that is the Water Authority first pays for the project and then the granting agency reimburses 
the Water Authority for its eligible expenses. 

(n) Classifi cation of Expenses

Operating expenses for the Water Authority include the cost of sales, operations and maintenance, planning, general and 
administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets, and amortization of intangible assets. Expenses not meeting this definition 
are reported as nonoperating expenses and include interest expense, debt issuance costs, amortization of bond premiums, 
amortization of deferred loss on refunding, and other miscellaneous expenses. 

(o) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ 
from estimates. Management believes that all estimates in the financial statements are reasonable.

(p) Reclassifi cations

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
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2. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements
The Water Authority implemented, effective for Fiscal Year 2013 as required, GASB Statements No. 60 through No. 64. The 

Water Authority also elected to early implement, effective for Fiscal Year 2013, GASB Statements No. 65 and No. 66, required for 
fiscal year 2014. The financial statements included herein apply the requirements and provisions of these statements, including 
necessary retroactive adjustments to financial statement classifications and presentations for all years presented. A summary of 
each implemented GASB statement and the impact on the Water Authority financial statements is included below.

(a) Required Implementation in Fiscal Year 2013  

Statement No. 60 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements (Issued 11/2010)

The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession arrangements 
(SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. As used in this Statement, an SCA is an arrangement 
between a transferor (a government) and an operator (governmental or nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys 
to an operator the right and related obligation to provide services through the use of infrastructure or another public asset (a facility) 
in exchange for significant consideration and (2) the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties.

The requirements of this Statement were effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The 
provisions of this Statement generally are required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented.

This Statement does not impact the Water Authority as the Water Authority does not currently have any service concession 
arrangements in which the operator (non-governmental entity) collects and is compensated by fees from third parties.  

Statement No. 61 - The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34 
(Issued 11/2010)

The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements 
of Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, were amended to better 
meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements.

The provisions of this Statement were effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.

This Statement does not change the financial reporting for the Water Authority and its blended component units, SDCWAFC and 
SDCWAFA. All criteria for remaining a blended component unit are met for these two entities.
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2. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, (continued)

(a) Required Implementation in Fiscal Year 2013, (continued)  

Statement No. 62 - Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (Issued 12/2010)

The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting 
guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with 
or contradict GASB pronouncements:

  FASB Statements and Interpretations

  Accounting Principles Board Opinions

  Accounting Research Bulletins of the AICPA Committee on Accounting Procedure

Hereinafter, these pronouncements collectively are referred to as the “FASB and AICPA pronouncements.” 

This Statement also supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other 
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 of that 
Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB Statements and Interpretations 
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. However, those entities can continue to apply, as other accounting 
literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB pronouncements that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, including 
this Statement.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The 
provisions of this Statement generally are required to be applied retroactively for all periods presented. This pronouncement 
clarifies which authoritative accounting literature is applicable to the Water Authority and therefore provides more certainty as 
research is conducted to handle unique accounting issues as they arise. This Statement does not impact the financial statements 
of the Water Authority.
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2. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, (continued)

(a) Required Implementation in Fiscal Year 2013, (continued)  

Statement No. 63 - Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
Position (Issued 06/2011)

This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. 
Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net 
assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of net assets by the government that 
is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting 
those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. 

Concepts Statement No. 4 also identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial 
position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure 
and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets.

The provisions of this Statement were effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.

Implementation of this Statement impacts the presentation of financial information and changes the header names of the 
financial statements themselves as well as section titles in the statements. Implementation does not, however, impact the change 
in net position reported by the Water Authority.

Statement No. 64 - Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions—An Amendment 
of GASB Statement No. 53 (Issued 06/2011)

Some governments have entered into interest rate swap agreements and commodity swap agreements in which a swap 
counterparty, or the swap counterparty’s credit support provider, commits or experiences either an act of default or a termination 
event as both are described in the swap agreement. Many of those governments have replaced their swap counterparty, or swap 
counterparty’s credit support providers, either by amending existing swap agreements or by entering into new swap agreements. 
When these swap agreements have been reported as hedging instruments, questions have arisen regarding the application of the 
termination of hedge accounting provisions in Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. 
Those provisions require a government to cease hedge accounting upon the termination of the hedging derivative instrument, 
resulting in the immediate recognition of the deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources as a component of 
investment income.

The objective of this Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the replacement of a swap 
counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider. This Statement sets forth criteria that establish when the effective 
hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. 

The provisions of this Statement were effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2011.

This Statement does not impact the Water Authority.
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2. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, (continued)

(b) Required Implementation in Fiscal Year 2014, Implemented in Fiscal Year 2013

Statement No. 65 - Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities (Issued 03/2012)

This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or 
deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of 
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined the elements included in financial 
statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition, Concepts Statement No. 4 
provides that reporting a deferred outflows of resources or a deferred inflows of resources should be limited to those instances 
identified by the Board in authoritative pronouncements that are established after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance 
of this Statement, only two such pronouncements have been issued. Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting 
for Derivative Instruments, requires the reporting of a deferred outflows of resources or a deferred inflows of resources for the 
changes in fair value of hedging derivative instruments, and Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service 
Concession Arrangements, requires a deferred inflows of resources to be reported by a transferor government in a qualifying 
service concession arrangement. This Statement amends the financial statement element classification of certain items previously 
reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the definitions in Concepts Statement No. 4.

This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and 
limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The 
Water Authority has elected to early implement this statement; contemporaneously with implementing Statement No. 63.

This Statement impacts the Water Authority financial reporting as follows: 

Debt issuance costs - Previously these costs were capitalized on the Statement of Net Position and amortized over the remaining 
life of the associated debt. Statement No. 65 requires that these costs be recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

Other amounts associated with certain items were reclassified as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources 
as required. Examples include grant amounts received in advance of timing requirements deposits receivable, deposits payable, 
and deferred amounts from the refunding of debt.
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2. Implementation of New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, (continued) 

(b) Required Implementation in Fiscal Year 2014, Implemented in Fiscal Year 2013, (continued)

Statement No. 66 - Technical Corrections—2012—An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62 
(Issued 03/2012)

The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity 
by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance 
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements.

This Statement amends Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance 
Issues, by removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing activities to the general fund and the 
internal service fund type. As a result, governments should base their decisions about fund type classification on the nature of the 
activity to be reported, as required in Statement No. 54 and Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments. 

This Statement also amends Statement No. 62 by modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments 
that vary from a straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the principal amount of a 
purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate 
differs significantly from a current (normal) servicing fee rate. These changes clarify how to apply Statement No. 13, Accounting 
for Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in Statement 
No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, 
respectively.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The Water 
Authority elected to early implement this Statement; contemporaneously with implementing Statement No. 62.

Under this Statement, operating leases are reported using the fair value method. This does not currently impact the Water 
Authority. The remainder of this Statement also does not impact the Water Authority.

(c) Upcoming Governmental Accounting Standards  Implementation

Statement No. 68 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 
(Issued 06/2012)

In June 2012, GASB issued this Statement which is intended to improve the usefulness of information in government entity 
financial reports. This information will enhance the accountability and inter-period equity reporting by requiring recognition of the 
entire net pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension expense calculation. Information and accountability will 
also be enhanced through new note disclosures and additional required supplementary information disclosures. This statement is 
required to be implemented beginning in fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.



 Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 20134 4

Notes to the Financial Statements, continuedComprehensive Annual Financial Report 

3.  Cash and Investments 
Cash and investments are classified in the accompanying Statements of Net Position at June 30 as follows: 

 2014 2013
Current assets:
     Cash and investments $        1,609,258 $       26,551,885
     Restricted cash and investments 337,066,803 330,474,753
        Total current assets 338,676,061 357,026,638
Noncurrent assets:
     Cash and investments 200,567,595 184,467,758 
     Restricted cash and investments 16,715,590 31,110,211
        Total noncurrent assets 217,283,185 215,577,969

Total cash and investments $    555,959,246 $     572,604,607

The carrying value of cash and investments held by the Water Authority at June 30 consisted of the following:

 2014 2013
Petty cash $                2,500 $                2,500
Deposits 4,680,356 3,126,362
Investments 551,276,390 569,475,745
Total cash and investments $     555,959,246 $     572,604,607
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3. Cash and Investments, (continued) 

(a) Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the Water Authority’s Investment   
 Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the Water Authority by the California Government Code 
(Gov’t. Code) and the Water Authority’s Investment Policy (Inv. Policy). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California 
Government Code (or the Water Authority’s Investment Policy, if more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration 
of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions 
of debt agreements of the Water Authority rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code Sections 53600 
et seq or the Water Authority’s Investment Policy.            

Notes:
(1) Authorized by Gov’t. Code Section 53684 (a).
(2) Authorized by Gov’t. Code Section 16429.1.
(3) These investments are not authorized by the Inv. Policy.
(4) The combined Gov’t. Code maximum portfolio exposure to placement service certificates of deposit and negotiable certificates of deposit is 30 percent.
(5) The combined Inv. Policy maximum portfolio exposure to placement service certificates of deposit and negotiable certificates of deposit is 15 percent.
(6) The combined Inv. Policy maximum investment in one issuer for placement service certificates of deposit and negotiable certificates of deposit is five percent.
(7) Must have a minimum rating of “AA” by at least one of the three credit rating agencies and not rated lower than “A” by the other two.

Maximum
Maturity

Maximum 
Percentage 
of Portfolio

Maximum 
Investment in One 

Issuer
Minimum
 Rating

Gov’t. 
Code

Inv. 
Policy

Gov’t.
Code

Inv. 
Policy

Gov’t. 
Code

Inv. 
Policy

Gov’t. 
Code

Inv. 
Policy

Local agency bonds 5 years 5 years None 20% None 5% None A

U.S. Treasury securities 5 years 5 years None None None None None None

Federal agency securities 5 years 5 years None 85% None None None None

Bankers’ acceptances 180 days 180 days 40% 20% 30% 5% None A

Commercial paper 270 days 270 days 25% 25% 10% 5% A1/P1/F1 A1/P1/F1

Certificates of deposit 5 years 5 years 30% 15% None None None None

Placement service deposits 5 years 5 years    30% (4)    15% (5) None    5% (6) None None

Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 5 years    30% (4)    15% (5) None    5% (6) None   AA (7)

Repurchase agreements 1 year 1 year None 20% None None None A

Reverse repurchase agreements 92 days 92 days 20% of portfolio 
base value

20% of portfolio 
base value None None None None

Medium-term notes 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None 5% A   AA (7)

Mutual funds n/a (3) 20% (3) 10% (3) AAA (3)

Money market mutual funds n/a n/a 20% 15% None None AAA AAA

Mortgage pass-through securities 5 years (3) 20% (3) None (3) AA (3)

County pooled investment funds (1) n/a (3) None (3) None (3) None (3)

JPA pools (other investment pools) n/a n/a None 25% None None None AAA

Local agency investment fund (LAIF) (2) n/a n/a None $50M None None None None
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3. Cash and Investments, (continued) 

(b) Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements  

Investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the Water Authority’s Investment Policy. In addition to the investments authorized 
in the previous table, debt proceeds held by bond trustees may be invested in guaranteed investment contracts with a maximum 
maturity that is limited to the final maturity of the bonds being issued.

(c) Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, 
the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is to changes in market interest rates. One of the 
ways that the Water Authority manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter-term and longer-
term investments, and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or approaching maturity 
evenly over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Water Authority’s investments (including investments held by bond 
trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Water Authority’s 
investments by terms to maturity for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Fiscal Year 2014 Remaining Term to Maturity
Fair 12 months 13 to 36 37 to 60 More than

Investment Type Value or less months months 60 months
U.S. Treasury securities  $   64,870,725 $    17,799,903 $   42,120,432 $     4,950,390 $                      - 
Federal agency securities  243,247,149  89,752,458  136,611,991  16,882,700  - 
Commercial paper  54,898,126  54,898,126  -  -  - 
LAIF  164,951,847  164,951,847  -  -  - 
JPA pools  6,089,678  6,089,678  -  -  - 
Money market mutual funds  503,276  503,276  -  -  - 
Held by bond trustees:

   Money market mutual funds  58,784  58,784  -  -  - 
   Federal agency securities  4,416,030  4,416,030  -  -  - 
   Guaranteed investment contracts  12,240,775  -  -  -  12,240,775 

Fiscal Year 2014 Total $  551,276,390 $  338,470,102 $ 178,732,423 $   21,833,090 $     12,240,775 
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3. Cash and Investments, (continued) 

(c) Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk, (continued) 

(d) Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfil its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is 
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented in the tables on the 
following page for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, respectively, is the minimum rating required (where applicable) by the California 
Government Code, the Water Authority’s Investment Policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each 
investment type.

Fiscal Year 2013 Remaining Term to Maturity
Fair 12 months 13 to 36 37 to 60 More than

Investment Type Value or less months months 60 months
U.S. Treasury securities $    58,284,182 $       15,183,405 $      28,014,062 $    15,086,715 $                     -
Federal agency securities 260,590,975 106,675,211 143,922,224 9,993,540 -
Commercial paper 29,764,152 29,764,152 - - -
LAIF 171,925,162 171,925,162 - - -
JPA pools 31,700,691 31,700,691 - - -
Money market mutual funds 503,247 503,247 - - -
Held by bond trustees:

   Money market mutual funds 20,162 20,162 - - -
   Federal agency securities 4,446,399 - 4,446,399 - -
   Guaranteed investment contracts 12,240,775 - - - 12,240,775
Fiscal Year 2013 Total $  569,475,745 $     355,772,030 $    176,382,685 $    25,080,255 $    12,240,775
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3. Cash and Investments, (continued) 

(d) Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk, (continued)
Rating as of Fiscal Year-Ended June 30, 2014

Minimum Exempt
Fair Legal From

Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA/AA+ A1 Not Rated
U.S. Treasury securities $     64,870,725 n/a $   64,870,725  $                     -  $                  - $                   - 
Federal agency securities  243,247,149 n/a  -  243,247,149  -  - 
Commercial paper  54,898,126 A1  -  -  54,898,126  - 
LAIF  164,951,847 n/a  -  -  -  164,951,847 
JPA pools  6,089,678 AAAm  -  6,089,678  -  - 
Money market mutual funds  503,276 AAAm  -  503,276  -  - 
Held by bond trustees:
   Money market mutual funds  58,784 AAAm  -  58,784  -  - 
   Federal agency securities  4,416,030 n/a  -  4,416,030  -  - 
   Guaranteed investment contracts  12,240,775 n/a  -  -  -  12,240,775 
Total $   551,276,390 $   64,870,725  $  254,314,917  $ 54,898,126 $177,192,622 

Rating as of Fiscal Year-Ended June 30, 2013
Minimum Exempt

Fair Legal From
Investment Type Value Rating Disclosure AAA/AA+ A1 Not Rated
U.S. Treasury securities $    58,284,182 n/a $   58,284,182 $                     - $                 - $                   -
Federal agency securities 260,590,975 n/a - 260,590,975 - -
Commercial paper 29,764,152 A1 - - 29,764,152 -
LAIF 171,925,162 n/a - - - 171,925,162
JPA pools 31,700,691 AAAm - 31,700,691 - -
Money market mutual funds 503,247 AAAm - 503,247 - -
Held by bond trustees:
   Money market mutual funds 20,162 AAAm - 20,162 - -
   Federal agency securities 4,446,399 n/a - 4,446,399 - -
   Guaranteed investment contracts 12,240,775 n/a - - - 12,240,775
Total $   569,475,745 $   58,284,182 $   297,261,474 $  29,764,152 $184,165,937
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3.  Cash and Investments, (continued)

(e) Concentration of Credit Risk

Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, money market mutual funds, and external investment 
pools) that represent five percent or more of total Water Authority investments are as follows for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

Fiscal Year 2014
  Reported         % of Total
 Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal agency securities  $   113,330,690 20.6%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal agency securities 91,834,145 16.7%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal agency securities 33,075,670 6.0%

Fiscal Year 2013
  Reported         % of Total
 Issuer Investment Type Amount Investments
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Federal agency securities $     119,178,938 20.9%
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal agency securities  82,739,627 14.5%
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal agency securities 34,842,887 6.1%
Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal agency securities 28,275,922 5.0%

(f) Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a government 
will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (for example, broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the Water Authority’s Investment Policy do not contain legal 
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments other than the following 
provision for deposits: the California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local 
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent 
of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure deposits by pledging 
first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits. The Water Authority was not exposed 
to custodial credit risk as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.
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3. Cash and Investments, (continued)

(g) Investment in State Investment Pool

The Water Authority is a voluntary participant in LAIF that is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the 
oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the Water Authority’s investment in the pool is reported in the 
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the Water Authority’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF 
for the entire LAIF portfolio. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which 
is recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

The total amount invested by all public agencies in LAIF as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $21.1 billion and $21.2 billion, 
respectively. LAIF is part of the California Pooled Money Investment Account (PMIA), which as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 had 
a balance of $64.8 billion and $58.8 billion, respectively, and of those amounts, 1.86 percent and 1.96 percent were invested 
in medium-term and short-term structured notes, and asset-backed securities as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The 
average maturity of PMIA investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was 232 days and 278 days, respectively.  

(h) JPA Pools

The Water Authority is a voluntary participant in California Asset Management Program (CAMP), a California Joint Powers 
Authority that falls under California Government Code Section 53601(p), which is directed by a Board of Trustees that is made up 
of experienced local government finance directors and treasurers. CAMP had a balance of $1.7 billion and $2.1 billion at June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively, with a weighted average maturity of 41 days and 37 days, respectively. The value of the pool shares 
in CAMP, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an amortized cost basis, the same as the fair value of the Water Authority’s 
position in the pool.

4. Inventories 
Inventories consist of water, valves, and materials in storage and are valued using the average cost method. Components of 

inventories at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

 2014 2013
Water in storage $      27,158,674 $    15,166,096
Valves in storage    276,656 768,958
Materials in storage 154,574 147,037
     Total inventories $      27,589,904 $   16,082,091

5. Prepaid Expenses  
In March 2008, the Water Authority purchased 10,006 and 13,071 acre-feet of transfer water from the Butte Water District and 

Sutter Extension Water District, respectively, for a total of 23,077 acre-feet. As part of the transfer, the Water Authority incurred 
a Delta carriage loss of 20 percent, a conveyance loss of three percent and evaporative and aquifer losses of ten percent. After 
the adjustments, the total acre-feet for Butte Water District and Sutter Extension Water District are 6,930 and 9,187, respectively, 
a total of 16,117 acre-feet. This water is currently stored outside the Water Authority’s service area pursuant to a long-term 
groundwater storage agreement as outlined in Note 9d. As such, it is classified as prepaid expenses on the Statements of Net 
Position in the amount of $4,620,500 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Also included in prepaid expenses are payments to the Water Authority’s benefits administrator for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013 
in the amount of $17,093 and $16,836, respectively. The total prepaid expenses balance as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 was 
$4,637,593 and $4,637,336, respectively.
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6. Long-Term Loan Receivables

 Imperial Irrigation District

In October 2003, the Water Authority amended the Transfer Agreement with IID. As part of this amendment, the Water Authority 
made initial socioeconomic impact payments of $10.0 million in four installments. These funds will be used to pay for the initial 
administrative costs, and estimated and annual cumulative socioeconomic impact costs. 

Beginning in Calendar Year 2019, the Water Authority will begin receiving credits from IID to be applied against any payments 
due and shall continue until Calendar Year 2048 or until the agreement is terminated, whichever comes first. If the agreement 
terminates before Calendar Year 2048, IID is under no obligation to pay the Water Authority the remaining balance of the loan. 

Under the terms of the amended agreement, in December 2007, the Water Authority paid IID $10.0 million for future deliveries 
of water. Interest on the prepayment shall begin to accrue on December 31, 2019 using the Water Authority’s weighted average 
cost of funds for its short-term and long-term debt outstanding as shown in the Water Authority’s annual financial report for each 
fiscal year ending June 30. If not repaid sooner, beginning on December 31, 2019 through December 31, 2033, IID shall credit the 
Water Authority’s monthly invoice for conserved water in 180 equal monthly installments of $55,556 plus accrued interest. As of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the total long-term loan receivables balance was $20,000,000.
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Balance at 

June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions Transfers
Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $         19,291,657 $                      - $                       - $          3,042,325
Easements 7,301,686 1,100 - 307,338
Mitigation bank (Note 8) 2,644,029 2,372,994 - -

Storage rights - - - 41,016,383 (3)

Construction in progress 637,434,621 126,725,906  (1) (4,953,587)  (307,490,797)
Total capital assets not depreciated 666,671,993 129,100,000 (4,953,587) (263,124,751)

Capital assets being depreciated:
Pipelines and dams 1,645,493,121 - - 140,637,864
Facilities 635,616,230 633,467 (400,780) 108,983,506
Equipment 32,307,160 688,594 (369,883) 2,125,594
Computer systems software 4,995,235 - - 2,648,874
Participation and capacity rights (Note 9) 491,565,179 2,707,637 - 8,728,913
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,809,976,925 4,029,698 (770,663) 263,124,751

Accumulated depreciation and 
     amortization (Note 1e):
Pipelines and dams (230,309,402) (21,650,238) - -
Facilities (91,772,844) (16,266,036) 110,215 -
Equipment (24,939,297) (2,766,611) 369,883 -
Computer systems software (3,835,901) (543,532) - -
Participation and capacity rights (Note 9) (34,044,466) (11,033,560) - -

Total accumulated depreciation and amortization (384,901,910) (52,259,977) 480,098 -

Capital assets, net of depreciation and
    amortization 2,425,075,015 (48,230,279) (290,565) 263,124,751

Total capital assets $    3,091,747,008 $     80,869,721 $      (5,244,152) $                         -

7. Capital Assets
Capital Asset activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013:

Notes: 
(1) Additions include capitalized interest of $20.6 million and $16.1 million for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, respectively.
(2) Construction in progress deletion is for demolition costs for Otay 3 Flow Control Facilities (FCF).
(3) As a result of the facilities constructed for the City of San Diego as part of the Lake Hodges Pump Storage Inlet/Outlet Project, 
the Water Authority acquired the right to store 20,000 acre-feet of water in Lake Hodges Reservoir in perpetuity.
(4) Includes $27,285,920 asset adjustments related to the Lake Hodges settlement agreement.
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Balance at 
June 30, 2013 Additions Deletions Transfers

Balance as of 
June 30, 2014

$           22,333,982 $           910,690 $                         - $                      - $           23,244,672
7,610,124 321,168 - 2,077 7,933,369
5,017,023 - - - 5,017,023

41,016,383 - - - 41,016,383
451,716,143 122,126,546   (1) (38,885) (2) (17,905,451) 555,898,353
527,693,655 123,358,404 (38,885) (17,903,374) 633,109,800

1,786,130,985 - - 4,595,730 1,790,726,715
744,832,423 610,184 (27,291,589)  (4) 13,011,839 731,162,857

34,751,465 595,560 (162,885) 18,002 35,202,142
7,644,109 - - 273,611 7,917,720

503,001,729 5,777,071 - 4,192 508,782,992
3,076,360,711 6,982,815 (27,454,474) 17,903,374 3,073,792,426

(251,959,640) (21,314,582) - - (273,274,222)
(107,928,665) (20,750,651) 5,669 - (128,673,647)

(27,336,025) (2,590,375) 162,885 - (29,763,515)
(4,379,433) (1,091,718) - - (5,471,151)

(45,078,026) (10,842,292) - - (55,920,318)

(436,681,789) (56,589,618) 168,554 - (493,102,853)

2,639,678,922 (49,606,803) (27,285,920) 17,903,374 2,580,689,573
$      3,167,372,577 $      73,751,601 $      (27,324,805) $                      - $      3,213,799,373

7. Capital Assets, (continued)
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8. Mitigation Bank  
The Mitigation Bank contains purchased rights to designate the future use of land in which title is held by another entity. This 

acreage includes wetland, stream, or other open space areas that have been restored, established, enhanced, or preserved for 
the purpose of providing compensation to the public for unavoidable impacts to the environment permitted under Section 404 of 
the Federal Clean Water Act or other state or local regulation. The Water Authority transfers a proportionate share of the cost of 
the Mitigation Bank to the capital project at the time the acreage is identified to mitigate the impacts from a specific project. These 
costs are then amortized over the estimated useful life of the related asset. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, the value of acreage 
remaining was $5,017,023, respectively.

     
                                                                                                    Acres

Mitigations Site Total Remaining
Crestridge Habitat Management Area (HMA)  258.45 25.71
San Miguel Conservation 820.85 820.85
Mitigation Bank Total 1,079.30 846.56

9. Participation and Capacity Rights  
The Water Authority builds capital assets that, by agreement, entitle it to certain participation and capacity rights. The total 

participation and capacity rights, net of amortization, were $452,862,674 and $457,923,703 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.

(a) Quantifi cation Settlement Agreement Joint Powers Authority Participation Rights

Pursuant to the Quantification Settlement Agreement Joint Powers Authority (QSA JPA) Creation and Funding Agreement 
(Agreement), the Water Authority agreed with IID, Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD), and the State of California, to accept 
responsibility for certain environmental mitigation requirements.  

Under Article IX of the Agreement, the environmental mitigation contribution required by the Water Authority net of amortization 
was $49,585,489 and $49,990,931 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amortization is computed using the acre-feet 
assigned per calendar year over the 75-year life of the Agreement. 

In addition, the Agreement required the Water Authority to pay, net of amortization, $8,965,235 and $9,226,994 as of June 30, 
2014 and 2013, respectively, as a contribution to the Salton Sea Restoration Fund. Amortization is computed utilizing the straight-
line method over the 75-year life of the Agreement. 

Legal expenses associated with the right to purchase water capitalized due to the MWD litigation for June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
net of amortization, totaled $11,971,174 and $6,299,339, respectively, and are amortized utilizing the straight-line method over 
the life of the Agreement of 75 years. The QSA JPA is not a named party to the Water Authority litigation challenging MWD’s rate 
structure.

(b) Imperial Irrigation District Socioeconomic Participation Rights

IID and the Water Authority resolved a dispute concerning the nature and extent of the obligations and covenants under Section 
14.5 of the Revised Fourth Amendment to the Agreement between IID and the Water Authority for the Transfer of Conserved 
Water by agreeing to additional annual payments to be made to IID. Participation rights, net of amortization, totaled $8,856,000 
and $11,808,000 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being amortized using the straight-line method over ten 
years.
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9. Participation and Capacity Rights, (continued) 

(c) Canal Lining Participation Rights

On October 10, 2003 the Water Authority assumed MWD’s rights and obligations for the All-American Canal and Coachella 
Canal Lining Projects under Article 4A of the Colorado River Water Delivery Settlement Allocation agreement between the United 
States, MWD, IID, CVWD, and the San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority (SLR). The agreement, net of amortization, required 
payment of $3,701,791 and $3,759,391 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, to IID for MWD’s outstanding obligations. 

The agreement specifically assigned the project of lining the Coachella Canal, which is a branch from the Colorado River and 
is owned by the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BOR), to the Water Authority. The lining of the canal was in order to control water 
seepage through the previous unlined canal. The Coachella Canal now provides a firm supply of 21,500 acre-feet per year to 
the Water Authority. The cost of the project was offset by a funding agreement with the Department of Water Resources for 
$79,447,974. Participation rights for this project, net of amortization, totaled $117,128,205 and $118,230,275 as of June 30, 2014 
and 2013, respectively, and are amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the life of the agreement, which is 110 years.

The agreement executed January 13, 2006 between BOR, IID, and the Water Authority for the construction of the All-American 
Canal Lining Project provides for the construction of the canal by IID with oversight by the Water Authority and the BOR. The 
All-American Canal provides 56,200 acre-feet per year to the Water Authority annually for 110 years. The Department of Water 
Resources funded $135.7 million for construction of the All-American Canal Lining Project, and the Water Authority funded the 
amount over the state subsidy. Participation rights for this project, net of amortization, totaled $148,170,742 and $149,558,683 
as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the life of the agreement of 
110 years.

(d) Vidler and Semitropic Participation Rights

In July 2008, the Water Authority entered into agreements with Vidler Water Company (Vidler) and Semitropic-Rosamond 
Water Bank (Semitropic) that entitles the Water Authority to storage, withdrawal, and exchange rights within the Semitropic Water 
Banking and Exchange Program, the Semitropic Water Bank Recovery Unit, and the Antelope Valley Water Bank.

The Water Authority bought Vidler’s 30,000 acre-feet of storage and recovery rights in the Semitropic Water Storage District’s 
underground basin in Kern County. The Water Authority also invested in Semitropic, which will provide a total of 40,000 acre-feet 
of storage rights, for a total amount of 70,000 acre-feet.

Storage and recovery rights for this program totaled, net of amortization, $9,186,285 and $9,613,555 for Vidler and $11,798,780 
and $12,347,561 for Semitropic as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These rights are amortized using the straight-line 
method over the life of the agreements, which end in 2035. 
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9. Participation and Capacity Rights, (continued) 

(e)  Levy Treatment Plant Capacity Rights 

In April 1997, the Water Authority entered into a capacity agreement with Helix Water District (Helix) for installation of an 
untreated water transmission pipeline, a flow control facility, and expansion of the R.M. Levy Water Treatment Plant (Levy Plant). 
Helix owns, operates, and maintains the Levy Plant and agreed to its phased expansion to 106 million gallons per day (mgd). In 
accordance with the April 1997 agreement, the Water Authority has capacity rights of 26 mgd. In April 2006, a third amendment 
to the agreement with Helix transferred to the Water Authority an additional 10 mgd capacity in the Levy Plant, for total capacity 
rights of 36 mgd. The Water Authority paid $10.6 million to Helix for 10 mgd of additional capacity in the Levy Plant, $300,000 to 
Helix for 4 mgd of additional capacity in the 54-inch transmission main (for Lakeside Water District), $1.5 million to Helix for 8 mgd 
of additional capacity in Helix Flume Pipeline (for Otay Water District), and $600,000 to Helix for 12 mgd of additional capacity in 
Helix Flume Pipeline (for Padre Dam Municipal Water District). Capacity rights for Levy Treatment Plant Capacity Purchases, net 
of amortization, totaled $12,137,657 and $12,517,949 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being amortized using 
the straight-line method over 35 years.

(f) Los Coches Pump Station and Helix Flume Pipeline Capacity Rights

In April 2006, the Water Authority entered into an agreement with Helix regarding implementation of the East County Regional 
Treated Water Improvement Program (ECRTWIP). The purpose of the ECRTWIP is to significantly improve the regional water 
treatment capacity in East County by maximizing utilization of the Levy Plant to provide additional capacity to Otay Water District, 
Lakeside Water District, and Padre Dam Municipal Water District. The Los Coches Pump Station, which pumps into the Helix 
Flume Pipeline, was increased from 22 mgd to 64 mgd, with the Water Authority having capacity rights to 24 mgd. A section of 
the Helix Flume Pipeline had to be replaced with a new 48-inch steel pipe to withstand the increased pressure, with the Water 
Authority having capacity rights to 12 mgd. Capacity rights for Los Coches Pump Station totaled $3,328,215 and $3,890,731 as of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and for Helix Flume Pipeline, net of amortization, totaled $2,977,549 and $3,480,797 as of 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being amortized using the straight-line method over ten years.

(g) Moreno-Lakeside Pipeline Capacity Rights

In June 2001, the Water Authority and Helix executed the first amendment to the 1997 Capacity Agreement. Capacity rights for 
this project, net of amortization, totaled $2,709,043 and $3,386,774 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being 
amortized using the straight-line method over ten years, which began when the project was capitalized in Fiscal Year 2008. Otay 
Water District constructed a new pipeline from the Otay 14 Flow Control Facility (FCF) location to the regulatory reservoirs in the 
Otay System. The Water Authority reimbursed Otay Water District for the new pipeline and Otay Water District agreed to purchase 
at least 10,000 acre-feet of water per calendar year from the Water Authority. The capacity rights added to the Moreno-Lakeside 
Pipeline, net of amortization, totaled $2,711,631 and $3,390,009 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being 
amortized using the straight-line method over ten years.

(h) Imperial Irrigation District Water Transfer – Base Contract Price Settlement Participation Rights

IID and the Water Authority executed an agreement that settled all disputes related to the Base Contract Price and the Water 
Authority/IID Conserved Water Transfer Agreement as stated in the Fifth Amendment to the agreement. Participation rights for this 
agreement, net of amortization, totaled $50,496,770 and $50,971,662 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and are being 
amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the 75-year life of the agreement.



Notes to the Financial Statements, continuedComprehensive Annual Financial Report 

 Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 5 7

9. Participation and Capacity Rights, (continued) 

(i) Rancho Canada Permit for Endangered Species 

The Water Authority funded property in the amount of, net of amortization, $5,593,941 and $5,699,653 as of June 30, 2014 and 
2013, respectively, owned by the Department of Fish and Game (DFG) for permits for endangered species for 55 years. The Water 
Authority will be allowed to count the property as mitigation to satisfy any permit requirements issued for Emergency Storage 
Projects (ESP) and Carryover Storage Projects (CSP) pursuant to the Federal and State Endangered Species Acts, Federal Clean 
Water Act, California Porter-Cologne Act, and California Fish and Game Code Section 1602 to the extent the agency issuing the 
permit agrees the property provides suitable mitigation for impacts. Any acreage not applied as mitigation for ESP or CSP will be 
available to the Water Authority to be credited toward Water Authority mitigation and conservation obligations for future Water 
Authority CIP projects, maintenance and operation activities, urgent repairs, and emergency actions as described in the Water 
Authority Natural Communities Conservation Plan.

(j) Lake Hodges Pumped Storage Inlet/Outlet Storage Rights

The Lake Hodges Projects are part of the Water Authority’s ESP, which consists of a system of reservoirs, interconnected 
pipelines, and pumping stations designed to make water available to the San Diego region in the event of an interruption in 
imported water deliveries. The Lake Hodges Projects connect the City of San Diego’s Hodges Reservoir, also called Lake Hodges, 
to the Water Authority’s Olivenhain Reservoir. The connection provides the ability to store 20,000 acre-feet of water in Hodges 
Reservoir for emergency use. Storage Rights for Lake Hodges Pumped Storage, net of amortization, totaled $3,544,167 and 
$3,751,399 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013.

10. Short-Term Liabilities
The Water Authority has a Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper (TECP) program through which it can borrow funds on a tax-exempt 

basis for periods up to 270 days to provide financing for the Water Authority’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The Water 
Authority has remarketing agreements with five separate broker-dealers: Bank of America Securities LLC/Merrill Lynch, Citigroup 
Global Markets Inc., Goldman, Sachs and Co., JPMorgan Chase & Co., and Morgan Stanley and Co. LLC. The remarketing fees 
for the various dealer agreements range from 0.05 percent to 0.10 percent per annum on the par amount of TECP outstanding. 
No advances have been made under any of the revolving credit and term loan agreements during the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2014 and 2013.

In Fiscal Year 2014, the Water Authority added an Extendable Commercial Paper (ECP) program to provide financing for the 
Water Authority’s CIP. ECP offers a lower cost of funds than TECP, but is only available to highly rated agencies like the Water 
Authority. The Water Authority has the ability to access the capital markets and redeem the notes before the end of the 150 day 
extension period. ECP maturities are limited to between 1 and 120 days to allow a 150 day extension period and maintain a 
maximum maturity of 270 days. There is no bank support associated with ECP; therefore, the dealers play a more central role. This 
moderately sized program provides the Water Authority significant cost savings and the opportunity to add a new debt instrument 
to enable the debt portfolio to be better optimized. 

The TECP and ECP notes are secured and payable on a parity basis solely from net water revenues and are subordinate to the 
Water Revenue Certificates of Participation (COPs), Water Revenue Bonds, and Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. At June 30, 
2014 and 2013, the Water Authority had short-term debt outstanding of $360,000,000.
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10. Short-Term Liabilities, (continued)

(a) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1

The Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1 (the Series 1 
Notes) were issued for a total maximum authorized amount 
of $110,000,000. The Series 1 Notes have liquidity support 
in the form of a revolving credit and term loan agreement 
with Bayerische Landesbank and, unless otherwise 
extended, will terminate on November 30, 2015. During 
the term of the agreement, the Water Authority paid annual 
commitment fees of 0.50 percent based on the par amount 
of the commitment. The Water Authority terminated this 
agreement on April 2, 2014. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
the balance outstanding was $0 and $110,000,000, 
respectively.

(b) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 4

On June 29, 2011, the Commercial Paper Notes, Series 
4 (the Series 4 Notes) were issued for a total maximum 
authorized amount of $100,000,000. The Series 4 Notes 
have liquidity support in the form of a revolving credit and 
term loan agreement with Barclays Bank PLC and during 
the term of the agreement, the Water Authority paid annual 
commitment fees of 0.60 percent based on the par amount 
of the commitment. The Water Authority terminated this 
agreement on June 27, 2013. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, 
the balance outstanding was $0.

(c) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 5

On June 29, 2011, the Commercial Paper Notes, Series 
5 (the Series 5 Notes) were issued for a total maximum 
authorized amount of $100,000,000. The Series 5 Notes have 
liquidity support in the form of a revolving credit and term loan 
agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. and, unless otherwise 
extended, will terminate on June 27, 2016. Effective March 3, 
2014, the Water Authority pays annual commitment fees of 
0.325 percent, reduced from 0.60 percent, based on the par 
amount of the commitment. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the 
balance outstanding was $100,000,000.

(d) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 6

On June 29, 2011, the Commercial Paper Notes, Series 
6 (the Series 6 Notes) were issued for a total maximum 
authorized amount of $50,000,000. The Series 6 Notes have 
liquidity support in the form of a revolving credit and term 
loan agreement with Citibank, N.A. and, unless otherwise 
extended, will terminate on June 27, 2014. During the term of 
the agreement, the Water Authority paid annual commitment 
fees of 0.60 percent based on the par amount of the 
commitment. The Water Authority terminated this agreement 
on June 19, 2014. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the balance 
outstanding was $0 and $50,000,000.

Short-term liabilities activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Balance at
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions

Balance at
June 30, 2013

Short-term debt:
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1 $     110,000,000 $                       - $                        - $   110,000,000 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 4  100,000,000  -  (100,000,000)  - 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 5  100,000,000  -  -  100,000,000 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 6  50,000,000  -  -  50,000,000 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 7  -  100,000,000  -  100,000,000 
Commercial Paper Notes, Series 8  -  -  -  - 
Extendable Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1  -  -  -  - 
Total short-term debt $     360,000,000 $    100,000,000 $   (100,000,000) $   360,000,000 
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(g) Extendable Commercial Paper Notes, Series 1

On June 19, 2014, the Extendable Commercial Paper 
Notes, Series 1 (the Series 1 ECP Notes) were issued for a 
total maximum authorized amount of $50,000,000. The Water 
Authority has appointed Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 
Incorporated and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC as co-dealers 
for the Series 1 ECP Notes. ECP does not have bank liquidity 
support. At June 30, 2014, the balance outstanding was 
$50,000,000.

10. Short-Term Liabilities, (continued)

(e) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 7

On June 26, 2013, the Commercial Paper Notes, Series 
7 (the Series 7 Notes) were issued for a total maximum 
authorized amount of $100,000,000. The Series 7 Notes 
have liquidity support in the form of a revolving credit 
and term loan agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
N.A. and, unless otherwise extended, will terminate on 
June 26, 2015. During the term of the agreement, the 
Water Authority pays annual commitment fees of 0.40 
percent based on the par amount of the commitment. At 
June 30, 2014 and 2013, the balance outstanding was 
$100,000,000.

(f) Commercial Paper Notes, Series 8

On April 2, 2014, the Commercial Paper Notes, Series 
8 (the Series 8 Notes) were issued for a total maximum 
authorized amount of $110,000,000. The Series 8 
Notes have liquidity support in the form of a revolving 
credit and term loan agreement with Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd. and, unless otherwise extended, 
will terminate on June 27, 2017. During the term of the 
agreement, the Water Authority pays annual commitment 
fees of 0.325 percent based on the par amount of the 
commitment. At June 30, 2014, the balance outstanding 
was $110,000,000.

Additions Deletions
Balance at

June 30, 2014

$                         - $     (110,000,000) $                         - 
 -  -  - 
 -  -  100,000,000 
 -  (50,000,000)  - 
 -  -  100,000,000 

 110,000,000  -  110,000,000 
 50,000,000  -  50,000,000 

$      160,000,000 $     (160,000,000) $       360,000,000 
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Balance at
June 30, 2012 Additions Deletions

Balance at
June 30, 2013

Long-term debt:

Water Revenue COP, 1998A (Note 11a) $      11,685,000 $                     - $                      - $       11,685,000 

Water Revenue COP, Series 2002A (Note 11b)  17,510,000  -  (17,510,000)  - 

Water Revenue COP, Series 2004A (Note 11c)  388,710,000  -  (344,785,000)  43,925,000 

Water Revenue Refunding COP, Series 2005A (Note 11d)  95,730,000  -  (12,240,000)  83,490,000 

Water Revenue COP, Series 2008A (Note 11e)  556,150,000  -  (9,120,000)  547,030,000 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) (Note 11f)  98,495,000  -  -  98,495,000 

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Taxable Build America Bonds) (Note 11g)  526,135,000  -  -  526,135,000 

Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-1 (Note 11h)  86,630,000  -  -  86,630,000 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (Note 11i)  139,945,000  -  (6,815,000)  133,130,000 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B (Note 11j)  94,540,000  -  -  94,540,000 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (Note 11k)  -  299,105,000  -  299,105,000 

     Total long-term debt  2,015,530,000  299,105,000  (390,470,000)  1,924,165,000 

Other liabilities:

Contributions payable (Note 11l)  61,666,108  -  (3,618,281)  58,047,827 

Compensated absences  5,945,429  3,459,276  (3,473,628)  5,931,077 

OPEB liability (Note 13)  1,173,000  528,000  (230,000)  1,471,000 

Arbitrage rebate  407,824  58,704  -  466,528 

     Total long-term liabilities  2,084,722,361  303,150,980  (397,791,909)  1,990,081,432 

Unamortized bond premiums  69,809,331  52,126,205  (7,218,704)  114,716,832 

Total long-term liabilities, net $  2,154,531,692 $  355,277,185 $ (405,010,613) $  2,104,798,264 

11. Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term liabilities activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
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Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013

Additions Deletions
Balance at

June 30, 2014
Amounts Due

Within One Year
Amounts Due

After One Year
Amounts Due

Within One Year
Amounts Due

After One Year

$                     - $                       -  $         11,685,000 $                           - $           11,685,000 $                            - $            11,685,000 

 -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 -  -  43,925,000  -  43,925,000  -  43,925,000 

 -  (12,605,000)  70,885,000  13,510,000  57,375,000  12,605,000  70,885,000 

 -  (10,920,000)  536,110,000  11,360,000  524,750,000  10,920,000  536,110,000 

 -  (1,570,000)  96,925,000  2,560,000  94,365,000  1,570,000  96,925,000 

 -  -  526,135,000  -  526,135,000  -  526,135,000 

 -  -  86,630,000  -  86,630,000  -  86,630,000 

 -  (6,845,000)  126,285,000  7,185,000  119,100,000  6,845,000  126,285,000 

 -  -  94,540,000  -  94,540,000  -  94,540,000 

 -  -  299,105,000  -  299,105,000  -  299,105,000 

 -  (31,940,000)  1,892,225,000  34,615,000  1,857,610,000  31,940,000  1,892,225,000 

 -  (5,407,932)  52,639,895  5,602,795  47,037,100  5,407,932  52,639,895 

 3,586,894  (3,382,643)  6,135,328  4,049,316  2,086,012  3,914,511  2,016,566 

 597,000  (256,000)  1,812,000  -  1,812,000  -  1,471,000 

 133,909  -  600,437  -  600,437  -  466,528 

 4,317,803  (40,986,575)  1,953,412,660  44,267,111  1,909,145,549  41,262,443  1,948,818,989 

 -  (8,854,032)  105,862,800  -  105,862,800  -  114,716,832 

$      4,317,803 $    (49,840,607) $    2,059,275,460 $           44,267,111 $      2,015,008,349 $            41,262,443 $       2,063,535,821 

11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued)
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued)
Long-term pledged liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is comprised of the following: 

Type of Pledged Revenue

Fiscal 
Year 

Maturity 
Date

Pledged 
Revenue to 

Maturity

Debt 
Principal and 
Interest Paid

Pledged 
Revenue 

Recognized

Pledged Net Water Revenue:

COPs and Bonds

Water Revenue COP, Series 1998A 2028 $       19,455,525 $         555,038 $         555,038 

Water Revenue COP, Series 2004A 2034  73,448,550  2,163,163  2,163,163 

Water Revenue Refunding COP, Series 2005A 2022  83,942,800  16,956,713  16,956,713 

Water Revenue COP, Series 2008A 2038  954,544,500  38,271,500  38,271,500 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A 
     (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) 2027  138,469,325  6,292,425  6,292,425 
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B 
     (Taxable Build America Bonds) 2049  1,390,606,010  32,294,166  32,294,166 
Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
     Series 2011S-1 2017  97,311,000  4,272,400  4,272,400 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A 2027  172,787,650  13,293,900  13,293,900 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B 2031  153,688,250  4,707,000  4,707,000 

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A 2034  495,452,525  13,981,519  13,981,519 

Total Pledged Net Water Revenue $  3,579,706,135 $  132,787,824 $  132,787,824 
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued)
Long-term pledged liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is comprised of the following:

Type of Pledged Revenue

Fiscal 
Year 

Maturity 
Date

Pledged
Revenue to 

Maturity

Debt 
Principal and 
Interest Paid

Pledged 
Revenue 

Recognized

Pledged Net Water Revenue:

COPs and Bonds

Water Revenue COP, Series 1998A 2028  $        20,010,563 $           555,037 $              555,035

Water Revenue COP, Series 2002A 2032 - 18,385,500 437,750

Water Revenue COP, Series 2004A 2034 75,611,713 10,615,812 10,615,812

Water Revenue Refunding COP, Series 2005A 2022 100,899,513 17,234,313 17,234,313

Water Revenue COP, Series 2008A 2038 992,816,000 36,836,300 36,836,300
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A
      (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) 2027 144,761,750 4,722,425 4,722,424
Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B
     (Taxable Build America Bonds) 2049 1,422,900,176 32,294,166 32,294,159
Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
     Series 2011S-1 2017 101,583,400 4,272,400 4,272,400

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A 2027 186,081,550 13,294,568 13,276,603

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B 2031 158,395,250 4,707,000 4,687,913

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A 2034 509,434,044 1,864,203 1,864,203

Total Pledged Net Water Revenue $    3,712,493,959 $    144,781,724 $       126,796,912 
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(a) Water Revenue Certifi cates of Participation, Series 1998A 

On November 17, 1998, the Water Authority issued $180,000,000 of Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 
1998A (the 1998A Certificates) for the design, acquisition, and construction of the Water Authority’s ESP and other water system 
improvements in furtherance of the Water Authority’s CIP.

On March 9, 2005, the Water Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2005A (the 2005A 
Certificates) to advance refund a portion of the 1998A Certificates in the amount of $117,310,000. At June 30, 2014, the amount 
of defeased debt outstanding of the 1998A Certificates was $0.

On February 4, 2010, the San Diego County Water Authority Financing Agency issued Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A 
(Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) to refund a portion of the 1998A Certificates in the amount of $51,005,000. 

The 1998A Certificates have stated interest rates ranging from 4.50 percent to 5.25 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2028. 

The 1998A Certificates required that a reserve be maintained in an amount equal to the lesser of $15,391,555 or maximum 
annual debt service on the 1998A Certificates. After the refunding from the 2005A Certificates, the reserve requirement was 
reduced to $12,240,775. At June 30, 2014, the reserve was fully funded. The certificates are insured by Financial Guaranty 
Insurance Company (FGIC).

The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $11,685,000. The total debt service payment 
requirements with respect to the 1998A Certificates are as follows:

Water Revenue COPs, Series 1998A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                       - $      555,038 $      555,038

 2016 - 555,038 555,038

 2017 - 555,038 555,038

 2018 - 555,038 555,038

 2019 - 555,038 555,038 

 2020-2024 - 2,775,188 2,775,188

 2025-2028 11,685,000 2,220,147 13,905,147

 Total $      11,685,000 $   7,770,525 $  19,455,525
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(b) Water Revenue Certifi cates of Participation, Series 2002A

On June 5, 2002, the Water Authority issued $300,000,000 of Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2002A (the 
2002A Certificates) for the design, acquisition, and construction of the Water Authority’s Emergency Storage Project and other 
water system improvements in furtherance of the Water Authority’s CIP. A portion of the proceeds were used to refund the Water 
Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 1991A in the amount of $12,300,000.

On August 11, 2011, the Water Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A to advance refund a portion of 
the 2002A Certificates in the amount of $150,270,000. At June 30, 2014, the amount of defeased debt outstanding of the 2002A 
Certificates was $0.

On September 28, 2011, the Water Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B to advance refund a 
portion of the 2002A Certificates in the amount of $62,085,000. At June 30, 2014, the amount of defeased debt outstanding of the 
2002A Certificates was $0.

The 2002A Certificates have stated interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2032. 

The 2002A Certificates require that a reserve be maintained in an amount equal to the lesser of $18,385,750 or maximum 
annual debt service on the 2002A Certificates. The certificates are insured by Municipal Bond Insurance Association, Inc. (MBIA). 

On February 21, 2013, the Water Authority fully liquidated the Debt Service Reserve Fund to legally defease the 2002A 
Certificates outstanding balance of $17,510,000.

The principal balance of outstanding certificates was fully paid off during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(c) Water Revenue Certifi cates of Participation, Series 2004A

On September 29, 2004, the Water Authority issued $425,000,000 of Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 
2004A (the 2004A Certificates) for the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects in furtherance of the Water 
Authority’s CIP. A portion of the proceeds were used to refund the Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 1991B in 
the amount of $56,700,000.

On September 28, 2011, the Water Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B to advance refund a 
portion of the 2004A Certificates in the amount of $36,290,000. At June 30, 2014, the amount of defeased debt outstanding of the 
2004A Certificates was $36,290,000.

On March 13, 2013, the Water Authority issued Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A to advance refund a portion 
of the 2004A Certificates in the amount of $344,785,000. In addition, the Water Authority liquidated a portion of the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund to legally defease a portion of the 2004A Certificates in the amount of $34,516,255. At June 30, 2014, the amount 
of defeased debt outstanding of the 2004A Certificates was $344,785,000.

The 2004A Certificates have stated interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.25 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2034.

The 2004A Certificates require that a reserve be maintained in an amount equal to the lesser of $38,568,617 or maximum 
annual debt service on the 2004A Certificates. After the refunding from the 2013A Bonds, the reserve requirement was reduced to 
$4,052,362. At June 30, 2013, the reserve was fully funded. The certificates are insured by FSA.

The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $43,925,000. The total debt service payment 
requirements with respect to the 2004A Certificates are as follows:

Water Revenue COPs, Series 2004A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                      - $    2,163,163 $    2,163,163

 2016 - 2,163,163 2,163,163

 2017 - 2,163,163 2,163,163

 2018 - 2,163,163 2,163,163

 2019 1,885,000 2,163,163 4,048,163

 2020-2024 10,770,000 9,481,238 20,251,238

 2025-2029 13,735,000 6,511,000 20,246,000

 2030-2034 17,535,000 2,715,497 20,250,497

    Total $     43,925,000 $ 29,523,550 $ 73,448,550
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(d) Water Revenue Refunding Certifi cates of Participation, Series 2005A

On March 9, 2005 the Water Authority issued $107,455,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 
2005A (the 2005A Certificates) to advance refund a portion of the 1998A Certificates in the amount of $117,310,000. At June 30, 
2014 and 2013, the amount of defeased debt outstanding of the Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 1998A was $0. 

The 2005A Certificates have stated interest rates ranging from 5.00 percent to 5.25 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2022.

The 2005A Certificates require that a reserve be maintained in an amount equal to the lesser of $10,745,500 or maximum 
annual debt service on the 2005A Certificates. At June 30, 2014, the reserve requirement was fully satisfied by a Reserve Surety 
Policy issued by FGIC. The 2005A Certificates are also insured by FGIC.

The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2014 was $70,885,000, or $77,429,936 net of unamortized 
premium of $6,544,936. The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2013 was $83,490,000, or $90,870,460 net 
of unamortized premium of $7,380,460. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2005A Certificates are 
as follows:

Water Revenue Refunding COPs, Series 2005A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $     13,510,000 $     3,721,463 $  17,231,463

 2016 13,880,000 3,012,188 16,892,188

 2017 15,005,000 2,283,488 17,288,488

 2018 14,690,000 1,495,725 16,185,725

 2019 - 724,500 724,500

 2020-2022 13,800,000 1,820,436 15,620,436

 Total $     70,885,000 $   13,057,800 $  83,942,800
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(e) Water Revenue Certifi cates of Participation, Series 2008A

On May 21, 2008, the Water Authority issued $558,015,000 of Water Revenue Certificates of Participation, Series 2008A (the 
2008A Certificates) for the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects in furtherance of the Water Authority’s 
CIP. In addition, proceeds were used to refund a portion of the 1997A Certificates in the amount of $63,165,000.

The 2008A Certificates have stated interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2038.

The 2008A Certificates require that a reserve be maintained in an amount equal to the lesser of $23,670,625 or one-half of 
maximum annual debt service on the 2008A Certificates. At June 30, 2014, the reserve requirement was fully satisfied by a 
Reserve Surety Policy issued by FSA. The 2008A Certificates are also insured by FSA.

The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2014 was $536,110,000, or $550,804,458 net of unamortized 
premium of $14,694,458. The principal balance of outstanding certificates at June 30, 2013 was $547,030,000, or $562,338,858 
net of unamortized premium of $15,308,858. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2008A Certificates 
are as follows:

Water Revenue COPs, Series 2008A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $       11,360,000 $      26,805,500 $      38,165,500

 2016 13,250,000 26,237,500 39,487,500

 2017 14,505,000 25,575,000 40,080,000

 2018 17,320,000 24,849,750 42,169,750

 2019 15,885,000 23,983,750 39,868,750

 2020-2024 62,090,000 109,100,500 171,190,500

 2025-2029 81,610,000 93,864,250 175,474,250

 2030-2034 152,225,000 66,523,500 218,748,500

 2035-2038 167,865,000 21,494,750 189,359,750

 Total $    536,110,000 $    418,434,500 $    954,544,500
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 11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(f) Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt)

On February 4, 2010, the SDCWAFA issued $98,495,000 of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) (the 
2010A Bonds) for the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects in furtherance of the Water Authority’s CIP. In 
addition, proceeds were used to refund a portion of the 1998A Certificates in the amount of $51,005,000. The balance of proceeds 
were be used to finance CIP projects, including interest incurred during construction.

The 2010A Bonds have stated interest rates ranging from 4.00 percent to 5.25 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2027. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2010A Bonds.  

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 was $96,925,000, or $103,171,620 net of unamortized premium of 
$6,246,620. The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2013 was $98,495,000, or $105,238,036 net of unamortized 
premium of $6,743,036. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to 2010A Bonds are as follows:

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt)

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $       2,560,000 $     4,659,625 $     7,219,625

 2016 3,975,000 4,557,225 8,532,225

 2017 4,130,000 4,398,225 8,528,225

 2018 4,295,000 4,233,025 8,528,025

 2019 4,470,000 4,061,225 8,531,225

 2020-2024 43,370,000 16,459,500 59,829,500

 2025-2027 34,125,000 3,175,500 37,300,500

 Total $     96,925,000 $   41,544,325 $ 138,469,325
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued)

(g) Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Taxable Build America Bonds)

On February 4, 2010, the SDCWAFA issued $526,135,000 of Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Taxable Build America 
Bonds) (the 2010B Bonds) for the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects in furtherance of the Water 
Authority’s CIP. 

The 2010B Bonds have a stated interest rate of 6.138 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1. Their maturities 
extend to May 1, 2049. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2010B Bonds.  

The 2010B Bonds were designated as Taxable Build America Bonds (BABs) under the provisions of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009, the interest with respect to which is not excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, 
but is exempt from State of California personal income taxes. The Water Authority receives semi-annual subsidy payments from 
the United States Treasury equal to 35 percent of the interest payable on the 2010B Bonds.

Subsidy payments were reduced by 7.2 percent in Fiscal Year 2014 under Congressionally-mandated sequestration.  
Sequestration consists of across-the-board federal budget cuts that were implemented in March 2013, triggered by Congress’ 
failure to reach agreement over how to significantly cut the federal deficit. The sequestration reduction rate will be applied unless 
and until a law is enacted that cancels or otherwise impacts the sequestration, at which time the sequestration reduction rate 
is subject to change. Although the sequestration was effective March 2013, the Water Authority received the full amount of the 
subsidy during Fiscal Year 2013.

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $526,135,000. The total debt service payment 
requirements with respect to the 2010B Bonds are as follows:

Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (Taxable BABs)

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                      - $       32,294,166 $        32,294,166

 2016 - 32,294,166 32,294,166

 2017 - 32,294,166 32,294,166

 2018 - 32,294,166 32,294,166

 2019 - 32,294,166 32,294,166

 2020-2024 - 161,470,832 161,470,832

 2025-2029 28,170,000 158,690,318 186,860,318

 2030-2034 58,700,000 147,564,272 206,264,272

 2035-2039 118,885,000 120,786,019 239,671,019

 2040-2044 144,570,000 81,271,110 225,841,110

 2045-2049 175,810,000 33,217,629 209,027,629

 Total $   526,135,000 $     864,471,010 $   1,390,606,010
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 11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(h) Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-1

On July 21, 2011, the Water Authority issued $86,630,000 of Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-
1 (the 2011S-1 Bonds) to refinance a portion of the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects of the Water 
Authority’s CIP by refunding the Water Authority Commercial Paper Notes, Series 2 in the amount of $100,000,000.

The 2011S-1 Bonds have stated interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on January 1 
and July 1. Their maturities extend to July 1, 2016. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2011S-1 Bonds.

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 was $86,630,000, or $92,219,417 net of unamortized premium of 
$5,589,417. The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2013 was $86,630,000, or $95,014,133 net of unamortized 
premium of $8,384,133. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2011S-1 Bonds are as follows:

Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-1

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                      - $     4,272,400 $     4,272,400

 2016 - 4,272,400 4,272,400

 2017 86,630,000 2,136,200 88,766,200

 Total $     86,630,000 $   10,681,000 $   97,311,000
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 11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(i) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A

On August 11, 2011, the Water Authority issued $139,945,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A (the 2011A 
Bonds) to refinance a portion of the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects of the Water Authority’s CIP 
by advance refunding a portion of the 2002A Certificates in the amount of $150,270,000. 

The 2011A Bonds have stated interest rates ranging from 0.45 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2027. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2011A Bonds.

The net proceeds from the bond issuance were used to purchase United States Treasury securities that were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments on the defeased debt until the debt matures. As a result, 
the refunded debt is considered defeased and the related liabilities have been removed from the financial statements. 

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 was $126,285,000, or $139,684,789 net of unamortized premium of 
$13,399,789. The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2013 was $133,130,000, or $147,567,189 net of unamortized 
premium of $14,437,189. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2011A Bonds are as follows:

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $       7,185,000 $    6,106,650 $     13,291,650

 2016 7,545,000 5,747,400 13,292,400

 2017 7,920,000 5,370,150 13,290,150

 2018 8,315,000 4,974,150 13,289,150

 2019 8,650,000 4,641,550 13,291,550

 2020-2024 50,190,000 16,270,750 66,460,750

 2025-2027 36,480,000 3,392,000 39,872,000

 Total $   126,285,000 $  46,502,650 $   172,787,650
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(j) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B

On September 28, 2011, the Water Authority issued $94,540,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B (the 2011B 
Bonds) to refinance a portion of the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects of the Water Authority’s CIP 
by advance refunding a portion of the 2002A and 2004A Certificates in the amount of $62,085,000 and $36,290,000, respectively.

The 2011B Bonds have stated interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2031. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2011B Bonds.

The net proceeds from the bond issuance were used to purchase United States Treasury securities that were deposited in an 
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments on the defeased debt until the debt matures. As a result, 
the refunded debt is considered defeased and the related liabilities have been removed from the financial statements. 

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 was $94,540,000, or $105,072,031 net of unamortized premium of 
$10,532,031. The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2013 was $94,540,000, or $105,694,615 net of unamortized 
premium of $11,154,615. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2011B Bonds are as follows:

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                      - $    4,707,000 $       4,707,000

 2016 - 4,707,000 4,707,000

 2017 - 4,707,000 4,707,000

 2018 - 4,707,000 4,707,000

 2019 - 4,707,000 4,707,000

 2020-2024 35,405,000 19,170,750 54,575,750

 2025-2029 28,125,000 14,097,750 42,222,750

 2030-2031 31,010,000 2,344,750 33,354,750

 Total $     94,540,000 $  59,148,250 $   153,688,250
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(k) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A

On March 13, 2013, the Water Authority issued $299,105,000 of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A (the 2013A 
Bonds) to refinance a portion of the design, acquisition, and construction of various capital projects of the Water Authority’s CIP 
by advance refunding a portion of the 2004A Certificates in the amount of $344,785,000.

The 2013A Bonds have stated interest rates ranging from 3.00 percent to 5.00 percent payable semi-annually on May 1 and 
November 1. Their maturities extend to May 1, 2034. No debt service reserve fund was created to secure the 2013A Bonds.

The net proceeds from the bond issuance, in addition to the 2004A Certificates debt service reserve funds released in the 
amount of $34,516,255, were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service 
payments on the refunded debt. As a result, the refunded debt is considered defeased and the related liabilities have been 
removed from the financial statements. 

The advance refunding resulted in a cash flow savings (difference between the cash flows required to service the old and new 
debt) of $60,173,484. In addition, the advance refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present value of 
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $51,379,477. The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the 
reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $39,904,258. The difference is the deferred loss on refunding 
amortized through Fiscal Year 2034 using the life of the new debt, which is the same as the remaining life of the old debt.

The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2014 was $299,105,000, or $347,960,549 net of unamortized premium of 
$48,855,549. The principal balance of outstanding bonds at June 30, 2013 was $299,105,000, or $350,413,541 net of unamortized 
premium of $51,308,541. The total debt service payment requirements with respect to the 2013A Bonds are as follows:

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $                       - $      13,981,519 $     13,981,519

 2016 - 13,981,519 13,981,519

 2017 - 13,981,519 13,981,519

 2018 - 13,981,519 13,981,519

 2019 14,005,000 13,981,519 27,986,519

 2020-2024 49,670,000 63,446,294 113,116,294

 2025-2029 103,960,000 45,251,844 149,211,844

 2030-2034 131,470,000 17,741,792 149,211,792

 Total $    299,105,000 $    196,347,525 $   495,452,525
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(l) Contributions Payable

Contributions Payable concern the Water Authority’s payment obligations for environmental and socioeconomic impacts related 
to the Quantification Settlement and other connected Agreements. These payments include contributions to the QSA JPA for 
environmental mitigation pursuant to the QSA JPA Creation and Funding Agreement, and payments to the IID on behalf of the 
Imperial Valley Socioeconomic Improvement Committee, the Local Entity, to mitigate third-party socioeconomic impacts of the 
Conserved Water Transfer Agreement.

(1)  On April 25, 2007, the QSA JPA approved an agreement to modify the schedule of contributions payable pursuant to the 
QSA JPA Creation and Funding Agreement in order to more appropriately match environmental mitigation funding obligations. The 
outstanding balance of the payment obligation at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $43,819,895 and $46,287,827, respectively. The 
total contributions payable are as follows: 

QSA JPA Creation and Funding Agreement

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $       2,662,795 $     2,629,194 $      5,291,989

 2016 3,606,920 2,469,426 6,076,346

 2017 6,001,375 2,253,011 8,254,386

 2018 6,421,886 1,892,928 8,314,814

 2019 5,407,052 1,507,615 6,914,667

 2020-2024 14,201,099 5,485,627 19,686,726

 2025-2026 5,518,768 447,579 5,966,347

 Total $     43,819,895 $   16,685,380 $    60,505,275
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11. Long-Term Liabilities, (continued) 

(l) Contributions Payable, (continued)

(2)  On May 14, 2007, the Water Authority and the IID executed the Settlement Agreement Resolving Present and Future 
Disputes under Sections 14.5 and 18.1 of the Revised Fourth Amendment to the IID/Water Authority Conserved Water Transfer 
Agreement pursuant to which the Water Authority will pay $40,000,000 according to a payment schedule in the Agreement for 
third-party socioeconomic impacts as a result of the Conserved Water Transfer Agreement by and between the two agencies. The 
outstanding balance of the payment obligation at June 30, 2014 and 2013 was $8,820,000 and $11,760,000, respectively. This 
obligation is non-interest bearing. The total contributions payable are as follows:

IID Third Party Socioeconomic Impacts Agreement

 Year Principal Interest Total

 2015 $       2,940,000 $                - $    2,940,000

 2016 2,940,000 - 2,940,000 

 2017 2,940,000 - 2,940,000

  Total $       8,820,000 $                - $    8,820,000

(m) Rate Covenants

Under the Water Authority Act, the Board sets water rates and charges that are sufficient to meet its operation expenses and 
payment obligations. The Board has established that, exclusive of the tax revenue and debt servicing costs associated with voter-
approved general obligation bonds and other voter-approved debt, net water revenues will equal or exceed 120 percent of senior 
lien debt service costs (principal and interest). The Water Authority was in compliance with its rate obligations for Fiscal Years 
2014 and 2013.
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12. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans

(a) California Public Employees’ Retirement System

Plan Description

The Water Authority contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer 
public employee defined benefit pension plan. The Water Authority’s Miscellaneous Plan is part of the Public Agency’s portion of 
CalPERS. CalPERS provides retirement, disability benefits, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. CalPERS acts 
as a common investment and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California. A menu of benefit 
provisions as well as other requirements is established by state statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. The Water 
Authority selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through 
Board approval. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and contracts with employee 
bargaining groups. 

Effective January 1, 2013, Water Authority new hires who meet the definitions of “new employees” and “new members” will 
accrue and receive defined benefit pension plan benefits in accordance with the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
(PEPRA) of 2013.

Requests for detailed plan provisions and copies of CalPERS’ annual financial report can be obtained from CalPERS Fiscal 
Services Division, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, CA, 94229-2703 or http://www.calpers.ca.gov

Funding Policy 

Current participants are required to contribute eight percent of their annual covered salary to fund the plan. The Water Authority 
pays seven percent of the employees’ required contribution and the employee pays the remaining one percent required contribution. 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the amount contributed by the Water Authority on behalf of the employees (the 
seven percent contribution) was $1,802,194 and $1,829,885, respectively.

The Water Authority is required to contribute the remaining amounts, the required employer contribution rate multiplied by the 
covered salary, necessary to fund the benefits for its members, using the actuarial basis recommended by CalPERS actuaries and 
actuarial consultants, and adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.

Effective July 1, 2010, Technical/Support, Professional/Administrative, Managerial/Supervisory, and Confidential employees 
increased the rate they contributed toward their CalPERS retirement plan by one percent for a total contribution of two percent. 
Also effective July 1, 2010, Executive and Senior Management employees increased the rate they contributed by 3.5 percent, for 
a total contribution of 4.5 percent. 

Effective July 1, 2011, Technical/Support, Professional/Administrative, Managerial/Supervisory, and Confidential employees 
increased the rate they contributed toward their CalPERS retirement plan by an additional 2.5 percent for a total contribution of 4.5 
percent. Executive and Senior Management employees continued to contribute 4.5 percent.

Effective July 1, 2012, Technical/Support, Professional/Administrative, Managerial/Supervisory, and Confidential employees 
increased the rate they contributed toward their CalPERS retirement plan by an additional 1.25 percent for a total contribution 
of 5.75 percent. Executive and Senior Management employees increased the rate they contributed by 1.75 percent for a total 
contribution of 6.25 percent.
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12. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans, (continued)

(a) California Public Employees’ Retirement System, (continued)

Funding Policy, (continued)

Effective July 1, 2013, Technical/Support, Professional/Administrative, Managerial/Supervisory, and Confidential employees 
increased the amount they pay toward CalPERS by 1.25 percent for a total contribution of seven percent, increasing to eight 
percent by July 2014. Executive and Senior Management employees increased the amount they pay toward CalPERS by 1.75 
percent for a total contribution of eight percent. 

The terms of PEPRA mandate that “new members” contribution rate be the greater of 50 percent of the total normal cost rate for 
their defined benefit plan or the current contribution rate of similarly situated employees. The current employee contribution rate of 
PEPRA members and similarly situated employees at the Water Authority is 6.5 percent.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation   

Under GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Government Employers, an employer reports 
annual pension cost (APC) equal to the annual required contribution (ARC) plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference 
between the APC and the employer’s actual plan contributions for the year. The cumulative difference is called the net pension 
obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 and July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 were determined by 
the actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2011 and June 30, 2010, respectively. The contribution rates indicated for the 
periods are 19.735 percent and 19.726 percent of payroll for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. In order 
to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in financial statements prepared as of June 30, 2014, and 2013, the respective 
contribution rate of 19.735 and 19.726 percent were multiplied by the payroll of covered employees that were actually paid during 
the period July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 and July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013, respectively.

                                                                                                           Three-Year Trend Information           

  % of APC    
 Fiscal Year Contribution  APC NPO

 6/30/14 100% $    5,253,134 $     - 

 6/30/13 100%     5,184,944      -

 6/30/12 100% 5,190,542 -
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12. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans, (continued)

(a) California Public Employees’ Retirement System, (continued)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation, (continued)

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Water Authority’s APC and actual contribution was $5,253,134 and 
$5,184,944, respectively. A summary of principal assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown below.

Methods/Assumptions for the Valuation Ended

Description June 30, 2012 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost 

Amortization Method Level percent of payroll
on a closed basis

Level percent of payroll
on a closed basis

Level percent of payroll
on a closed basis

Average Remaining Period 22 years as of the valuation 
date

23 years as of the valuation 
date

24 years as of the valuation 
date

Asset Valuation Method 15-year smoothed market 15-year smoothed market 15-year smoothed market

Discount Rate 7.50% (net of administrative 
expenses)

7.50% (net of administrative 
expenses)

7.75% (net of administrative 
expenses)

Projected Salary Increases
3.30% to 14.20% depending 
on age, service, and type of 
employment

3.30% to 14.20% depending 
on age, service, and type of 
employment

3.55% to 14.45% depending 
on age, service, and type of 
employment

Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 3.00%

Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00% 3.25%

Individual Salary Growth

A merit scale varying by 
duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth 
of 2.75% and an annual 
production growth of 0.25%

A merit scale varying by 
duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth 
of 2.75% and an annual 
production growth of 0.25%

A merit scale varying by 
duration of employment 
coupled with an assumed 
annual inflation growth 
of 3.00% and an annual 
production growth of 0.25%
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12. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans, (continued)

(a) California Public Employees’ Retirement System, (continued)

Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s date of entry into CalPERS. Subsequent 
plan amendments are amortized as a level percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the 
operation of the plan are amortized over a 30-year rolling period, which results in an amortization of about six percent of unamortized 
gains and losses each year. If the plan’s accrued liability exceeds the actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortization payment 
on the total unfunded liability may not be lower than the payment calculated over a 30-year amortization period.

The following table summarizes the Miscellaneous Plan’s funding status as reported in the Water Authority’s most recent 
actuarial valuation.

      Annual UL as a % of
 Accrued Actuarial Value  Unfunded                     Funded Ratios  Covered Covered
Valuation Liability  of Assets (AVA)  Liability (UL) (AVA) Market Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (a)-(b) (b)/(a) Value (c) [(a)-(b)]/(c)]

6/30/12   $165,855,859 $123,551,578 $42,304,281 74.5% 63.5% $25,581,760  165.4%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as Required Supplemental Information (RSI) immediately following the Notes to 
the Financial Statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

(b) Terminal Pay Plan

 Plan Description

The Water Authority established a Terminal Pay Plan (TPP), effective December 10, 2007, which is administered by the Water 
Authority’s Controller who also serves as the trustee. The TPP is a defined benefit pension plan, established and governed 
under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a), that provides retirement benefits to participants. The defined benefit is the 
accumulated balance of the retiring employee’s (or a separated employee due to death) earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave 
on the date of retirement. Each employee of the Water Authority who is entitled to vacation-leave pay or sick-leave pay (under the 
applicable rules, regulations, and policies) is required to participate in the TPP if the participant retires, or separates employment 
due to death, from the Water Authority after reaching the age of 55. 

Employees may elect benefits be disbursed from the TPP in a lump sum or in monthly installments over a 60-month period (with 
no interest). As an alternative, an employee has the right to elect that all or a portion of benefits be immediately rolled over or 
transferred to an individual retirement account (IRA), a tax sheltered annuity, another tax-qualified retirement plan, or an eligible 
deferred compensation plan such as a Section 457 deferred compensation plan. A separate financial report is not prepared for 
the TPP.
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12. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plans, (continued)

(b) Terminal Pay Plan, (continued)

Funding Policy

Contributions equal to the accumulated balance in the employee’s earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave accounts are 
made by the Water Authority to the TPP for eligible employees who retire, or separate due to death, from the Water Authority 
after reaching the age of 55, and are made as soon as administratively practicable after termination of employment. Amounts 
held on behalf of participants are fully vested and held in trust at all times. TPP benefits for a participant who retires, or separates 
due to death, from Water Authority service are fully vested once they are accrued and the value of TPP benefits is the amount 
of an employee’s earned but unpaid vacation and sick leave on the date of retirement. No additional employee contributions are 
permitted. Benefits earned are accrued as compensated absences. 

Distribution

If the value of benefits is over $5,000, a distribution will only be made if the employee consents before April 1st following the 
calendar year in which they reach age 70½. If the value of an employee’s vested benefit is $5,000 or less on the date of retirement, 
or separation due to death, benefits will be distributed in a single lump sum. 

Changes or Termination of Plan  

The Water Authority reserves the right to amend the TPP at any time and for any reason. In the event the TPP is terminated, 
no additional contributions will be made, but the persons affected will continue to be entitled to the entire benefits under the 
TPP. Benefits under the TPP are not insured by the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation or any other government agency.

   Contribution Percentage of Required
 Fiscal Year  ARC’s Made Contributions Made

 6/30/14 $    190,373 $    190,373 100%
 6/30/13     574,752     574,752 100%
 6/30/12    714,601    714,601 100%
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13. Other Post-Employment Benefi ts (OPEB)
Plan Description

The Water Authority has established a Retiree Healthcare Plan (Plan), a single-employer defined benefit retiree healthcare plan. 
The Plan, administered by the Water Authority, provides employees who retire directly from the Water Authority, at a minimum 
age of 55, with a minimum of five years of service, a cash subsidy for monthly medical insurance premiums up to a cap of $200 
per employee or $320 for employee plus spouse. Payments cease at age 65 when the retiree or spouse is eligible for Medicare. 
If applicable, a cash subsidy for the monthly medical premium continues up to a cap of $160 for a spouse until age 65 is attained. 
Surviving spouses are also eligible for this benefit. The Plan and its contribution requirements are established by Memoranda of 
Understanding with the applicable employee bargaining units and may be amended by agreements between the Water Authority 
and the bargaining units.

Employees who retire directly from the Water Authority at a minimum age of 55 with a minimum of five years of CalPERS 
service are eligible to continue medical coverage as a participant with active employees at a blended premium rate until eligible for 
Medicare at age 65 as an implied subsidy. A separate financial report is not prepared for the Plan.

Funding Policy  

The annual contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 
and 2013, the Water Authority’s cash contributions were $110,650 and $118,620 in current premiums, which covered 61 and 53 
retirees and their spouses, respectively. The estimated implied subsidy for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was 
$145,350 and $111,380, resulting in total payments of $256,000 and $230,000, respectively.  

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Water Authority’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the ARC of the employer, an amount actuarially determined 
in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing 
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 
years.

The annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation at June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

   2014 2013

 Annual required contribution  $     609,000 $      546,000 

 Interest on net OPEB obligation  59,000 38,000 

 Adjustment to annual required contribution          (71,000)     (56,000) 

           Annual OPEB cost  597,000 528,000 

 Contributions made  (256,000) (230,000) 

 Increase in net OPEB obligation  341,000 298,000 

           Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year  1,471,000 1,173,000 

         Net OPEB obligation, end of year  $ 1,812,000 $   1,471,000 
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13.  Other Post-Employment Benefi ts (OPEB), (continued)
The following table summarizes the Plan’s funding status as reported in the Water Authority’s most recent actuarial valuation.

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB

    Unfunded   UAAL
 Actuarial Actuarial  Actuarial  Annual as a % of
 Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered Covered
 Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Status Payroll Payroll

 6/30/13 $  5,532,080  $               -  $   5,532,080  0% $  24,962,000  22%

The Water Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the annual OPEB cost contributed, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 
and the net OPEB obligation as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows:

                                                                  Three-Year Trend Information                    

    Annual OPEB   Percentage of   
   Annual OPEB Cost  Annual OPEB Net OPEB
 Fiscal Year  Cost  Contributed  Cost Contributed Obligation

 6/30/14  $  597,000 $  256,000  42.9% $  1,812,000

 6/30/13   528,000   230,000  43.6%  1,471,000

 6/30/12  503,000  219,000  43.5%  1,173,000

 

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the values of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability 
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare 
cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI, immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements, presents 
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern 
of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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13.  Other Post-Employment Benefi ts (OPEB), (continued)
A summary of principal assumptions and methods is shown below.

Actuarial Valuation Date

Description June 30, 2013 January 1, 2011

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost 

Amortization Method Level percent of payroll over 30 years on 
a closed basis effective June 30, 2007

Level percent of payroll over 30 
years on a closed basis effective 
June 30, 2007

Average Remaining Period 24 years as of the valuation date 26 years as of the valuation date

Method and Plan Changes Amortized as level percentage of pay 
over fixed 20 years

Amortized as level percentage of pay 
over fixed 20 years

Assumption Changes and Experience 
Gains/Losses

Amortized as a level percentage of pay 
over a fixed 15 years

Amortized as a level percentage of 
pay over a fixed 15 years

Funding Policy Pay-as-you-go benefit payments Pay-as-you-go benefit payments

Discount Rate 4.00% per annum 5.00% per annum

Projected Salary Increases 3.00% per annum, in aggregate 3.25%, Merit increases – CalPERS 
1997-2002 Experience Study

Inflation 2.75% 3.00%

Number of Active Plan Participants 242 252

Annual Healthcare Cost Trend Rates:

       HMO 7.0% reduced by increments to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% per year at 2019 
and later years

8.0% reduced by increments to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% per year at 
2019 and later years 

       PPO 7.5% reduced by increments to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% per year at 2020 
and later years

8.5% reduced by increments to an 
ultimate rate of 4.5% per year at 
2020 and later years
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14. Deferred Compensation Plans and Defi ned Contribution Plans  
The Water Authority Board of Directors has adopted deferred compensation plans and defined contribution plans (the Plans) in 

accordance with Sections 457(f) and 401(a), respectively, of the Internal Revenue Code. The Water Authority Board of Directors 
has discretion to amend the Plans. These plans permit all eligible employees to defer, either pre-tax or post-tax, a portion of their 
salary until future years. The plan administrators for the Water Authority at June 30, 2014 were TIAA-CREF and ICMA. 

Participation in the 457 plan is not required and employee contributions may be modified from time to time at the employee’s 
direction. Employees eligible for the 401A plan must contribute an irrevocable mandatory minimum of three percent up to a 
maximum of 20 percent of salary to the plan. The Water Authority makes an annual contribution to the 401A plan on behalf of 
Senior and Executive Managers as specified in the compensation plans. Contributions to the Plans and interest earnings are 100 
percent vested immediately. Benefits depend solely on the amounts contributed to the Plans plus investment earnings.

Plan contributions and earnings are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, disability, or an unforeseeable 
emergency. All assets and income of the Plans are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. 
The deferred compensation plans are not considered part of the Water Authority’s financial reporting entity. Employee contributions 
to the Plans were $433,730 and $448,424 and employer contributions were $57,600 and $74,300 for Fiscal Years 2014 and 2013, 
respectively.  

15. Insurance  
The Water Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, including theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, 

errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The Water Authority is a participant in the Special District 
Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) pooled insurance program and obtains coverage for general liability, errors and omissions, 
employment practices liability, auto, property, boiler and machinery, crime, fiduciary liability, and workers’ compensation coverage 
through the program. SDRMA liability coverage is $45.0 million per occurrence with a $50,000 deductible per occurrence. 
Property coverage is provided with a $1.0 billion per occurrence and aggregate coverage limit and a sub-limit of $100.0 million 
per occurrence for boiler and machinery coverage. Property and boiler and machinery coverage have a $25,000 deductible per 
occurrence. Workers’ compensation coverage is per California statutory limits with $1.0 million per occurrence employer’s liability 
coverage. There is no deductible per occurrence.

The amount of claims settlements did not exceed insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years for all coverage types, 
individually and collectively.  

In 1999, the Water Authority entered into an Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) to provide workers’ compensation 
and general liability insurance to the contractors, and professional liability, pollution liability, and builders risk for the Emergency 
Storage Project. In Fiscal Year 2009, the Water Authority obtained an extension of the OCIP at a cost of $15.0 million to cover the 
construction of Emergency Storage Projects through 2014. The OCIP also maintains a loss deductible account that is adjusted 
annually based upon loss experience and is capped at $9.1 million. Payments to the loss account are adjusted annually based on 
loss experience. The general liability deductible is $250,000 per occurrence. The primary policy coverage limit is $2.0 million per 
occurrence and $4.0 million in aggregate with excess liability coverage to $100.0 million aggregate and total coverage limit. The 
workers’ compensation program provides full statutory coverage with a $250,000 deductible for each occurrence. The builders 
risk insurance has a variable deductible depending on the construction type and has a $50.0 million per occurrence maximum 
coverage limit. 
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16. Jointly Governed Organization  
The Water Authority’s payment of specific environmental mitigation costs are being made to the QSA JPA, which reviews and 

approves actual expenses for required mitigation and environmental costs. The QSA JPA is administered by the Water Authority 
and is made up of the Water Authority, IID, CVWD, and the State of California’s Department of Fish and Game. The QSA JPA 
board is comprised of one member from each participating entity.  

17. Commitments and Contingencies  

(a) Construction Projects

The Water Authority had material commitments under construction contracts as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 as follows:

 Project Name  FY 2014 FY 2013

 San Vicente Dam Raise   $                    - $    8,096,444

 San Vicente Marina Facilities  13,660,807 -

 Pipeline 3 Desal Relining San Marcos to Twin Oaks  13,286,033 -

  Twin Oaks Valley Water Treatment Plant Desalination Modifications  -  13,694,409

 Total  $   26,946,840 $  21,790,853

(b) Litigation

The Water Authority is subject to lawsuits and claims, which arise out of the normal course of business. In the opinion of 
management, based upon the opinion of legal counsel, the disposition of such actions of which it is aware will not have a material 
effect on the change in financial position, or liquidity of the Water Authority.

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project 

Description and Nature of Project  

On December 20, 2012, the Water Authority entered into a 30-year Water Purchase Agreement with Poseidon Resources 
(Channelside) LP (Company) to purchase a minimum of 48,000 acre-feet and up to 56,000 acre-feet annually from the Carlsbad 
Desalination Project (Project) starting as early as 2016.

The Project comprises a 54 million gallon per day (mgd) reverse osmosis desalination plant (Plant) and an approximately 10-
mile pipeline (Pipeline) that will connect the Plant to the Water Authority’s existing distribution system. The Water Authority will 
also add an interconnection pipeline and make related improvements to the existing water system necessary to integrate the water 
delivered from the Project into the distribution system.

The Project has been developed as a “public private partnership” (P3) between the Water Authority and the Company. The 
Company will own, construct, operate and maintain the Plant. The Company will also construct the Pipeline that will be owned, 
operated, and maintained by the Water Authority. The Water Authority will be the sole purchaser of the potable water produced 
by the Plant.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies, (continued)

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project, (continued)

Project Agreements

Water Purchase Agreement

Pursuant to the Water Purchase Agreement, the Company will sell the potable water produced by the Plant (Product Water) 
to the Water Authority. The Water Authority will be the sole purchaser of Product Water. The initial term of the Water Purchase 
Agreement expires 30 years after the Commercial Operation Date.

The Water Purchase Agreement requires the Company to design and construct the Plant and demonstrate by performance 
testing that the Plant performs in accordance with the standards specified therein.

The Water Authority will have an annual obligation to purchase or pay (a take-or-pay contract) for 48,000 acre-feet, the minimum 
annual demand commitment by the Water Authority, of Product Water that meets the requirements of the Water Purchase Agreement 
and may request up to 56,000 acre-feet each year, the maximum annual supply commitment, of Product Water produced by the 
Company. Prior to each contract year, the Water Authority and the Company will schedule the monthly delivery of the Product 
Water such that the annual total will be between 48,000 acre-feet and 56,000 acre-feet, unless otherwise adjusted in accordance 
with the terms of the Water Purchase Agreement.  The monthly payments will be based on actual units of Product Water delivered 
or deliverable according to the delivery schedule. The Water Authority will pay a per-acre-foot charge for delivered or deliverable 
water calculated to be sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2012 Plant Bonds (described in the Project Financing section), 
an equity return, and variable and fixed Project operating costs. The Company will be obligated to make shortfall payments to 
the Water Authority for the failure to deliver Product Water as required under the Water Purchase Agreement (Operating Period 
Shortfall Payments). To secure its performance obligations under the Water Purchase Agreement, the Company was required to 
post a $5.125 million letter of credit.

The Water Authority has an option to purchase the Plant at any time following the tenth anniversary of the Commercial Operation 
Date for a price sufficient to redeem or defease the Series 2012 Plant Bonds and any additional plant senior debt incurred for the 
construction and modification of the Plant and which constitutes permitted approved debt under the Water Purchase Agreement 
plus a return to equity. The Water Authority will also have an option to purchase the Plant for the same price if financing is 
unavailable to pay for modifying or reinstating the Plant under the circumstances. The Water Authority may also purchase the 
Plant for the aggregate outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Series 2012 Plant Bonds and any additional plant senior 
debt under the Plant Loan Agreement (described in the Project Financing section) incurred for the construction and modification 
of the Plant and which constitutes permitted approved debt under the Water Purchase Agreement upon a termination of the Water 
Purchase Agreement for the Company’s default.

Plant Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contract

The Water Purchase Agreement obligates the Company to design, construct, and test the Plant in accordance with the standards 
and design requirements therein. The Company entered into a Desalination Facility Engineering, Procurement and Construction 
Agreement (Plant EPC Contract) dated December 20, 2012 with Kiewit Shea Desalination, a joint venture of Kiewit Infrastructure 
West Co. and J.F. Shea Construction Company, in a joint and several capacity (EPC Contractor). Pursuant to the Plant EPC 
Contract, the EPC Contractor will design, construct, and test the Plant.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies, (continued)

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project,  (continued)

Pipeline Design-Build Agreement and Pipeline Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contract

The Water Purchase Agreement specifies that the Company will own the Plant and undertake efforts to permit, design, construct, 
finance, operate, maintain, and manage the Plant. In addition, the Company agrees to design and construct the new Pipeline 
pursuant to a Design-Build Agreement (Pipeline DBA) entered into with the Water Authority. The Company also entered into a 
Product Water Delivery System Engineering, Procurement and Construction Contract (Pipeline EPC Contract) dated December 
20, 2012 with the EPC Contractor for the design, engineering, procurement, construction, start-up, commissioning, and testing of 
the Pipeline. The ownership of the Pipeline is transferred to the Water Authority as construction progresses. 

Project Financing  

On December 24, 2012, the California Pollution Control Financing Authority (CPCFA) issued $530,345,000 of five percent 
fixed rate tax-exempt, subject to Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT), revenue bonds (Series 2012 Plant Bonds) at a premium of 
$15,393,338, for an All-In True Interest Cost (TIC) of 4.9 percent, to pay a portion of the costs of developing, designing, acquiring, 
and constructing the Plant. The cost of the Plant will also be funded by equity contributions made by Poseidon Resources 
Channelside Holdings LLC, the limited partner in the Company (Limited Partner) of up to $172,623,000 to the Company. To secure 
such obligation, on December 24, 2012, the Limited Partner delivered a letter of credit issued by Wells Fargo in the maximum 
available amount of $172,623,000 (Equity Security) to the Collateral Agent.

On December 24, 2012,  the CPCFA also issued $203,215,000 of five percent fixed rate tax-exempt revenue bonds (Series 
2012 Pipeline Bonds - and together with Series 2012 Plant Bonds, the Project Bonds) at a premium of $6,904,610, for an All-In 
TIC of 4.9 percent, to pay the cost of constructing the Pipeline.

The SDCWAFA, a blended component unit, will make such proceeds available to the Water Authority pursuant to an Installment 
Sale and Assignment Agreement dated as of December 24, 2012 (Installment Sale and Assignment Agreement) to pay the costs 
of developing, designing, acquiring, and constructing the Pipeline. The Company has agreed to design and build the Pipeline 
pursuant to the Pipeline DBA. In certain circumstances, as described herein, the Company may be obligated to pay amounts to 
the Water Authority to satisfy its obligations under the Pipeline Loan Agreement with the SDCWAFA related to the Series 2012 
Pipeline Bonds.

In the Installment Sale and Assignment Agreement, the Water Authority will assign its rights to receive contracted shortfall 
payments to the SDCWAFA which, in turn, will assign them to the CPCFA which will assign them to the Pipeline Trustee.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies, (continued)

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project, (continued)

Sources of Payment to and Security for Bondholders of Project Bonds

Prior to the Commercial Operation Date

During the period prior to the date on which the provisional acceptance conditions have been satisfied as described in the 
Water Purchase Agreement (Commercial Operation Date), the Company is solely responsible for completing the construction of 
the Project, and for any payment obligations with respect to the Project Bonds arising from construction delay or default by the 
Company on its construction or payment obligations.

The Series 2012 Pipeline Bond proceeds on deposit with the Pipeline Trustee are sufficient to pay the fixed price of constructing 
the Pipeline and interest on the Pipeline Bonds for the guaranteed construction period plus an additional six months. In addition 
the Pipeline Trustee holds funds in the Pipeline Debt Service Reserve Fund under the Pipeline Indenture in an amount equal to 
the current annual debt service on the Pipeline Bonds.

The Series 2012 Plant Bond proceeds on deposit with Union Bank, N.A. (in such capacity, the Collateral Agent), together with 
the Equity Security, are sufficient to pay the fixed price of constructing the Plant and interest on the Plant Bonds for the guaranteed 
construction period plus an additional six months, and certain direct obligations of the Company during the construction period. The 
amounts on deposit (or available to be drawn on the Equity Security) also include a $20 million owner’s construction contingency.

If there is a delay in achieving the Commercial Operation Date, and amounts on deposit in capitalized interest accounts for the 
Project Bonds are insufficient to pay debt service on the related Project Bonds, the Company is required to pay delay construction 
period shortfall payments under the Pipeline DBA that will cover debt service payments on the Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds and is 
obligated under the Plant Loan Agreement to pay debt service on the Plant Bonds.

If the Commercial Operation Date is not achieved by the date that is 1,430 days following the Series 2012 Project Bonds closing 
date (as such period may be extended pursuant to the terms of the Water Purchase Agreement) or the Company defaults on its 
obligations to make Contracted Shortfall Payments under the Pipeline DBA, the Water Authority may terminate the Pipeline DBA 
and the Water Purchase Agreement, and the Company would be obligated to pay the entire debt service on the Project Bonds.

In accordance with the Plant EPC Contract and the Pipeline EPC Contract, the EPC Contractor is obligated to timely achieve 
the Commercial Operation Date. It will pay delay damages for unexcused delay and is obligated to continue to work to achieve the 
Commercial Operation Date. The EPC Contractor and the Operating Contractor, IDE Americas Inc. (IDE Americas), have provided 
certain guarantees and performance and payment bonds, to assure that their obligations are met and the Collateral Agent is the 
assignee or beneficiary of those third party assurances. However, the liabilities of the EPC Contractor and IDE Americas are 
subject to overall limitations and they are excused from performance in certain circumstances where the Company is not entitled 
to relief under the Water Purchase Agreement or the Pipeline DBA.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies, (continued)

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project, (continued)

After Achieving the Commercial Operation Date 

Once the Commercial Operation Date is achieved, the Water Authority will commence payments under the Installment Sale and 
Assignment Agreement for the benefit of the holders of the Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds and commence the purchase of Product 
Water under the Water Purchase Agreement. The Collateral Agent will receive all revenues under the Water Purchase Agreement, 
and any damages payments from IDE Americas, in its capacity as operator of the Plant, and any amounts drawn on the Equity 
Security and certain other funds will be applied to fund operating reserves. Amounts held by the Collateral Agent will secure the 
payment of Plant senior debt and operating period shortfall payments related to the Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds under the Water 
Purchase Agreement on a parity basis.

Project Risk Bearing

Since the inception of this public-private partnership, the Water Authority and the Company have recognized and acknowledged 
the significant risks inherent in the Project of such nature and magnitude. The Project can only serve the intended commercial 
purpose of providing reliable Product Water to the public if and when construction is complete and meets specified standards at 
appropriate cost. The Water Authority has the fiduciary responsibility to protect the interests of member agencies and the public 
from Project risks.

The Water Authority and the Company have agreed unequivocally, in principle and in substance that, during the construction 
period prior to the Commercial Operation Date, the Company bears the entire risk of the Project and is solely responsible for all 
liabilities. The Water Authority only commences payments if and when the Commercial Operation Date is achieved within the 
timeframe as defined in the Water Purchase Agreement.

Protection of public interests extends to and through Qualified Institutional Buyers (QIBs), the primary providers of Project 
financing. Like the Water Authority, QIBs have fiduciary responsibilities toward member constituents, the general public, whose 
funds are held and invested by QIBs.

This overarching risk objective of protecting public interests from Project risks has provided clear guidance for structuring Project 
financing and for developing related agreements towards meeting the goal.

Water Authority Accounting for Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds

Prior to Achieving the Commercial Operation Date

GASB Concepts Statement No. 4 defines assets as resources with present service capacity that the government presently 
controls. Concepts Statement No. 4 also defines liabilities as present obligations to sacrifice resources that the government has 
little or no discretion to avoid.

Prior to achieving the Commercial Operation Date, while the Water Authority has legal title to Pipeline construction in progress, 
the Pipeline provides no present service capacity to the Water Authority. Proceeds from Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds are held by 
the Pipeline Trustee, which disburses funds monthly to pay for the costs of Pipeline construction. The disbursement requests are 
subject to approvals by the Company and the Independent Engineer. The Water Authority has the right to review and comment 
on, but not approve, such requests. As such, during the construction period, the Water Authority does not own resources related 
to the Pipeline that meet the definition of assets as defined in GASB Concepts Statement No. 4.
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17. Commitments and Contingencies, (continued)

(c) Carlsbad Desalination Project, (continued)

The obligation of the Water Authority to make any payments for the Project commences after the Project achieves the Commercial 
Operation Date under the terms of the Water Purchase Agreement. Therefore, during the construction period, the Water Authority 
does not have present obligations to sacrifice resources that it has little or no discretion to avoid.

After Achieving the Commercial Operation Date

Once the Commercial Operation Date is achieved pursuant to the terms under the Water Purchase Agreement, the Water 
Authority will record the Pipeline as a capital asset, following existing measurement, recognition, and disclosure guidance for 
capital assets. The Water Authority will also record the Series 2012 Pipeline Bonds as a liability, following existing measurement, 
recognition, and disclosure guidance for liabilities.
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Schedule of Funding Progress for CalPERS

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Liability (a)

Actuarial Value 
of Assets 
(AVA) (b)

Unfunded 
Actuarial 

Accrued Liability 
(UAAL) (a)-(b)

Funded Ratios Annual 
Covered

 Payroll (c)

UAAL as a % 
of Covered 

Payroll 
[(a)-(b)]/(c)

AVA
(b)/(a)

Market 
Value

6/30/2012 $  165,855,859  $  123,551,578 $  42,304,281 74% 64% $  25,581,760 165%

6/30/2011  153,217,349  112,766,510  40,450,839 74% 67%  28,007,790 144%

6/30/2010  144,117,822  102,303,197  41,814,625 71% 56%  28,920,921 145%

A. Defi ned Benefi t Pension Plan - California Public Employees’ Retirement System
The required schedule of funding progress below shows the recent history of the actuarial value of assets, actuarial accrued 

liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) to payroll.

B. Other Post-Employment Benefi ts
The required schedule of funding progress below presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of 

plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB

   Unfunded
 Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial  Annual UAAL
Valuation Accrued Value of Accrued Funded Covered as a % of
Date Liability Assets Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

6/30/2013 $  5,532,080  $               -  $  5,532,080 0% $  24,962,000  22%

  1/1/2011  3,933,126         -  3,933,126  0%  25,670,000  15%

  1/1/2009 2,997,000 - 2,997,000 0% 23,732,000 13%
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Final Budget Actual Amounts (1)

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive (Negative)
Net Water Sales Revenue
Water Sales  $           542,818,282 $             593,695,290 $               50,877,008 
Water Purchases & Treatment  (384,364,607)  (422,699,658)  (38,335,051)
Total Net Water Sales Revenue  158,453,675  170,995,632  12,541,957 

Revenues and Other Income
Infrastructure Access Charges  29,206,000  29,205,684  (316)
Property Taxes and In-Lieu Charges  11,050,000  11,142,102  92,102 

Investment Income  5,545,000  3,843,102  (1,701,898)
Hydroelectric Revenue  1,900,000  3,860,168  1,960,168 
Grant Reimbursements  14,958,406  8,894,775  (6,063,631)
Build America Bonds Subsidy  11,302,958  10,268,737  (1,034,221)
Other Income  -  2,176,695  2,176,695 
Capital Contributions:
     Capacity Charges  14,892,000  13,815,194  (1,076,806)
     Water Standby Availability Charges  11,266,000  11,137,248  (128,752)
     Contributions in Aid of 

             Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  390,000  230,952  (159,048)
Total Revenues and Other Income  100,510,364  94,574,657  (5,935,707)
Net Water Sales Revenue and
        Revenues and Other Income, net  258,964,039  265,570,289  6,606,250 

Expenses
Stored Water Purchases  17,790,000  -  17,790,000 
Debt Service  139,318,000  135,300,550  4,017,450 
QSA Mitigation  8,185,000  8,185,201  (201)
Hodges Pumped Storage  2,037,000  1,682,632  354,368 
Equipment Replacement  1,719,000  1,378,744  340,256 
Grant Expenses  14,958,406  6,381,491  8,576,915 
Other Expenses  -  996,541  (996,541)
Operating Departments/Programs (Note 4)  49,074,434  43,408,985  5,665,449 
Total Expenses  233,081,840  197,334,144  35,747,696 

Net Revenues Before CIP  25,882,199  68,236,145  42,353,946 

CIP Expenses  155,697,300  103,431,160  52,266,140 

Change in Net Position - Budgetary Basis  (129,815,101)  (35,195,015)  94,620,086 
Add Adjustments - Full Accrual (Note 5)  116,198,325  116,198,325  - 
Change in Net Position - GAAP Basis  (13,616,776)  81,003,310  94,620,086 
Net Position at Beginning of Year  1,390,604,030  1,390,604,030  - 
Net Position at End of Year $         1,376,987,254 $          1,471,607,340 $               94,620,086 

 

Note:
(1) Actual amounts have been adjusted form more accurate comparison to the adopted multi-year budget which is prepared on a modified accrual basis.

San Diego County Water Authority, Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014  - Budgetary Basis
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1. General Manager’s Adopted Multi-Year Budget
In June 2013, the Board of Directors (Board) adopted a $1.5 billion budget for the Fiscal Years 2014 and 2015. The Water 

Authority adheres to the budget policies and budgetary controls adopted by the Board for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2013 
and 2014. The schedule on page 97 presents the final Adopted Multi-Year Budget amounts and compares them to actual amounts 
as presented on a modified accrual basis, which are different from the amounts presented on the Statements of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.  

2. Budgetary Controls  
The Board, by resolution, has established budgetary controls and made a total appropriation for expenses consistent with the 

adopted budget. The total appropriation adopted by the Board establishes the legal spending limit for the Water Authority. The 
Board, by resolution, has delegated to the General Manager authority to make budget adjustments as necessary within a limit of 
$150,000 subject to the total appropriation limit. Budget adjustments in excess of $150,000 or increases in the total appropriation 
limit must be approved by the Board.  

3. Budget Process
The Board adopts a multi-year operating and capital improvement program budget every other fiscal year. The Board approves 

total budgeted appropriations and any amendments to the appropriations throughout the two-year period. The General Manager 
views the budget as an essential tool for proper financial management and holds a series of budget hearings through the 
Administrative and Finance Committee. The budget process includes presentations of key assumptions in the budget development 
and provides mechanisms for questions and comments from the Board to the Water Authority staff. The Finance Department 
leads the effort in developing the budget and is responsible for monitoring and reporting to the Board.  

4.  Operating Departments/Programs

Final
 Budget

Actual 
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive 
(Negative)

Operating Departments/Programs    
Administrative Services $        7,101,266 $         6,286,937 $           814,329 
Colorado River Program  1,440,018  980,926  459,092 
Engineering  3,861,268  3,321,476  539,792 
Finance  2,426,611  2,200,379  226,232 
General Counsel  8,102,158  6,800,891  1,301,267 
General Manager & Board of Directors  2,566,314  2,287,582  278,732 
MWD Program  1,468,092  1,459,109  8,983 
Operations & Maintenance  14,659,943  13,859,794  800,149 
Public Outreach and Conservation  3,734,374  3,186,322  548,052 
Water Resources  3,714,390  3,025,569  688,821 
Total Operating Departments/Programs $      49,074,434 $        43,408,985 $        5,665,449 
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5. Reconciliation of Adjustments
                  

                                                                                               Budgetary Basis                                     Adjustments                              GAAP Basis

Revenues and other income

Investment income   $             3,843,102   $           (168,168)  $           3,674,934

Hydroelectric revenue  3,860,168  (3,860,168)  - 

Grant reimbursements 8,894,775 (8,894,775) -

Build America Bonds US Treasury Subsidy 10,268,737 (10,268,737) -

Other income   2,176,695  23,023,680  25,200,375

Total revenues and other income  29,043,477  (168,168)  28,875,309 

Expenses

Debt service   135,300,550   (57,509,153)  77,791,397

QSA mitigation  8,185,201  (8,185,201)  - 

Hodges pumped storage  1,682,632   (1,682,632)  - 

Equipment replacement  1,378,744  (1,378,744)  - 

Grant expense 6,381,491  (6,381,491)   -

Other expenses 996,541 9,437,605 10,434,146 

Operating departments/programs  43,408,985  (4,105,985)  39,303,000

Depreciation and amortization  -   56,589,618  56,589,618

Bond issuance costs - 280,650 280,650

Total expenses  197,334,144 (12,935,333) 184,398,811 

Net revenues before CIP expenses (168,290,667) 12,767,165 (155,523,502)

CIP expenses  103,431,160  (103,431,160)  - 

Change in net position  $      (271,721,827) $     116,198,325  $    (155,523,502)

Note: This table only includes line items that required adjustments between budgetary basis and GAAP basis.

6. Monthly Financial Reporting     
In accordance with best financial management practices, the Finance Department provides monthly financial reports to the 

Board that include the monitoring of Water Purchases and Water Sales in acre-feet and in dollars, and a narrative and schedule 
that compare actual expenses to budgeted amounts. These reports are prepared to provide timely information on the financial 
progress of the Water Authority for the Board to consider in the decision making process. The schedule prepared on a budgetary 
basis that compares the adopted budget to actual expenses is presented on page 97. The Water Authority elects to present the 
budgetary schedule, optional for Enterprise Funds, in accordance with best practices recommended by professional accounting 
organizations and in keeping with the Water Authority’s commitment to transparency in financial reporting and disclosure. In 
addition, along with the schedule, a reconciliation of the budgetary schedule and the audited financial statements and a variance 
analysis are provided.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
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Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

Statistical Section
This section of the San Diego County Water Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents historical 

information as a context for understanding the Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements, and Required 
Supplementary Information. 

Contents ..................................................................................Page
Financial Trends (Tables 1-5) ......................................................................................................100

These tables and charts contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Water 
Authority’s financial performance has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity (Tables 6-10) .................................................................................................106

These tables and charts contain information to help the reader assess the Water Authority’s most
significant revenue sources.

Debt Capacity (Tables 11-13) ......................................................................................................112

These tables and charts present information to help the reader assess the ability of the Water
 Authority to pay debt service on outstanding debt.

General Information (Tables 14-15) ............................................................................................116

These tables and charts contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
information in its financial report relates to Water Authority provided services and activities.

Demographic and Economic Information (Tables 16-17) .........................................................117

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment in which the Water Authority’s financial activities take place.

Note: 
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Water Authority’s comprehensive annual financial report and detailed accounting records 
for the relevant year.
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Operating Revenues Nonoperating Revenues

Fiscal 
Year

Water 
Sales (1)

Other 
Revenues

Total
 Operating 
Revenues

Property 
Taxes

In-Lieu 
Charges (2)

Infrastructure
Access

Charges
Investment 

Income Other, net
2014  $ 593,695,290  $  3,935,305  $  597,630,595  $  9,387,129  $  1,754,973  $    29,205,684    $  3,674,934  $   21,265,070 

2013  523,455,688  2,578,210  526,033,898  9,202,932  1,593,549  28,675,422  2,936,474  13,546,781 

2012  443,347,502  1,519,525  444,867,027  8,240,009  1,642,353  27,700,326  5,211,394  16,277,941 

2011  382,922,036  634,572  383,556,608  8,071,041  1,583,467  24,507,570  6,960,755  19,250,470 

2010  387,871,218  4,965,060  392,836,278  8,341,559 (3)  1,630,065  21,241,060  5,217,031  7,100,636 

2009  359,951,622  3,608,350  363,559,972  8,760,552  1,706,932  19,389,790  18,507,476  5,396,592 

2008  343,455,834  9,500,104  352,955,938  8,608,767  1,694,569  17,457,819  22,163,684  341,694 

2007  343,081,511  -  343,081,511  8,009,243  580,364  16,188,099  28,966,917  7,592,838 

2006  299,083,926  -  299,083,926  3,645,182 (4)  408,745  13,863,726  16,607,792  4,082,256 

2005  271,465,862  -  271,465,862  845,429 (4)  1,308,433  11,947,760  15,735,372  8,725,610 

TABLE 1, Net Position - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Net 
Investment in 

Capital Assets

Restricted for 
Construction

Projects

Restricted 
for Debt
 Service Unrestricted

Total Net 
Position 

Changes in 
Net Position

% of 
Change in 

Net Position
2014 $  1,011,397,033 $  201,696,008 $        549,186 $  257,965,113   $   1,471,607,340 $   81,003,310 5.8%
2013   980,446,318   151,728,963      540,932 257,887,817 1,390,604,030  60,895,729 4.6%
2012 976,837,047 133,157,019 675,910 219,038,325 1,329,708,301 (1)  52,228,329 4.1%
2011 959,638,557 121,172,255 586,217 196,082,943 1,277,479,972 (1) 39,160,773 3.1%

2010  954,037,294         115,506,824       597,315 185,460,362   1,255,601,795   48,261,746 4.0%
2009 964,225,706 79,790,128 614,622 162,709,593 1,207,340,049 (2) 76,296,511 6.7%
2008  873,060,643  97,515,721 637,302 159,829,872 1,131,043,538 (2) 55,277,185 ( 3) 5.5%
2007  523,870,502  377,044,103  69,195,142 32,198,811  1,002,308,558  67,531,849 7.2%
2006  540,181,424  289,266,824  69,195,142 36,133,319  934,776,709 (2)  43,578,846 4.9%
2005  303,522,426  447,808,344  69,195,142 70,671,951  891,197,863  31,484,030 3.7%

Notes:
(1) Net position at June 30, 2012 and 2011 was restated to reflect the bond issuance costs expensed in the period incurred.
(2) Net position at June 30, 2009 and 2008 was restated to reflect the capitalization of project costs. Net position at June 30, 2008 and 2006 was restated to reflect the 
cancellation of projects.
(3) Net position at June 30, 2008 was restated for an increase of $73,457,795.

TABLE 2, Revenues and Capital Contributions by Source - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Notes:
(1) Includes readiness-to-serve and capacity charges assessed by the Metropolitan Water District (MWD).
(2) The City of San Diego elects to pay in-lieu charges rather than the tax levy. This calculation is based on prior year assessed valuation. 
(3) Proposition 1A Borrowing by the State of California of $688,268 in Fiscal Year 2010 was recognized as tax revenues in the fiscal year for which they were levied.
(4) Net of Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) shift of $5,787,380 in Fiscal Year 2006 and $5,787,380 in Fiscal Year 2005. In Fiscal Year 2006, the Water 
Authority also received a refund of $2,078,444 from the State of California for over-collected amounts from Fiscal Year 2005.
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       Total Net Position, in Millions ($)

TABLE 2, Revenues and Capital Contributions by Source - Last 10 Fiscal Years, (continued)

       
        Total Revenues and Capital Contributions by Source, in Millions ($)

Capital Contributions
Total

Nonoperating
Revenues

Capacity
Charges

Water Standby
Availability

 Charges

Contributions 
in Aid of 

Capital Assets
Total Capital 

Contributions
Total Revenues & 

Capital Contributions
 $   65,287,790  $    13,815,194  $   11,137,248  $      230,952  $     25,183,394  $     688,101,779 

 55,955,158  17,709,796  11,147,488  7,409,404  36,266,688  618,255,744 
 59,072,023  11,098,619  11,240,988  4,533,844  26,873,451  530,812,501 
 60,373,303  10,321,076  11,255,132  913,097  22,489,305  466,419,216 
 43,530,351  10,298,928  11,240,386  4,087,011  25,626,325  461,992,954 
 53,761,342  13,265,608  11,311,384  25,027,314  49,604,306  466,925,620 
 50,266,533  23,883,745  11,256,386  3,986,450  39,126,581  442,349,052 
 61,337,461  31,081,264  11,140,380  1,581,070  43,802,714  448,221,686 
 38,607,701  33,869,853  10,942,483  2,001,506  46,813,842  384,505,469 
 38,562,604  23,458,571  10,796,776  3,174,671  37,430,018  347,458,484 
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TABLE 3, Operating Expenses - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Operating Expenses by Function

Fiscal
Year

Cost of 
Sales

Operations &
 Maintenance Planning

General & 
Administrative

Depreciation & 
Amortization

Total 
Operating 
Expenses

Interest 
Expense (1) Other, net

2014 $  422,699,658  $  18,780,808 $  6,851,384 $   13,670,808 $  56,589,618 $   518,592,276 $    77,791,397 $  10,714,796

2013    371,258,531   19,252,138    9,009,004     13,314,635  52,259,977 465,094,285   80,738,966 11,526,764

2012 312,446,563   16,800,991  7,163,795 13,545,177   51,705,749 401,662,275 69,076,153 (2) 7,845,744 (2)

2011 275,099,372  16,576,465 9,754,403 13,238,715 37,364,821 352,033,776 67,209,780 (2) 8,014,887 (2)

2010   291,385,187  15,482,609    8,642,260 15,270,175    30,657,250 361,437,481  38,982,442  13,311,285 

2009 269,835,859 17,409,496  10,004,616  15,309,407  30,038,388 342,597,766 40,828,498  7,202,845 

2008  262,538,493  14,475,780  8,882,047  13,561,452  28,480,207 327,937,979  52,170,107  6,963,781 

2007  266,349,351  13,935,397  7,796,355  12,791,751  23,778,986 324,651,840  49,278,087  6,759,910 

2006  233,690,170  11,573,131  7,116,647  10,945,133  22,057,478 285,382,559  36,305,443  3,602,413 

2005  216,631,544  12,572,374  6,762,765  11,932,626  21,388,027 269,287,336  46,109,407  577,711 

Notes:
(1) Net of interest expense incurred during construction, “capitalized interest”. 
(2) Fiscal Years 2012 and 2011 expenses were restated for GASB 65 implementation.

TABLE 4, Operating Department/Program Expenses by Major Expense Category - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Labor & 
Benefits

Outside
Services

Supplies, 
Utilities,

Insurance
Other

Expenses
Capitalized

Overhead

Total Operating 
Department/

Program 
Expenses  (1)

2014 $  29,882,613 $  13,981,175 $  3,127,000 $  1,640,283 $  (9,328,071) $  39,303,000
2013  30,592,860   13,555,169  3,151,622  1,576,776  (7,300,650) 41,575,777
2012    30,342,606  8,759,265    2,584,696    2,270,811   (6,447,415)   37,509,963
2011 30,972,738 9,928,970 3,078,911 1,491,077 (5,902,113) 39,569,583
2010 30,934,843   8,588,898 2,614,997   1,622,306   (4,366,000)   39,395,044 
2009  30,579,263  11,880,022  3,491,169  3,733,747  (6,960,682)  42,723,519 
2008  27,488,581  9,908,019  2,807,336  1,937,361  (5,222,018)  36,919,279 
2007  26,002,349  8,789,610  3,282,717  1,925,411  (5,476,584)  34,523,503 
2006  22,671,426  7,957,341  2,933,346  1,690,382  (5,617,584)  29,634,911 
2005  20,973,393  9,372,642  3,307,774  1,913,736  (4,299,780)  31,267,765 

Notes:
(1) Excludes equipment purchases.
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TABLE 3, Operating Expenses - Last 10 Fiscal Years, (continued) 

                           Total Expenses, in Millions ($)

         Total Operating Department/Program Expenses, in Millions ($)
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 92,265,730   557,360,015
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75,224,667 (2) 427,258,443 (2)

  52,293,727    413,731,208 
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Non-Depreciable Capital Assets (1)

Fiscal 
Year Land Easements

Mitigation 
Banks

Storage 
Rights

Construction in 
Progress (2)

Total Non-
Depreciable

Capital Assets
2014  $   23,244,672  $   7,933,369  $    5,017,023  $   41,016,383  $     555,898,353  $   633,109,800 

2013  22,333,982  7,610,124  5,017,023  41,016,383  451,716,143  527,693,655 

2012  19,291,657  7,301,686  2,644,029 -  637,434,621  666,671,993 

2011  16,833,637  7,301,686  2,644,029 -  520,058,635  546,837,987 

2010  16,421,418  1,023,887  2,644,029 -  1,200,331,306  1,220,420,640 

Capital Assets Not Depreciated Water Systems

Fiscal 
Year Land (1)

Construction in 
Progress

Work in 
Progress

Total Capital
Assets Not

Depreciated
Olivenhain 

Dam

Water 
Transportation 

Pipelines

Pumping 
Plants & 

Facilities
2009 $    13,128,344 $      1,302,928,098 (2) $      749,017 $      1,316,805,459 $      175,971,199 $      994,213,762 $      173,706,256 

2008  13,283,900  1,051,556,553 (2)  612,973  1,065,453,426  175,971,199  960,401,118  171,651,588 

2007  13,283,900  720,889,855  977,807  735,151,562  175,971,199  928,406,598  168,533,417 

2006  13,193,281  480,320,115 (2)  367,223  493,880,619  175,971,199  907,651,466  137,664,442 

2005  11,667,917  323,383,524  -  335,051,441  175,971,199  848,440,047  149,456,005 

TABLE 5, Capital Assets, (Revised) - Last 10 Fiscal Years 

Notes:
(1)  In Fiscal Year 2012, the categorization of non-depreciable and depreciable capital assets was updated. For comparative purposes, Fiscal Years 2010 and 2011 have 
been updated.
(2)  Construction in Progress has been restated to include Work in Progress.
(3)  Depreciable assets less accumulated depreciation and amortization.

TABLE 5, Capital Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Notes:
(1) Includes land used for environmental mitigation.
(2) Construction in Progress at June 30, 2009 and 2008 was restated to reflect the capitalization of project costs; at June 30, 2008 and 2006,was restated to reflect the 
cancellation of projects.
(3) Includes vehicles, computers, office equipment, furniture, and fixtures.
(4) Intangible assets are reclassified to Capital Assets beginning with Fiscal Year 2006.
(5) Depreciable assets less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
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TABLE 5, Capital Assets - Last 10 Fiscal Years, (continued)

 Net Capital Assets, in Millions ($) 

TABLE 5, Capital Assets, (Revised) - Last 10 Fiscal Years, (continued) 

Depreciable Capital Assets (1)

Pipelines 
and Dams Facilities Equipment

Computer 
Systems 
Software

Participation 
and Capacity 

Rights

Total 
Depreciable 

Capital Assets

Accumulated
Depreciation/ 
Amortization

Total 
Depreciable 
Assets, Net (3)

Net 
Capital 
Assets

 $  1,790,726,715  $   731,162,857  $    35,202,142  $    7,917,720  $   508,782,992  $   3,073,792,426  $   (493,102,853)  $ 2,580,689,573 $  3,213,799,373 
 1,786,130,985  744,832,423  34,751,465  7,644,109  503,001,729  3,076,360,711  (436,681,789)  2,639,678,922  3,167,372,577 
 1,645,493,121  635,616,230  32,307,160  4,995,235  491,565,179  2,809,976,925  (384,901,910)  2,425,075,015  3,091,747,008 
 1,629,816,278  622,504,085  31,694,365  3,253,579  482,042,703  2,769,311,010  (334,288,815)  2,435,022,195  2,981,860,182 
 1,188,379,660  436,476,504  24,800,078  3,253,579  258,678,630  1,911,588,451  (296,923,994)  1,614,664,457  2,835,085,097 

Treatment 
Plants 

& Facilities

Automobiles &
 Miscellaneous 

Equipment (3)
Intangible 

Assets (4)

Total
Other 

Capital
Assets

Accumulated
Depreciation/      
Amortization

Depreciable 
Capital 

Assets, Net (5)

Net 
Capital 
Assets

$      25,620,355 $      55,068,680 $      135,988,876 $ 1,560,569,128 $      (272,182,244) $      1,288,386,884 $   2,605,192,343
 25,620,355  56,100,131  105,829,841  1,495,574,232  (245,651,212)  1,249,923,020  2,315,376,446 
 25,620,355  58,198,582  99,052,528  1,455,782,679  (220,903,739)  1,234,878,940  1,970,030,502 
 25,620,355  56,674,342  69,532,528  1,373,114,332  (196,968,527)  1,176,145,805  1,670,026,424 
 25,620,355  35,402,318  -  1,234,889,924  (174,036,504)  1,060,853,420  1,395,904,861 
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Metropolitan Water District
Supply Charges

 Full Service
Tier 1

 Full Service
Tier 2

Interim
Agricultural

Water Program (2)

Surface
Storage Operating

Agreement (3)
Replenishment
Water Rate (4)Calendar

Year UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR
2014  $593  $890  $735  $1,032  $      -  $      -  $      -  $      -  $      -  $      - 
2013  593  847  743  997  -  -  -  -  -  - 
2012  560  794  686  920  537  765  -  -  442  651 
2011  527  744  652  869  482  687  -  -  409  601 
2010  484  701  594  811  416  615  -  -  366  558 
2009  (11)  484  701  564  781  394  587  -  -  366  558 
2009  412  579  528  695  322  465  -  -  294  436 
2008  351  508  449  606  261  394  320  484  258  390 
2007  331  478  427  574  241  364  295  442  238  360 
2006  331  453  427  549  241  339  290  415  238  335 
2005  331  443  412  524  241  329  279  391  238  325 

TABLE 6, Schedule of Rates and Charges - Last 10 Calendar Years (1)   

Notes:
(1) All rates are calendar year except for the water standby charge, which is fiscal year and Surface Storage Operating Agreement (SSOA) rates, which apply from 
October 1 through April 30.
(2) Reflects MWD treated Interim Agricultural Water Program (IAWP) rate and Water Authority charges prior to January 1, 2003. The IAWP was discontinued after 2012.
(3) This schedule represents the contractual seasonal storage rate. Noncontractual participants pay a higher rate. Effective January 1, 2003, MWD instituted a SSOA 
offering a discount of $70/acre-foot for “scheduled” water placed into reservoirs by member agencies. An increased discount rate of $105/acre-foot is offered for “call” 
water, which is withdrawn from reservoirs per MWD’s usage needs. SSOA was not renewed in 2009.
(4) MWD’s Replenishment Rate is a discounted rate for surplus system supplies available for the purpose of replenishing local supplies.    
(5) The Water Authority’s Melded Supply Rate includes MWD’s Full Service Tier 1 charge, as well as other supply and treatment charges.    
(6) A new transitional rate was adopted on December 10, 2008 for customers opting out of MWD’s IAWP. Customers participating in the Special Agricultural Water Rate 
(SAWR) program are considered M&I customers by MWD.          
(7) Per acre-foot of water.
(8) Per parcel or acre, whichever is greater.
(9) Per equivalent meter (less than one inch) and includes system and treatment capacity charges.       
(10) Per equivalent meter.
(11) Reflects a mid-year rate increase effective September 1, 2009 to match MWD’s mid-year rate increase.       
   

UTR=untreated
TR=treated
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San Diego County Water Authority

Melded 
Supply
Rate (5)

Special 
Agricultural

 Water Rate (6)
Transportation

Rate (7)

Customer
Service
Charge

Storage
Charge

Standby
Charge (8)

Capacity 
Charge (9)

Infrastructure 
Access 

Charge (10) UTR TR UTR TR

$    732  $  1,006 $    593 $     867  $   97  $   26,400,000  $   63,200,000  $  10  $   4,800  $   2.68
 714  970 593 849  93  26,400,000  60,200,000  10  4,492  2.65
 638  872 560 794  85  26,400,000  54,200,000  10  4,492  2.60
 597  812 527 742  75  23,200,000  44,300,000  10  4,492  2.49
 532  747 484 699  67  18,000,000  34,000,000  10  4,492  2.02
 532  747 484 699  67  16,000,000  23,000,000  10  4,492  1.90
 463  631  412 580  64  16,000,000  23,000,000  10  4,492  1.90
 390  554  -  -  60  15,200,000  22,200,000  10  4,492  1.70
 365  512  -  -  60  14,200,000  17,700,000  10  4,492  1.56
360 485  -  -  60  14,200,000  17,700,000  10  4,313  1.48
349 461  -  -  55  13,600,000  14,600,000  10  2,465  1.15

TABLE 6, Schedule of Rates and Charges - Last 10 Calendar Years,(1) (continued)
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TABLE 7, Water Sales by Customer - Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2005 (1)

Notes:
(1) Represents gross water delivery net of water exchanges.
(2) Effective January 1, 2007, Padre Dam M.W.D. was reorganized
 into Padre Dam M.W.D. and Lakeside W.D. 
(3) Sweetwater Authority includes National City and South Bay I.D.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2005

Member Agency
Sales

(acre-feet)
Percent of

Water Sold Member Agency
Sales

(acre-feet)
Percent of

Water Sold

City of San Diego  186,232 35.8% City of San Diego  191,176 34.7%
Helix W.D.  34,338 6.6% Valley Center M.W.D.  38,105 6.9%
Otay W.D.  33,409 6.4% Otay W.D.  38,037 6.9%
Valley Center M.W.D.  29,606 5.7% City of Oceanside  31,181 5.6%
City of Oceanside  24,763 4.7% Helix W.D.  29,086 5.3%
City of Escondido  23,463 4.5% Rainbow M.W.D.  25,273 4.6%
Rainbow M.W.D.  23,217 4.4% City of Escondido  23,404 4.2%
Olivenhain M.W.D.  22,088 4.2% Olivenhain M.W.D.  22,164 4.0%
Vista I.D.  18,440 3.5% Vista I.D.  21,229 3.8%
Vallecitos W.D.  17,900 3.4% City of Carlsbad  20,209 3.7%
Total Top Ten Customers  413,456 79.2% Total Top Ten Customers  439,864 79.7%
Carlsbad M.W.D.  17,801 3.4% Padre Dam M.W.D.  19,207 3.3%
Fallbrook P.U.D.  13,311 2.6% Vallecitos W.D.  18,162 3.0%
City of Poway  13,199 2.5% Fallbrook P.U.D.  15,893 2.9%
Sweetwater Authority (3)  12,751 2.4% City of Poway  12,849 2.3%
Padre Dam M.W.D. (2)  12,034 2.3% Sweetwater Authority (3)  11,246 2.0%
Santa Fe I.D.  10,820 2.1% Santa Fe I.D.  8,901 1.6%
Rincon Del Diablo  7,026 1.3% Ramona M.W.D.  8,825 1.6%
Ramona M.W.D.  7,023 1.3% Rincon Del Diablo M.W.D.  7,732 1.4%
San Dieguito W.D.  5,598 1.1% San Dieguito W.D.  4,698 0.9%
Yuima M.W.D.  4,534 0.9% Yuima M.W.D.  3,136 0.6%
Lakeside W.D. (2)  3,766 0.7% City of Del Mar  1,324 0.2%
City of Del Mar  1,085 0.2% Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base  51 0%
Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base  49 0.0%  - -
Other Customers  108,997 20.8% Other Customers  112,024 20.3%
Total Water Sales  522,453 100% Total Water Sales  551,888 100%

Water Sales by Customer for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

I.D. = Irrigation District

W.D. = Water District

M.W.D. = Municipal Water District

P.U.D. = Public Utility District
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Table 8, Total Treated and Untreated Water Sales - Last 10 Fiscal Years                               

Notes:
(1) Total water sales do not include MWD’s readiness-to-serve and capacity charges; and are net of surface storage, seasonal storage, agriculture, and reclamation credits 
passed on to member agencies.
(2) Amounts are reduced as a result of a rate structure implemented effective January 2003, which reduced the per acre-foot water rate and implemented two new fixed 
charges.

           Total Treated and Untreated Water Sales,Total Acre-Feet (in Thousands)

Treated Water Untreated Water Total
Fiscal 
Year Acre-Feet Sales Acre-Feet Sales Acre-Feet

Change in 
Acre-Feet Sales (1)

Change in 
Sales

2014  198,397  $199,785,961 (2)  324,056  $273,900,702 (2)  522,453  40,440  $473,686,663 (2)  $64,636,999 
2013  199,257  186,241,667 (2)  282,756  222,807,997 (2)  482,013  39,370  409,049,664 (2)  75,184,306 
2012  181,445  150,884,055 (2)  261,198  182,981,303 (2)  442,643  23,132  333,865,358 (2)  38,485,802 
2011  177,098  138,798,942 (2)  242,413  156,580,614 (2)  419,511  (71,318)  295,379,556 (2)  (23,150,056)
2010  195,937  147,719,098 (2)  294,892  170,810,514 (2)  490,829  (66,933)  318,529,612 (2)  16,455,644 
2009  240,808  145,040,752 (2)  316,954  157,033,216 (2)  557,762  (55,333)  302,073,968 (2)  11,852,147 
2008  265,421  142,182,057 (2)  347,674  148,039,764 (2)  613,095  (47,360)  290,221,821 (2)  (2,775,890)
2007  273,989  135,190,065 (2)  386,466  157,807,646 (2)  660,455  79,241  292,997,711 (2)  42,039,317 
2006  260,720  114,558,835 (2)  320,494  136,399,559 (2)  581,214  29,326  250,958,394 (2)  24,995,729 
2005  247,776  104,722,566 (2)  304,112  121,240,099 (2)  551,888  (92,359)  225,962,665 (2)  (29,743,611)
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TABLE 9, Assessed Valuation of Taxable Property - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Source: 
County of San Diego’s Office of the Auditor & Controller

          Total Assessed Valuation, in Billions ($)

Fiscal
Year

Local Secured 
Property

State Secured 
Property

Redevelopment 
& Homeowners 

Exemptions
Net Secured 

Assessed Value
Net Unsecured 

Assessed Value
Total Assessed 

Value
2014  $  380,636,482,118  $  808,778,971  $  40,786,610,505  $  340,658,650,584  $  12,314,446,187  $  352,973,096,771 
2013  367,697,518,087  934,170,553  39,467,366,837  329,164,321,803  11,813,249,531  340,977,571,334 
2012  368,513,444,797  948,639,459  39,371,348,044  330,090,736,212  11,762,281,838  341,853,018,050 
2011  366,269,868,285  987,948,775  39,929,289,823  327,328,527,237  11,965,058,478  339,293,585,715 
2010  371,808,214,146  747,943,167  40,999,711,071  331,556,446,242  12,538,322,810  344,094,769,052 
2009  381,979,733,503  589,927,644  42,074,337,530  340,495,323,617  11,869,245,103  352,364,568,720 
2008  365,569,092,586  528,298,785  39,509,437,047  326,587,954,324  11,367,464,025  337,955,418,349 
2007  332,684,762,248  764,249,126  34,464,826,993  298,984,184,381  11,704,409,707  310,688,594,088 
2006  297,241,134,929  675,774,089  29,042,761,077  268,874,147,941  10,364,695,733  279,238,843,674 
2005  260,789,184,612  639,767,553  22,371,576,753  239,057,375,412  9,868,477,797  248,925,853,209 
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TABLE 10, Levies and Collections - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Notes:
(1) Represents the tax levy for the Water Authority’s Water Standby Availability Charge.

Source: 
County of San Diego’s Office of the Auditor & Controller and the San Diego County Water Authority

      Total Levy and Collections, in Millions ($)

Fiscal 
Year

Property
Taxes

Special
Assessments  (1)

Total 
Levy

Total 
Collections 

Net
Delinquent

% of 
Delinquent/
Total Levy

2014  $9,175,527  $12,260,070 $21,435,597  $20,236,442  $1,199,155 5.59%

2013  8,831,152  12,319,533  21,150,685  19,747,352  1,403,333 6.63%

2012  8,769,573  12,331,193  21,100,766  19,603,936  1,496,830 7.09%

2011  8,885,757  12,443,203  21,328,960  19,878,227  1,450,733 6.80%

2010  9,103,831  12,370,600  21,474,431  19,788,939  1,685,492 7.85%

2009  9,445,331  12,261,787  21,707,118  20,046,360  1,660,758 7.65%

2008  9,186,799  12,014,079  21,200,878  19,674,672  1,526,206 7.20%

2007  8,491,306  11,767,140  20,258,446  19,108,822  1,149,624 5.67%

2006  7,739,618  11,522,736  19,262,354  18,365,178  897,176 4.66%

2005  6,845,910  11,569,000  18,414,910  17,599,443  815,467 4.43%
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Short-tem 
Debt Certificates of Participation

Fiscal
Year

Commercial 
Paper  1993A  1997A  1998A  2002A  2004A  2005A  2008A 

2014  $        360,000  $            -  $            -  $    11,685  $               - $    43,925 $     70,885 $     536,110 
2013  360,000  -  -  11,685  - (2)  43,925 (3)  83,490  547,030 
2012  360,000  -  -  11,685  17,510  388,710  95,730  556,150 
2011  460,000  -  6,110  11,685  236,750  425,000  107,455  558,015 
2010  460,000  -  23,610  11,685  243,370  425,000  107,455  558,015 

2009  460,000  -  23,610  62,690  249,735  425,000  107,455  558,015 
2008  460,000  13,700  23,610  62,690  255,855  425,000  107,455  558,015 (4)

2007  460,000  26,700  102,575  62,690  261,740  425,000  107,455  - 
2006  110,000  39,000  118,305  62,690  267,395  425,000  107,455  - 
2005  110,000  50,600  132,845  62,690  272,835  425,000 (5)  107,455 (6)  - 

Original 
Par 
Amount

$ 135,650 $  162,315 $  180,000 $    300,000 $  425,000 $   107,455 $     558,015 

Debt 
Service 
Reserve 
Funds 

$             - $    15,197 (7) $    12,241 $               - (2) $      4,052 $     10,746 (7) $       23,671 (7)

Final 
Maturity 
(FY)

2009 2012 2028 2013 2034 2022 2038

TABLE 11, Short-term and Long-term Debt Outstanding - Last 10 Fiscal Years (in Thousands)

Notes:
(1) See Table 16 for personal income and population data.
(2) $18,385,750 of proceeds were released from the debt service reserve fund to defease the balance of $17,510,000 on the 2002A COPs in February 2013.
(3) $344,785,000 of the 2004A COPs was refunded by the 2013A Bonds in March 2013.
(4) $64,238,181 of proceeds were used to make an early payment on the 1997A COPs in June 2008. 
(5) $56,700,000 of proceeds were used to make an early payment on the 1991B COPs in December 2004. 
(6) Issued to advance refund $117,310,000 of the 1998A COPs in February 2005. 
(7) Balance satisfied with surety bond.
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TABLE 11, Short-term and Long-term Debt Outstanding - Last 10 Fiscal Years (in Thousands), (continued)

Revenue Bonds Long-term Debt
  

 2010A  2010B  2011S-1  2011A  2011B  2013A 

Certificates of 
Participation 

(COPs)
Revenue 

Bonds

Total 
 Debt 

Outstanding

% of 
Personal 

Income (1)

Debt Per 
Capita (in 

dollars) (1)

 $96,925  $526,135  $86,630  $126,285  $94,540  $299,105  $662,605  $1,229,620  $2,252,225 1.29%  $  702
 98,495  526,135  86,630  133,130  94,540  299,105  686,130  1,238,035  2,284,165 1.38%  718
 98,495  526,135  86,630  139,945  94,540  -  1,069,785  945,745  2,375,530 1.50%  748
 98,495  526,135  -  -  -  -  1,345,015  624,630  2,429,645 1.61%  774 
 98,495  526,135  -  -  -  -  1,369,135  624,630  2,453,765 1.74%  791

 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,426,505  -  1,886,505 1.38%  616 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,446,325  -  1,906,325 1.35%  631 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  986,160  -  1,446,160 1.06%  486 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,019,845  -  1,129,845 0.87%  383 
 -  -  -  -  -  -  1,051,425  -  1,161,425 0.94%  395 

 $98,495  $526,135  $86,630  $139,945  $94,540  $299,105 

 $         -  $           -  $          -  $            -  $         -  $            -  

2027 2049 2017 2027 2031 2034

               Total Debt Outstanding, in Thousands ($)
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TABLE 12, Revenue Debt Service Coverage - Last 10 Fiscal Years

Notes:
(1) Includes amounts transferred to and from the Rate Stabilization Fund, and excludes interest on debt proceeds, property tax receipts, contributions in aid of capital 
assets, and Capital Improvement Program (CIP) grant reimbursements.
(2) Excludes depreciation and amortization expenses; net of applicable property tax receipts.
(3) Excludes commercial paper.
(4) Excludes $51,005,000 principal payment on the 1998A COPs which was paid from debt proceeds.   
(5) Excludes $1,500,000 interest payment on the 2008A COPs and $9,530,000 interest payment on the 2010A & B Bonds, which was paid from debt proceeds.       
(6) Excludes $18,023,409 interest payment on the 2008A COPs which was paid from debt proceeds.
(7) Excludes $64,238,181 principal payment on the 1997A COPs which was paid from debt proceeds.
(8) Excludes $117,310,000 principal payment on the 1998A COPs which was paid from debt proceeds. Also excludes $56,700,000 principal payment on the 1991B COPs 
which was paid from debt proceeds.

        Senior Lien Debt Service Coverage, in Percentages (%)

Senior Lien Debt Service (3) 

Fiscal 
Year

Revenues for 
Purpose of 
Calculation (1)

Operating
Expenses (2)

Net Revenue
Available for
Debt Service Principal Interest Total

Coverage
Factor

2014 $   643,791,434 $   450,860,556 $   192,930,878 $   31,940,000 $   96,311,875  $ 128,251,875 150%
2013  584,848,831  402,037,827  182,811,004  28,175,000  93,543,288  121,718,288 150%
2012  502,859,753  340,074,164  162,785,589  26,585,000  84,026,291  110,611,291 147%
2011  446,399,335  305,014,447  141,384,888  24,120,000  79,942,971  104,062,971 136%
2010  439,639,107  320,808,607  118,830,500  6,365,000 (4) 73,067,368 (5)  79,432,368 150%
2009  412,709,321  302,091,894  110,617,427  19,820,000  53,242,022 (6)  73,062,022 151%
2008  414,004,382  289,154,436  124,849,946  34,685,000 (7)  48,359,992  83,044,992 150%
2007  410,112,152  292,283,252  117,828,900  33,685,000  50,184,173  83,869,173 140%
2006  374,042,753  259,261,156  114,781,597  31,580,000  51,772,285  83,352,285 138%
2005  349,123,929  245,745,447  103,378,482  30,660,000 (8)  47,633,295  78,293,295 132%
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TABLE 13, Direct and Overlapping Debt - June 30, 2013

2013-14 Assessed Valuation:  $ 381,616,773,354

     Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt

Total Debt 
Outstanding as of 

June 30, 2014 % Applicable (1)

Estimated Share of 
Overlapping Debt

 as of June 30, 2014
San Diego County Water Authority $                           - 100.000% $                             - 
Metropolitan Water District 123,275,000 17.471% 23,109,765
Community College Districts 2,095,941,914 79.991-99.952% 2,026,283,734
San Diego Unified School District 2,366,411,989 99.952% 2,365,276,111
Other Unified School Districts 1,166,491,536 various 1,162,448,966
High School Districts 1,059,542,096 various               1,029,533,133
School Districts 715,493,526 various 692,192,894
City of Escondido 73,065,000 99.415% 73,532,305
City of La Mesa 23,405,000 99.974% 23,398,915
Other Cities 4,820,000 99.853-100% 4,813,165
Grossmont Healthcare District 220,567,076 95.557% 210,767,281
Palomar Pomerado Hospital District 474,823,578 97.937% 465,027,968
Otay Water District I.D. No. 27 5,700,000 100.000% 5,700,000
Community Facilities Districts 1,546,549,729 97.626-100% 1,546,456,511
1915 Act Bonds (Estimated) 110,079,062 100.000% 110,079,062
   Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt $       9,738,619,810
Overlapping General Fund Debt
San Diego County General Fund Obligations $         379,835,000 96.600% $          366,920,610
San Diego County Pension Obligation Bonds 720,855,256 96.600% 696,346,177
San Diego Superintendent of Schools Certificates of Participation 16,125,000 96.600% 15,576,750
Community College District Certificates of Participation 9,345,000 79.991-99.916% 8,904,920
Unified School District General Fund Obligations 194,740,556 90.011-99.944% 192,051,904
High School and School District General Fund Obligations 370,653,604 89.114-99.996% 366,632,667
City of San Diego General Fund Obligations 546,930,000 99.939% 546,596,373
Other City General Fund Obligations 393,821,600 98.964-99.997% 392,644,800
Otay Water District Certificates of Participation 46,690,000 99.743% 46,570,007
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District General Fund Obligations 4,575,000 99.595% 4,556,471
Lakeside Fire General Fund Obligations 6,265,000 95.168% 5,962,275
   Total Gross Overlapping General Fund Debt $       2,642,762,954
   Less:  City of El Cajon Sales Tax Supported Obligations 15,083,558
              Otay Water District Certificates of Participation 46,570,007

   Total Net Overlapping General Fund Debt $       2,581,109,389

Overlapping Tax Increment Debt (Successor Agencies): $      1,563,995,468 1.323-100.000% $       1,522,120,025
TOTAL DIRECT DEBT $                             -
Total Gross Overlapping Debt $     13,903,502,789
Total Net Overlapping Debt $     13,841,849,224
Gross Combined Total Debt $     13,903,502,789 (2)

Net Combined Total Debt $     13,841,849,224

Ratios to 2013-2014 Assessed Valuations
Direct Debt 0.00%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 2.55%
Gross Combined Total Debt 3.64%
Net Combined Total Debt 3.63%

Ratios to Redevelopment Incremental Valuation ($39,505,390,761)
Total Overlapping Tax Increment Debt 3.85%

     Notes: 
     (1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the Water Authority is estimated using taxable assessed property value. Applicable percentages were estimated by    
    determining the portion of the overlapping district’s assessed value that is within the boundaries of the Water Authority divided by the district’s total taxable assessed value.
     (2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue bonds and non-bonded capital lease obligations.
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TABLE 14, General Information as of June 30, 2014

Number of Member Agencies ................................................. 24
Cities......................................................................................... 6
Water Districts .......................................................................... 5
Irrigation Districts ...................................................................... 3
Municipal Water Districts .......................................................... 8
Public Utility Districts ................................................................ 1
Federal Agency (military base) ................................................. 1

Notes:  
The County of San Diego is a non-voting representative.

TABLE 15, Operating Indicators - Last 10 Fiscal Years

 Water   Miles of  Treated Untreated 
 System Number   Patrol Number Water Water Average Total
Fiscal Service of Primary Miles of Road of Service Pipeline Pipeline  Daily Regular
Year    Area (1)  Pipelines  Pipeline Maintained  Connections  Capacity (2)    Capacity (2)   Deliveries (2) Employees
2014 951,000 5 300 150 96 420 504 467 252.50

2013 951,000 5 300 150 96 420 504 430 253.00

2012 947,288 5 300 150 106 420 504 395 254.50

2011 951,000 5 300 150 106 420 504 375 267.50

2010 951,000 5 300 150 131 420 504 440 267.50

2009    951,000      5      300     168    121     420      504   496  267.50

2008      943,425          5       279     135       119     420     504    590  268.50

2007    939,672     5     279     135      119     420   504     588  265.25

2006   939,672       5     279    135      119   420     504    503  262.25

2005   922,381    5   279     135      120     420     504     494  245.50

Notes:
(1) Acres.
(2) Millions of gallons per day.
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TABLE 16, Demographic and Economic Statistics - Last 10 Calendar Years

Source:
(1)  U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Regional Data
(2)  CALMIS, Employment Development Department (EDD)
(3) California Department of Transportation (estimates)
* Estimate

TABLE 17, Largest Employers in San Diego County - Fiscal Year 2014 and 2005

Source: 
(1) San Diego Sourcebook 2014
(2) http://www.mba-today.com/business/california-mba-employers.html#san-diego; 10/6/2014

Note: In 2014, the San Diego Sourcebook broke out the U.S. Department of Defense and Federal Government categories.

Year 
County 

Population (1)
Personal Income 

(in thousands) (1)
Per Capita Personal 

Income (in dollars) (1)
Unemployment 

Rate (2)

2014  3,209,846 (3) $     175,000,000 (3) $        53,626 (3) 6.6% *
2013  3,182,072 (3)  165,100,000 (3)  51,870 (3) 7.5%
2012  3,177,063  157,961,254  49,719 8.9%
2011  3,138,183  150,840,519  48,066 10.1%
2010  3,103,933  141,014,339  45,431 10.6%
2009  3,061,203  137,040,563  44,767 9.6%
2008  3,022,116  141,588,576  46,851 6.0%
2007  2,975,742  136,117,597  45,742 4.6%
2006  2,947,289  130,464,573  44,266 4.0%
2005  2,938,375  123,448,345  42,012 4.3%

2014 (1) 2005 (2)

Employer Rank
# of 

Employees
% of Total 

Employment Employer Rank
# of 

Employees
% of Total 

Employment
State of California 1  43,300 2.87% University of California, San Diego 1 24,790 1.74%

University of California, San Diego 2  28,672 1.90% San Diego Unified School District 2 21,073 1.48%

Federal Government 3  24,200 1.60% City of San Diego 3 20,700 1.45%

U.S. Department of Defense 4  21,500 1.43% County of San Diego 4 18,900 1.32%

County of San Diego 5  20,100 1.33% Sharp Healthcare 5 13,872 0.97%

City of San Diego 6  18,000 1.19% United States Postal Service 6 11,611 0.81%

Sharp Healthcare 7  15,865 1.05% Scripps Health 7 10,313 0.72%

Scripps Healthcare 8  13,750 0.91% Kaiser Foundation Hospital 8 7,386 0.52%

San Diego Unified School District 9  13,559 0.90% Qualcomm 9 6,000 0.42%

Kaiser San Diego Medical Center 10  8,900 0.59% San Diego Community College District 10 5,600 0.39%

     Total Top Ten  207,846 13.77%      Total Top Ten 140,245 9.82%
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Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 

October 29, 2014

Dear friends and interested parties:

We are pleased to present the Continuing Disclosure Report (Report) for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2014 for 
the San Diego County Water Authority (Water Authority). 

The information provided in this Report speaks only as of its date, October 29, 2014 and the financial and 
operating data included therein is accurate only as of the dates specified therein. The delivery of this Report 
may not, under any circumstances, create an implication that there has been no other change to the information 
provided in any final official statement of the Water Authority. Other than as set forth in its Continuing Disclosure 
Agreements, the Water Authority has not undertaken to disclose financial or operating data or to provide notice of 
changes to the information in this Report.

This Report is provided solely pursuant to the Water Authority’s Continuing Disclosure Agreements. The filing 
of this Report does not constitute or imply any representation (i) that all of the information provided is material 
to investors, (ii) regarding any other financial, operating or other information about the Water Authority or the 
referenced securities, or (iii) that no changes, circumstances, or events have occurred since the end of the 
fiscal year to which this Report relates (other than as contained in this Report), or any other date specified with 
respect to any of the information contained in this Report, or that no other information exists, which may have a 
bearing on the security for the referenced securities, or an investor’s decision to buy, sell, or hold the referenced 
securities. The information contained in this Report has been obtained from sources which are believed to be 
reliable, but such information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. No statement in this Report 
should be construed as a prediction or representation about future financial performance of the Water Authority. 
Any statements regarding the referenced securities, other than a statement made by the Water Authority in an 
official release or subsequent notice published in a financial newspaper of general circulation and/or filed with the 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board are not authorized by the Water Authority. The Water Authority shall not 
be responsible for the accuracy, completeness, or fairness of any such unauthorized statement. 

If you have any questions regarding this Report, please contact David Shank, Financial Planning Manager at 
(858) 522-6676, or by email at  dshank@sdcwa.org.

Sincerely,

Lisa Marie Harris, Director of Finance/Treasurer
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General Information

San Diego County Water Authority Management

Maureen A. Stapleton
General Manager

Sandra L. Kerl 
Deputy General Manager

Frank Belock, Jr.
Deputy General Manager

Dennis A. Cushman
Assistant General Manager

Lisa Marie Harris
Director of Finance/Treasurer

Daniel S. Hentschke
General Counsel

The Water Authority was organized by nine member 
agencies in 1944 for the primary purpose of supplying water 
to San Diego County for distribution to the Water Authority’s 
member agencies. The Water Authority currently has 24 
member agencies. A member of the San Diego County 
Board of Supervisors serves as a non-voting representative 
to the Water Authority Board of Directors. As a wholesale 
entity, the Water Authority serves only its member agencies 
and has no retail customers. The Water Authority has 
broad powers related to acquiring, developing, storing, 
transporting, selling, and delivering water both inside and 
outside its boundaries. The Water Authority is authorized to 
fix and collect rates or other charges for the purchase and 
delivery of water or the use of facilities for service. The Water 
Authority may borrow money, incur indebtedness, and issue 
bonds and other evidences of indebtedness.

The Water Authority currently receives a minor amount of 
revenue from hydroelectric power sales. Legislation enacted 
in September 2000 expands the Water Authority’s power 
generation authority to include the purchase, sale, and 
transmission of energy.
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Selected Financial Highlights
The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position are located in the 

Financial Section, under the Financial Statements tab, pages 31 and 32, respectively.

The Water Authority’s restricted and unrestricted cash and investments balances at June 30, 2014 were $353.8 million and 
$202.2 million respectively. Approximately 36.4 percent of total cash is unrestricted.

TABLE 1 - Cash and Investments, June 30, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013 
 As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, restricted reserve fund cash and investments balances were as follows: 

Construction $       135,551,448 $      193,639,934
Debt Service Reserve 16,715,590 16,707,336
Pay-As-You-Go 201,515,355 151,237,694
        Total $       353,782,393 $      361,584,964

 As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, unrestricted cash and investments balances were as follows: 

Operating $         23,533,027 $        66,469,748
Designated for Rate Stabilization 86,110,136 63,705,451
Designated for Equipment Replacement 6,666,862 7,819,199
Designated for Stored Water 85,866,828 73,025,245
        Total $       202,176,853 $      211,019,643
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Summary of Outstanding Debt

Long-Term Senior Lien Fixed-Rate Debt

The table below summarizes the Water Authority’s outstanding long-term, fixed-rate debt as of June 30, 2014, which includes 
final maturities, original par amounts, amounts outstanding, and applicable debt service reserve fund requirements. All reserve 
requirements are fully funded by either reserves or surety bonds.

TABLE 2 - Long-Term, Fixed-Rate Debt Outstanding, Fiscal Year June 30, 2014 

Issue  Final Original Amount Debt Service 
Name  Maturity Par Amount Outstanding Reserve Funds  (1)

Water Revenue Certifi cates of Participation:
 Series 1998A 2028 $     180,000,000 $      11,685,000 $    12,240,775
 Series 2004A 2034 425,000,000 43,925,000 4,052,362 (2)

 Series 2005A 2022 107,455,000 70,885,000 10,745,500  (3)

 Series 2008A 2038 558,015,000 536,110,000 23,670,625  (3)

Water Revenue Bonds:
 Series 2010A (Non-AMT Tax-Exempt) 2027 98,495,000 96,925,000 n/a
 Series 2010B (Taxable Build America Bonds) 2049 526,135,000 526,135,000 n/a
 Series 2011A 2027 139,945,000 126,285,000 n/a
 Series 2011B 2031 94,540,000 94,540,000 n/a
 Series 2013A 2034 299,105,000 299,105,000 n/a
 Total  $  2,428,690,000 $ 1,805,595,000 $ 50,709,262 

Notes:
(1) Amounts stated reflect the minimum balance required.
(2) After the refunding from the 2013A Bonds, the reserve requirement was reduced.
(3) Balance satisfied with surety bond.
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Short-Term and Subordinate Lien Fixed-Rate Debt

The Water Authority currently has three forms of short-term debt: five-year fixed-rate bonds, Tax-Exempt Commercial Paper 
(TECP) and Extendable Commercial Paper (ECP).

The Water Authority issued $86,630,000 of Subordinate Lien Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-1 in July 2011. 
These bonds mature on July 1, 2016. 

The Water Authority established its TECP Program in 1995. Commercial paper is a form of variable-rate debt, and is issued 
with maturities of 1 to 270 days. When the commercial paper matures, it is rolled over to new investors by the Water Authority’s 
commercial paper dealers. The Water Authority has authorized the issuance of up to $460,000,000 of TECP, with $310,000,000 
issued and outstanding. The TECP has been issued in three series – Series 5 ($100,000,000), Series 7 ($100,000,000), and 
Series 8 ($110,000,000). Series 5 was renewed in 2014; Series 7 was issued in 2013; and Series 8 was issued in 2014. Each of 
these series is supported with a bank “revolving credit and term loan agreement”. As of June 30, 2014 no advances have been 
made under any of the revolving credit and term loan agreements.

The Water Authority has remarketing agreements with five separate broker-dealers, all of which serve on all series for TECP: 
Bank of America Merrill Lynch, Goldman, Sachs & Co., J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., and Morgan 
Stanley & Co. LLC.

The Water Authority established an ECP Program in June 2014. ECP is considered a market access product. A market access 
product such as ECP does not require bank liquidity to back stop the notes. This allows the Water Authority to save on bank costs 
for revolving credit and term loan agreements which support the TECP program. ECP is issued with a final maturity between 1 and 
120 days. If the notes cannot be remarketed at their maturity date, the notes will be automatically extended to 270 days from the 
initial issuance and bear interest at a penalty rate until the notes can be remarketed or redeemed. The product’s final maturity of 
270 days assures that ECP complies with SEC Rule 2a7, making the notes eligible investments for money market funds. The ECP 
has been issued as Series 1, for $50,000,000 par amount.

The Water Authority has remarketing agreements with Bank of America Merrill Lynch, and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC who serve 
as the dealers for ECP.

TABLE 3 - Subordinate Lien Fixed-Rate Debt, Fiscal Year June 30, 2014

Issue  Final Original Amount 
Name Maturity Par Amount Outstanding
Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011S-1 2017 $  86,630,000 $  86,630,000

TABLE 4 - TECP & ECP  Program Summary, Fiscal Year June 30, 2014 

Short-Term 
Active Debt   Liquidity Liquidity Provider
Instruments  Size Provider Agreement Expiration
Series 1 (ECP) $   50,000,000  n/a n/a
Series 5         100,000,000  Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. June 27, 2016
Series 7 100,000,000 J.P. Morgan Chase Bank N.A. June 26, 2015
Series 8 110,000,000 Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi, UFJ June 27, 2017

Total  $ 360,000,000
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Member Agency Voting Entitlements 
The 24 voting member agencies currently served by the Water Authority consist of six cities, 17 special districts, and one federal 

agency. Under the County Water Authority Act (Act), California Statutes 1943, Chapter 545, a member agency’s vote is based on 
its “total financial contribution” to the Water Authority since the Water Authority was organized in 1944. Total financial contribution 
includes all amounts paid in taxes, assessments, fees, and charges to or on behalf of the Water Authority or the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California (MWD) excluding charges for water treatment. The Act authorizes each member agency to cast one 
vote for each $5 million, or major fractional part thereof, of the total financial contribution paid by the member agency.

TABLE 5 - Member Agency Voting Entitlements,  Effective as of January 1, 2014

Notes:
(1) Total financial contribution equals base revenues plus fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 revenues.
(2) Numbers may not total due to rounding.
(3) City of National City and South Bay Irrigation District comprise the Sweetwater Authority.

Member Agency

Total
Financial

Contribution (1)
Vote

Entitlement (2) Percentage
Carlsbad Municipal Water District $         365,467,281 73.093 3.5%
City of Del Mar 31,114,544 6.223 0.3%
City of Escondido 364,409,519 72.882 3.5%
Fallbrook Public Utility District 249,494,349 49.899 2.4%
Helix Water District 719,504,282 143.901 7.0%
Lakeside Water District 78,754,815 15.751 0.8%
City of National City (3) 75,684,771 15.137 0.7%
City of Oceanside 524,795,922 104.959 5.1%
Olivenhain Municipal Water District 325,262,301 65.052 3.1%
Otay Water District 559,866,712 111.973 5.4%
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 278,592,396 55.719 2.7%
Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base 11,876,951 2.375 0.1%
City of Poway 227,470,822 45.494 2.2%
Rainbow Municipal Water District 420,373,997 84.075 4.1%
Ramona Municipal Water District 162,969,409 32.594 1.6%
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 155,669,278 31.134 1.5%
City of San Diego 4,127,891,205 825.578 39.9%
San Dieguito Water District 110,067,832 22.014 1.1%
Santa Fe Irrigation District 158,508,649 31.702 1.5%
South Bay Irrigation District (3) 227,781,719 45.556 2.2%
Vallecitos Water District 268,577,327 53.716 2.6%
Valley Center Municipal Water District 562,576,943 112.515 5.4%
Vista Irrigation District 309,955,334 61.991 3.0%
Yuima Municipal Water District 35,182,995 7.037 0.3%
Total $   10,351,849,353     2,070.370 100.0%
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Water Source and Use

TABLE 6 - Member Agency Gross Water Sales by Fiscal Year, Thousands of Dollars * (1)

Member Agency  2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Carlsbad Municipal Water District  $      16,194  $     16,729   $      18,771   $     21,736  $      23,942
City of Del Mar  838 907  1,008   1,157  1,198
City of Escondido  14,811 11,058  16,451   21,630  23,524
Fallbrook Public Utility District  10,972 11,125  12,323   13,981  15,971
Helix Water District  21,472 17,918  23,684   29,583  35,292
Lakeside Water District 3,135 3,397  3,843   4,493  4,948
City of Oceanside  19,668 19,669  23,718   26,392  29,460
Olivenhain Municipal Water District  14,279 14,677  17,089   22,539  22,755
Otay Water District  29,330 31,332  35,212   39,944  44,692
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 11,555 11,951  13,236   14,863  16,156
Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base  63 57  67   64  72
City of Poway  7,733 9,177  10,378   12,112  13,851
Rainbow Municipal Water District  18,823 17,430  21,335   24,723 28,093 
Ramona Municipal Water District  6,155 5,668  6,932   7,866  8,391
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District  5,809 6,003  6,794   8,477  9,132
City of San Diego  140,194 144,473  162,875   189,884  205,769
San Dieguito Water District  1,958 1,992  2,803   2,642  5,308
Santa Fe Irrigation District  4,746 4,258  5,937   6,436  10,691
Sweetwater Authority (2)  9,900 7,309  6,085   4,308  13,400
Vallecitos Water District  15,114 16,001  18,391   21,435  23,598
Valley Center Municipal Water District  25,505 24,542  28,700   32,765  35,839
Vista Irrigation District  13,145 10,764  13,705   18,344  20,243
Yuima Municipal Water District  2,041 1,443  1,186   2,273  4,964
TOTAL (3)  $   393,440  $   387,880  $    450,523  $   527,647  $    597,289

Notes:
* Numbers may not total due to rounding.
(1) Gross water sales represent total water sales invoiced less adjustments for certain items such as agricultural and reclaimed water, treatment credits, and infrastructure 
access charges.  
(2) Represents sales to the City of National City and South Bay Irrigation District for which Sweetwater Authority acts as a purchasing agent. 
(3) In addition to gross water sales revenues, in some years the Water Authority has also received a minor amount of revenues from adjacent water districts that provide 
water to customers within the Water Authority’s service area under operating agreements. These revenues are not included in this chart.
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In Fiscal Year 2014, the Water Authority member agencies’ combined imported and local water use totaled 594,536 acre-feet. 
Imported supplies accounted for 505,985 acre-feet or 85 percent of the total water used, excluding estimated water savings from 
conservation programs. Approximately 458,044 acre-feet or 91 percent of imported water supplies was used for municipal and 
industrial (M&I) needs, with the balance going to meet agricultural demands.

TABLE 7 - Water Source and Use (in Acre-Feet), Fiscal Years 2010-2014

Notes:
(1) Includes Water Authority deliveries via South Coast Water District System.
(2) Excludes City of San Diego local surface water use outside of Water Authority service area.
(3) Excludes land outside of Water Authority service area.
(4) Excludes local supplies developed beyond Yuima’s master meters.
(5) Agricultural use based on member agencies’ estimated sector weightings.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
% of change from 

previous year

WATER USE by MEMBER AGENCY
Carlsbad Municipal Water District 21,169 19,231 19,970 21,273 22,829 7.31%
City of Del Mar 1,202 1,151 1,169 1,231 1,197 -2.76%
City of Escondido 24,848 23,355 23,363 24,573 25,523 3.87%
Fallbrook Public Utility District 13,866 12,158 12,820 13,820 14,125 2.21%
Helix Water District 33,211 31,811 32,794 34,373 35,067 2.02%
Lakeside Water District 4,050 3,910 4,039 4,249 4,311 1.46%
City of National City 6,327 6,685 6,404 6,722 6,692 -0.45%
City of Oceanside 28,730 26,193 27,269 28,843 29,638 2.76%
Olivenhain Municipal Water District 22,664 20,958 21,740 23,672 25,020 5.69%
Otay Water District 35,245 33,710 34,214 36,197 38,158 5.42%
Padre Dam Municipal Water District 13,148 12,168 12,172 12,776 12,982 1.61%
Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base (1) 9,563 9,244 8,521 9,086 9,038 -0.53%
City of Poway 11,437 11,181 11,605 12,579 13,038 3.65%
Rainbow Municipal Water District 22,357 18,608 20,465 22,514 22,980 2.07%
Ramona Municipal Water District 6,853 6,522 6,770 6,961 6,827 -1.93%
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District 9,559 8,142 8,128 10,071 9,873 -1.97%
City of San Diego (2) 199,790 189,393 193,245 202,447 209,876 3.67%
San Dieguito Water District 7,145 6,863 6,957 7,285 7,443 2.17%
Santa Fe Irrigation District 11,889 9,475 10,694 10,758 12,172 13.14%
South Bay Irrigation District 14,467 14,136 14,059 14,370 14,584 1.49%
Vallecitos Water District 16,468 15,412 16,083 17,402 17,889 2.80%
Valley Center Municipal Water District 29,922 26,100 28,111 29,620 29,997 1.27%
Vista Irrigation District (3) 19,235 17,916 18,900 19,490 20,134 3.30%
Yuima Municipal Water District (4) 3,298 2,623 2,946 3,589 5,143 43.30%
     Total 566,443 526,945 542,438 573,901 594,536 3.60%

ALLOCATION of WATER USE
Residential 344,478 344,762 356,302 382,128 385,559 0.90%
Commercial & Industrial 81,685 71,754 73,895 72,545 83,482 15.08%
Agricultural (5) 53,286 44,348 47,196 50,226 51,851 3.24%
Public & Other 86,994 66,081 65,045 69,002 73,644 6.73%
     Total  566,443 526,945 542,438 573,901 594,536 3.60%
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TABLE 8 - Water Source and Use - Current Year Breakout, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 

Notes:
(1) Includes surface, recycled, and groundwater supplies; does not reflect conserved water.
(2) Water use in a given year may differ from Water Authority sales due to utilization of storage.
(3) Includes only amounts certified through the Interim Agricultural Water Program (IAWP) and the Transitional Special Agricultural Water Program (TSAWR).
(4) Includes Water Authority deliveries via South Coast Water District System.
(5) Excludes City of San Diego local surface water use outside of Water Authority service area.
(6) Excludes land outside of Water Authority service area.
(7) Excludes local supplies developed beyond Yuima’s master meters.
(8) Numbers may not total due to rounding.

Source of Water (Acre-Feet)
Type of Water Authority 

Supply (Acre-Feet) 

Gross 
Area     

(Acres)
Local 

Supply (1)  

Water 
Authority 

Supply 
(Imported) (2) Total 

Agricultural
Use (3)  

M & I 
Use 

Carlsbad Municipal Water District  4,539.3  18,289.9  22,829.2  -  18,289.9  20,640.0 
Del Mar, City Of  111.5  1,084.9  1,196.4  -  1,084.9  1,442.0 
Escondido, City Of  2,124.1  23,399.1  25,523.2  3,235.2  20,163.9  21,569.0 
Fallbrook Public Utilities District  779.7  13,345.5  14,125.2  4,810.8  8,534.7  27,988.0 
Helix Water District  688.0  34,379.4  35,067.4  -  34,379.4  31,350.0 
Lakeside Water District  550.8  3,760.3  4,311.1  -  3,760.3  11,488.0 
National City, City Of  3,861.6  2,830.5  6,692.1  -  2,830.5  4,812.4 
Oceanside, City Of  4,874.9  24,762.9  29,637.8  508.1  24,254.8  26,982.5 
Olivenhain Municipal Water District  2,921.9  22,098.4  25,020.3  130.7  21,967.7  30,942.1 
Otay Water District  4,748.4  33,409.2  38,157.6  -  33,409.2  80,320.0 
Padre Dam Municipal Water District  964.7  12,017.0  12,981.7  458.3  11,558.7  54,402.2 
Camp Pendleton Marine Corps Base (4)  8,781.6  256.7  9,038.3  -  256.7  134,625.0 
Poway, City Of  449.8  12,588.1  13,037.9  47.9  12,540.2  25,047.0 
Rainbow Municipal Water District  -  22,979.7  22,979.7  11,412.7  11,567.0  47,260.4 
Ramona Municipal Water District  695.1  6,131.6  6,826.7  1,466.4  4,665.2  45,868.0 
Rincon Del Diablo Municipal Water District  2,846.7  7,026.3  9,873.0  197.3  6,829.0  10,596.1 
San Diego, City Of (5)  38,623.3  171,252.7  209,876.0  92.8  171,159.9  213,121.0 
San Dieguito Water District  1,845.4  5,597.9  7,443.3  -  5,597.9  5,652.7 
Santa Fe Irrigation District  1,332.3  10,839.5  12,171.8  -  10,839.5  10,359.0 
South Bay Irrigation District  5,117.7  9,466.1  14,583.8  -  9,466.1  13,836.9 
Vallecitos Water District  -  17,889.2  17,889.2  1,301.8  16,587.4  28,334.0 
Valley Center Municipal Water District  390.6  29,606.6  29,997.2  20,145.6  9,461.0  64,253.0 
Vista Irrigation District (6)  1,694.7  18,439.5  20,134.2  99.7  18,339.8  21,146.2 
Yuima Municipal Water District (7)  608.8  4,534.3  5,143.1  4,033.7  500.6  13,460.0 
TOTALS (8)  88,550.9  505,985.3  594,536.2  47,941.0  458,044.3  945,495.5 
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Operating Results

TABLE 9 - Historical Operating Results by Fiscal Year, Thousands of Dollars*

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
OPERATING REVENUES

Water Sales (1) $    387,871 $     382,922 $    443,348 $     523,456 $       593,695
Standby Charges  11,240  11,255  11,241  11,147 11,137
Capacity Charges  10,299  10,321  11,099  17,710 13,815
Infrastructure Access Charges (2)  21,241  24,508  27,700  28,675 29,206

Total Operating Revenues $    430,651 $     429,006 $    493,388 $     580,988 $       647,853

Plus Withdrawals from or Minus Deposits
   to the Rate Stabilization Fund  -  -  (7,250)  (12,500) (22,000)

BABs Interest Rate Subsidy (3)  4,615  11,303  11,303  11,303 10,269
Nonoperating Revenue (4)  4,372  6,091  5,419  5,058 7,670
Total Revenues(5) $    439,638 $     446,400 $    502,860 $     584,849 $       643,792

OPERATING EXPENSES (6) 

Cost of Sales  291,385  275,099  312,447  371,258 422,700
Other Maintenance and Operations Costs (7)  39,395  39,570  37,510  41,576 39,303
Total Operating Expenses $    330,780 $     314,669 $    349,957 $     412,834 $       462,003

Application of Net Tax Receipts  9,972  9,654  9,882  10,796 11,142

Net Operating Expenses  320,808  305,015  340,075  402,038 450,861

Net Water Revenue Available for Debt Service $    118,830 $     141,385 $    162,785 $     182,811 $       192,931

REVENUE SUPPORTED DEBT SERVICE (8) 

1997A Certificates 1,358 18,690 6,403 - -
1998A Certificates  1,347  555  555 555 555
2002A Certificates  18,342  18,341  9,370 292 -
2004A Certificates  20,929  20,929  19,534 7,798 2,163
2005A Certificates  5,581  5,581  17,208 17,127 16,852
2008A Certificates  26,291 (9)  26,291  (10)  29,643 36,776 38,181
2010A&B Bonds  5,585 (9)  13,676  (10)  18,570 (11) 37,017 38,576
2011A Bonds - -  5,760 13,271 13,237
2011B Bonds  -  -  3,569 4,688 4,707
2013A Bonds  -  - -  4,194 13,982
Total Debt Service $      79,433 $     104,063 $    110,612 $     121,718 $       128,253

SUBORDINATE OBLIGATION PAYMENTS

Commercial Paper (12)  3,197  3,111  3,068  3,080 2,480
2011S-1 Bonds  -  -  4,272  4,272 4,272
Total Subordinate Obligation Payments $        3,197 $         3,111 $        7,340 $         7,352 $            6,752
Balance Available after Debt Service and
   Subordinate Obligation Payments $      36,200 $       34,211 $      44,833 $       53,741 $          57,926

Revenue Supported Debt Service 
   Coverage Ratio

1.50x 1.36x 1.47x 1.50x 1.50x

Debt Service and Subordinate Obligation
   Coverage Ratio (13) 1.46x 1.34x 1.41x 1.44x 1.45x
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Notes:
* Some amounts are prepared on a basis other than generally accepted accounting principles.
(1) Water sales represent accrued sales to member agencies, as well as revenues from treatment of raw water and certain miscellaneous income items.
(2) Infrastructure access charge was implemented January 1999 and is levied on retail water meters within the service area.
(3) Taxable Build America Bonds (BABs) receive a 35 percent subsidy of interest payable from the United States Treasury. In Fiscal Year 2014, due to Congressionally 
-mandated sequestration, the IRS reduced the subsidy payments to issuers of BABs. The first semi-annual payment was reduced by 8.7 percent and the second semi-
annual payment was reduced by 7.2 percent.
(4) Nonoperating revenue consists of interest earnings on Water Authority funds (excluding interest earnings on bond proceeds and the Rate Stabilization Fund) and other 
revenues (hydroelectric sales, penalties, etc.).
(5) Total revenue includes amounts transferred to and from the Rate Stabilization Fund, and excludes property taxes, contributions in aid of capital assets, and CIP grant 
reimbursements.
(6) Operating expenses exclude depreciation and amortization expenses.
(7) Includes operations, maintenance, planning, and general and administrative costs; excludes capital equipment purchases.
(8) Includes only debt service on Water Authority indebtedness payable from net water revenues and excludes debt service paid from tax revenues. Senior lien debt 
service does not include trust fees.
(9) Excludes $1,500,000 interest payment on the 2008A COPs and $9,530,564 interest payment on the 2010A&B Bonds, which was paid with bond proceeds.
(10) Excludes $1,500,000 interest payment on the 2008A COPs and $23,340,158 interest payment on the 2010A&B Bonds, which was paid with bond proceeds.
(11) Excludes $18,447,032 interest payment on the 2010A&B Bonds, which was paid with bond proceeds.
(12) Commercial paper (CP) costs include interest and related program fees.
(13) Coverage ratios do not include program fees.

       Chart 1 - Water Authority Debt Service Coverage Ratio by Fiscal Year
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Summary of Water Rates
Water rates are established by the Board of Directors and are not subject to regulation by the California Public Utilities Commission 

or by any other local, state, or federal agency. Under the General Resolution, the Water Authority is required to fix rates that are 
reasonably fair and nondiscriminatory. The Water Authority assesses four different charges for the supply and delivery of water; 
the fixed Customer Service and Storage Charges and the variable Transportation Rate and the Supply and Treatment Rates. 
The Customer Service Charge recovers operating and capital costs associated with the overall functioning of the Water Authority, 
the Storage Charge recovers costs associated with the Emergency and Carryover Storage Program and the Transportation Rate 
recovers costs associated with the conveyance of water through the Water Authority’s aqueducts. 

TABLE  10 - Summary of Water Rates, Effective January 1 - December 31

Notes:
(1) MWD rates are shown as the rates adopted by MWD.
(2) TSAWR was adopted on December 10, 2008 for customers opting out of MWD’s IAWP. Customers that are participating in TSAWR program are considered M&I 
customers by MWD.
(3) The IAWP was discontinued in 2013.
(4) Seasonal Shift Storage rates apply October 1 through April 30. This schedule represents the contractual seasonal storage rate. Noncontractual participants pay a 
higher rate. SSOA was not renewed in 2009.
(5) Discussion on MWD’s Replenishment Rate Program are continuing with its member agencies. 
(6) The Water Authority’s 2009 rates were increased effective January 1, 2009 and September 1, 2009 to match MWD’s mid-year rate increase.

UTR=Untreated Water
TR=Treated Water
IAWP=Interim Agricultural Water Program
SSOA=Surface Storage Operating Agreement
TSAWR=Transitional Special Agricultural Water Rate

San Diego County Water Authority Metropolitan Water District (1)

Water Authority
Melded Supply TSAWR (2)

Transportation
Rate

Customer 
Service Storage

Full Service
Tier 2 IAWP (3) SSOA (4)

Replenishment 
Water Rate (5)

UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR UTR TR

2008 $ 390 $ 554 $    - $    -          $  60 $15,200,000 $22,200,000 $ 449 $ 606 $ 261 $ 394 $ 320 $ 484 $      - $     -

2009 463 631 412 580 64 16,000,000  23,000,000  528  695  322  465  -  - - -

2009   (6) 532 747 484 699 67 16,000,000  23,000,000  564  781  394  587  -  - - -

2010 532 747 484 699 67 18,000,000  34,000,000  594  811  416  615  -  - - -

2011 597 812 527 742 75 23,200,000  44,300,000  652  869  482  687  -  - 409 601

2012 638 872 560 794 85 26,400,000  54,200,000  686  920  537  765 - - 442 651

2013 714 970 593 849 93 26,400,000  60,200,000  743  997 - - - - - -

2014 732 1,006 593 867 97 26,400,000  63,200,000  735  1032 - - - - - -
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Summary of Investments

TABLE 11 - Summary of Investments, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 (1)

Notes:
(1)  Includes only investment types with balances at June 30, 2014.
(2) Book value of investments differ from market values contained in financial statements. Book value of investments represents cost.

Investment Type
Permitted By 
Board Policy

Maximum 
Maturity

Maximum 
Financial 

Institution 
Concentration

Actual 
Percentage

Actual Amount 
Book Value (2)

Pooled Funds
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $50 Million N/A N/A 11.35% $            45,556,724

Treasury Securities 15% -Minimum 5 years N/A 16.28% 65,363,988

Agency Securities 85% 5 years No limit 57.83% 232,222,867

Commercial Paper 25% 270 days 5% 13.67% 54,899,753
JPA Pools (CAMP) 25% N/A N/A 0.74% 2,989,722

Money Market Funds 15% N/A 10% 0.13% 503,276
100.00% $         401,536,330

Accrued Interest (unavailable for investing) 2,082

Checking/Petty Cash/Available Funds (unavailable for investing) 2,546,652

                               Subtotal for Pooled Funds: $       404,085,064

Bond/CP Fund Excluded from Portfolio Percentages:
Agency Securities $            14,390,963
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 119,345,858

JPA Pools (CAMP) 3,099,956

Money Market Funds and Cash 3

Accrued Interest (unavailable for investing) -

                           Subtotal for Bond/CP Fund (available for CIP expenditures): $       136,836,780

Debt Service Reserve (DSR) Funds Excluded from Portfolio Percentages:
Agency Securities and Money Market Fund - Series 2004A COPs $              4,517,096

Trinity Plus - Reserve (GIC) - Series 1998A COPs 12,240,775

                           Subtotal for Debt Service Reserve Funds (unavailable for CIP expenditures): $         16,757,871

Total Cash and Investments $       557,679,715
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Investment Policy 
The Water Authority’s investment policy is defined and approved annually. The purpose of this policy is to identify various 

policies and procedures that enhance opportunities for a prudent and systematic investment policy and to organize and formalize 
investment-related activities. The Water Authority’s Board of Directors has delegated investment responsibility to the Water 
Authority’s Treasurer, who is primarily responsible for implementing the investment policy. The Board and the Treasurer adhere 
to the guidance provided by the “prudent investor rule.” The Treasurer presents an investment report to the Board monthly. The 
objectives of the investment policy are as follows:

A. Safety: Each investment transaction shall seek to avoid capital losses. Diversification of the portfolio will be used to reduce 
exposure to principal loss.

B. Liquidity: An adequate percentage of the portfolio will be maintained in liquid, short-term securities that can be converted to 
cash to meet disbursement requirements. Investment in securities with active secondary markets will be utilized. These securities 
will have a low sensitivity to market risk.

C. Yield: Yield should become a consideration only after the basic requirements of safety and liquidity have been met.

D. Public Trust: All participants in the investment process shall act as custodians of the public trust. The overall program shall 
be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism that is worthy of the public trust.

The investment portfolio will be diversified to avoid incurring unreasonable and avoidable risks regarding specific security types 
or individual financial institutions. Portfolio diversification is employed as a way to control risk.

The Water Authority strives to maintain an efficient portfolio by providing for the lowest level of risk for a given level of return. 
This acceptable level of return has been quantified as a return that is consistent with the two-year U.S. Treasury constant maturity.

The Water Authority is governed by the California Government Code, Sections 53600 et seq. Within the context of these 
limitations, investments are authorized for the Water Authority’s operating and reserve funds as indicated in the Summary of 
Investments table.

It is the Water Authority’s goal to maintain a minimum of 50 percent of the Water Authority’s portfolio in U.S. Treasury securities; 
however, based on market conditions, a combination of 50 percent agency securities and Treasury bills or notes will satisfy this 
requirement. At no time will less than 15 percent of the portfolio be in Treasury bills or notes.

The Water Authority does not invest in derivative instruments. Securities such as yield curve notes, interest only, principal 
only, range notes, and inverse floaters are prohibited. Callable bonds, step-up bonds, and floating rate securities (with a positive 
spread) are permitted investments. No security will be purchased that could result in a zero interest accrual if held to maturity. 
Investments such as common stocks, futures, and the writing of options are prohibited from use in the Water Authority’s portfolio. 
The use of short positions is also prohibited.

Litigation
The San Diego County Water Authority, along with the Imperial Irrigation District (IID), Metropolitan Water District of Southern 

California, Coachella Valley Water District, and State of California (collectively “QSA parties”), are defending a number of 
challenges that have been filed in a validation action brought relating to the Quantification Settlement Agreement and its various 
related agreements (collectively “QSA”), including agreements relating to the transfers of conserved water from IID to the Water 
Authority. In December 2011 the court of appeal issued its opinion upholding the QSA finding that it did not violate the California 
Constitution and other laws, but remanded the matter for trial on remaining undecided issues. On July 31, 2013, the trial court 
issued its judgement rejecting the remaining legal challenges. A notice of appeal has been filed and briefing on the appeal is 
complete. For further information, contact Daniel S. Hentschke, General Counsel, 4677 Overland Ave., San Diego, CA 92123, 
(858) 522-6791, dhentschke@sdcwa.org.
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Economy of San Diego County
Two of the San Diego region’s greatest assets are its geography and climate. The average annual rainfall is only ten inches, so 

the county is highly reliant on imported water. For these reasons, the health of the regional economy is inextricably linked to the 
long-term success of the San Diego County Water Authority.

According to the Department of Transportation, 
San Diego County has an estimated population of 
approximately 3.2 million people; the estimated average 
growth between 2013 and 2040 is approximately 0.83 
percent; the 2013 per capita income was $51,870, a 
2.7 percent increase from 2013 estimates, and the 
per capita income for 2014 is estimated at $53,626. 
Estimated unemployment for San Diego County in 
June 2014 is averaging 6.6 percent according to the 
CALMIS.

San Diego‘s economy, as with other U.S. metro 
areas, is heavily dependent upon national conditions. 
Much of the economic uncertainty comes from the 
challenges facing the Federal Reserve as, at some 
point, interest rates will inevitably rise and Quantitative 
Easing will wind down. Even so, there is a somewhat 
optimistic, albeit cautious outlook for the San Diego 
region.(1)

Nearly every major industry in San Diego added 
jobs in 2013, with the most noteworthy exceptions 
being in manufacturing, Federal government, information, and real estate. One of the core strengths is San Diego’s diversified 
telecommunications, biotech, and computer sectors. Along with being a popular travel destination, these assets continue to provide 
some economic resilience. Overall employment improved, led by strong gains in the hospitality industry, construction, healthcare, 
and retail/wholesale trade. (2)

Housing prices rebounded in 2013 due to dwindling 
inventory and record low mortgage rates. (3)

(1,2,3) San Diego Economic Ledger. Volume 9, Issue 1. February 2014. 
Source: http://www.nusinstitute.org/assets/resources/pageResources/
EconomicLedger-SanDiegoForecast2014.pdf. pps. 1-6

Chart 2 - San Diego County Historic and Projected 
Population - Calendar Year 2008-2040

Source: California Department of Transportation. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/offices/
eab/socio_economic_files/2014/san_diego.pdf. 09/02/14
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Chart 3 - San Diego County Historic and Estimated 
Per Capita Income - Calendar Year 2008-2014

Source: California Department of Transportation. http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/tpp/
offices/eab/socio_economic_files/2014/san_diego.pdf. 09/02/14
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TABLE 12 - San Diego County Annual Building Permit Activity, Calendar Year

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 (est.)
Single Family 2,270 2,245 2,197 2,565 2,597
Multi-Family 146 176 293 252 323

     Total 2,416 2,421 2,490 2,817 2,920

2014 year-to-date  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul

Single Family 256 272 205 185 217 222 182
Multi-Family  14 24 20 13 25 40 45

Chart 4 - Building Permit Activity, 2010-2014 (est.), Calendar Year 

Source:  U.S. Census Bureau (based on building estimates)
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TABLE 13 - Labor Force Rate Trends, Calendar Year

Source: CALMIS 

TABLE 14 - San Diego County Employment by Industry, Calendar Year (1)

Industry 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 (2)

Farm Production 10,500 9,800 9,800 9,800 9,700
Mining and Logging 400 400 400 400 400
Construction 55,400 55,200 56,300 61,200 68,800
Manufacturing 92,900 93,100 93,400 94,600 96,800
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities 197,300 200,800 206,800 212,300 216,000
Information 25,100 24,200 24,600 24,100 24,300
Financial Activities 67,200 67,600 69,500 71,400 71,100
Professional and Business Services 207,700 209,800 215,500 222,600 230,700
Educational and Health Services 145,500 150,200 154,500 179,300 182,700
Leisure and Hospitality 154,500 155,600 161,000 167,500 180,100
Other Services 46,100 47,600 49,300 49,200 50,500
Federal Government 47,000 46,700 46,700 46,500 45,800
State and Local Government 183,500 182,200 180,900 183,000 177,300
     TOTAL 1,233,100 1,243,200 1,268,700 1,321,900 1,354,200

Notes:
(1) Table uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS). 
(2)Current year is based on July statistics.

Source: CALMIS

Year Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment % Unemployed
 2010 San Diego County 1,574,100 1,408,200 165,900 10.5%

California 18,336,300 16,114,000 2,224,500 12.1%
United States 153,889,000 139,064,000 14,825,000 9.6%

 2011 San Diego County 1,582,200 1,423,500 158,700 10.0%
California 18,417,400 16,249,600 2,168,300 11.8%

United States 153,617,000 139,869,000 13,747,000 8.9%
 2012 San Diego County 1,594,900 1,452,500 142,400 8.9%

California 18,519,000 16,589,700 1,929,300 10.4%
United States 154,995,000 142,250,000 12,745,000 8.2%

 2013 San Diego County 1,590,000 1,470,000 120,000 7.5%
California 18,596,800 16,933,300 1,663,500 8.9%

United States 155,693,000 144,285,000 11,408,000 7.3%

2014 estimated San Diego County 1,593,121 1,490,283 102,838 6.5%
California 18,609,766 17,159,073 1,450,693 7.8%

United States 155,772,001 145,866,940 9,905,061 6.4%
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